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December 17, 2021

The Honorable Mayor Michael W. Absher
Members of the City Council
Citizens of the City of Marion

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Marion, lllinois for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2021 is hereby submitted. lllinois statutes require that the City issue annually a report
on its financial position and activity presented in conformance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by an independent firm of certified public accountants.

Management of the City assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it
has for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the
objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements are free
of any material misstatements.

The City of Marion’s financial statements have been audited by Atlas CPA’s and Advisors, LLC, a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2021,
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2021, are fairly presented in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The independent auditors' report is presented

as the first component of the financial section of this report.

www.cityofmarionil.gov

1102 Tower Square Plaza * Marion, IL 62959 « (618) 997-6281 * Fax (618) 997-2028



As a recipient of various federal and state financial assistance programs, The City of Marion may be
required under the Uniform Guidance Audit Requirements, to have an annual audit of certain federal
grant programs performed if we meet specified criteria. The City did meet those criteria this year.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAAP) require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the City of Marion

The City of Marion was incorporated on February 24, 1841. The City is located in Williamson County,
lllinois. The City is located approximately 120 miles southeast of St. Louis, Missouri and 57 miles
northwest of Paducah, Kentucky. The City currently has land area of 14.61 square miles and a
population of 16,855,

The City operates under a commissioner form of government which includes the Mayor and four City
Commissioners, each elected at large in a non-partisan basis to four-year terms. The City of Marien is a
home rule community due to a referendum that was passed in November of 1994 as allowed by the
Illincis Constitution. The Mayor and Commissioners constitute the legislative body of the City and as a
group, are responsible for taxation, appropriations, ordinances, and other general functions. The Mayor
and Commissioners are also over the administration of departments that have been assigned to them.

The City provides a full range of services, including fire and police protection, the construction and
maintenance of streets and other infrastructure and the operating of the water and wastewater
facilities and general administrative services, The City also owns and operates the HUB Recreational
Center, the Marion Cultural and Civic Center, the Pavilion, the Senior Citizens Center, Boyton Street
Community Center and the Marion Carnegie Library.

Accounting System and Budgeting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and expenditures. Resources are
allocated and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent
and the means by which the spending activities are controlled.

The City's accounting records are generally maintained on the cash basis of accounting. Under the cash
basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when received. Expenditures are recorded when an
expenditure occurs. After the end of the fiscal year, the City's management makes certain adjustments
to the accounting records to permit the preparation of financial statements on the modified accrual and
accrual basis of accounting to comply with GAAP. Under the maodified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recorded when measurable and available to liquidate obiigations of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred that is expected to draw upon current financial
resources. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when incurred.



The annual budget serves as the foundation of the City of Marion’s financial planning and control. All
departments of the City are required to submit budget requests to the City Treasurer no later than
February 15th each year, The City Treasurer and the Mayor's Chief of Staff use these requests as a
starting point for developing a proposed budget. Once a preliminary proposed budget is developed, the
City Treasurer and Mayor’s Chief of Staff meet with department heads to discuss his or her specific
budget. The revised budget is then made available to the Mayor and Commissioners for review on or
before March 31* of each year. The City council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed
budget and to adopt a final budget no later than April 30™, prior to the start of the new fiscal year on
May 1*. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. Heads of City departments and
boards may with prior approval of the City Treasurer, initiate transfers of funds between line items
within departments. The Mayor or a Commissioner, may initiate transfer of funds between line items
within his or her departments. Any transfers between departments must be approved by Council.
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided for each individual governmental fund for which an
appropriated annual budget has been adopted. Budget to actual comparisons for the City's three major
governmental funds are presented in the required supplementary information section.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

Marion serves as the largest retaii trade center in Southern lliinois with its central location along
Interstate 57 and lllinois Route 13. Marion is the home for Rent One Park and the Colt World Series. The
Carbondale-Marion metropolitan statistical area (MSA} is well-diversified with several medium-sized
businesses and institutions which provide a diverse and stable employment base. These include Aisin
Ilinois, Centerstone, Heartland Regional Medical Center, Intertape Polymer Group, Southern lllinois
Healtheare, and Southern lllinois University, to name a few.

There are multiple retail and restaurant locations throughout Marion which help bolster its standing as
the retail center of Southern lllincis. Strong sales tax revenues are driven by auto, motorcycle, and RV
sales. Those industries are supported by big box stores such as Walmart, Target, and Sam’s Club.
Additionally, Marion is home to nationally recognized retailers such as, Gander Qutdoors, Dillard’s,
Menard’s, Home Depot, and Kroger.

The City is hopeful in a deal that is imminent regarding the sale of the blighted lilinois Star Centre Mall. A
sale of that property would net the City a portion of owed delinquent real estate tax, future special
service area bond payments, and the anticipated sales tax revenue generated from the redevelopment
of that property.

For the Fiscal Year ending in April 2021, the City outperformed the prior year's municipal sales tax by
nearly 1%. Additionally, the City maintained its home rule sales tax revenue from the previous year. The
lack of any growth can be contributed to the various state mandates put into to play throughout the
fiscal year as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Many of our peer towns experienced substantial losses
in sales tax revenue, sc in comparison, the City performed rather weil.

Future growth in sales tax revenues will come from projects already in production or operation including
a new 18 acre, 52.8 million truck stop featuring a restaurant, expanded convenience store, and



substantial semi parking. Given the proximity to interstate 57, the City conservatively expects to
generate an additional $400,000 in combined sales tax revenues annually. Additional projects in the
development stages are a Texas Roadhouse restaurant, extensive remodel to Aldi grocery store, and the
redevelopment of blighted downtown properties that will serve as mixed-use retail and residential
spaces.

Unfunded mandates from the state continue to be a burden on all municipalities in illinois. Combined
with continued fiscal mismanagement, a level of uncertainty exists with future state support. In spite of
regional and state financial woes, Marion maintains a strong bond rating at Aa3 (Moody's), and an even
stronger and stable financial future.

Long-Term financial Planning

The City Council, in 2019, initiated a long-term strategy to bring Marion residents a more sustainable
future by making Marion one of the cheapest communities to reside in Southern illinois. To do so, the
council resolved to not levy a real estate tax and in turn raised the City’s home rule municipal sales tax
by 0.75 of one percent. The move will net the City significantly more revenue both in the short and long-
term than the property tax would have,

Those increased revenues will fund the City’s pension obligations, provide for capital improvements
throughout City facilities, provide a resource to incentive economic development in properties that are
underdeveloped or blighted, and provide the capital for the revitalization and redevelopment of
Marion’s downtown business corridor.

In FY 2019, the Council approved the largest geographic TIF in the City's history covering much of the
Southeast residential corridor. The TIF will serve as an engine to provide needed capital in the form of
lcans for homeowners to improve the condition of their homes. Additionally, the City will also use its
increment to support the neighborhoods with new infrastructure, sidewalks, lighting, and street signs.

Preparations are ongoing to grow City reserves, fund future retiree health insurance obligations, and
better position the City’s pension obligations. With planned expansion to the City’s retail base paired
with City’s reduction in debt service, the Council is in the planning stages of ensuring those funds are
responsibly dedicated to future obligations while growing the City’s reserves and continuing to support
and capturing the growth Marion is experiencing,

Financial Policies

The City has established several specific policies to guide its financial operations. Those policies relate to
the following areas:

Accounting and Financial Reporting

¢ Facilitate the annual financial statement audit by an independent accounting firm.
» All department heads and City Council are able to review online on a daily basis the
City’s revenue and expenditure transactions,

Budgetary and Revenue Management:

¢ All dollars spent are appropriated by the City Council through the budget process.
* The City has established a comprehensive debt management policy

vi



= The City has a policy to maintain a cash reserve balance of 25% of the General Fund
budgeted expenditures including transfers. if part of the cash reserve is used, Councii
will take necessary actions to increase the cash reserve back to the 25% threshold.

Cash Management and investrnents:
o City has a comprehensive Investment Policy which follows the lllinois State Statutes in

investing public funds and requires all City deposits over FDIC coverage either to be
collateralized or covered by a Federal Home Loan Bank Letter of Credit.

Purchasing:

s City has a comprehensive Purchasing Policy which encourages competitive bidding and
requires City Council approval on all purchases over $7,500.00.

Acknowledgments:
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Marion

2602 W. DeYoung 5t
Maricn, IL 62959

It's about time.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Marion
Marion, Winois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Marion, lllinois (the City), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2021, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or emor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
apinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of April 30, 2021, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash fiows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Regquired Supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, and pension
information on pages 8 - 17 and 79 - 89 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The intreductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, other schedules and statistical section, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

0: 618.993.2647

A F: 618.993.3981



The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statement schedules, and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used o
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statement
schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 17, 2021, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

#77.‘15 Cots f Musses PLic

Marion, lllinois
December 17, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Marion
Marion, lllincis

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the govemnmental aclivities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marion, Hlinois (the City), as of and for the year
ended April 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 2021.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal
contro! over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal controf that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal controf was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internat control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the eifectiveness of the
City's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

#‘}ZF)S Cots f Musors Plic

Marion, lllinois
December 17, 2021



independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for
Each Major Program and on lnternal Control
Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Marion
Marion, lllinois

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Marion, liiinois' (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended April 30, 2021. The City's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
maijor federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended April 30, 2021.



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City's intemal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control aver compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemnance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

ms CPﬂxs M’fu&rs PLic

Marion, Ilinois
December 17, 2021



CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

April 30, 2021

The City of Marion’s (the “City™) discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing
on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity, (3) identify changes
in the City's financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), (4) identify
any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (5) identify individual fund
issues or concemns.

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the City's
financial statements {beginning on page 18).

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The financial statement's focus is on both the City as a whole (government-wide} and on the major
individual funds. Both perspectives (govemment-wide and major fund) alfow the user to address relevant
questions, broaden a basis for comparison {year to year or govemment to government} and enhance the
City’s accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (see pages 18-19) are designed to be corporate-like in that all
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the
Primary Government. The focus of the Statement of Net Position (the “Unrestricted Net Position®) is
designed to be similar to bottom line results for the City and its governmental and business-type
activities. This statement combines and consoclidates governmental fund’s current financial resources
(short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long term obligations using the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus.

The Statement of Activities (see page 19) is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities
(including governmental, business-type), which are supported by the government’s general taxes and
other resources. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of the cost of various
governmental services and/or subsidy to various business-type activities.

The Governmental Activities reflect the City’s basic services, including police, fire, public works, culture
and recreation and administration. Shared state sales tax, home rule sales tax, utility taxes, hotel taxes
and shared state income tax finance most of these services. The Business-type Activities reflect private
sector type operations (Water and Wastewater) where the fee for service typically covers all or most of
the cost of operation, including depreciation.

2020 balances in table two have been restated to reflect various reclasses made in the 2021 balances.
However, 2020 balances have not been changed to reflect any prior period adjustments.



CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {Continued)

Fund Financial Statements
Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements
presentation more familiar. The fecus is on Major Funds, rather than fund types.

The Govermental Major Fund (see pages 20 and 22) presentation is presented on a sources and uses
of liquid resources basis. The flow and availability of liquid resources is a clear and appropriate focus of
any analysis of a govemment. Funds are established for various purposes and the Fund Financial
Statement allows the demonstration of sources and uses associated therewith.

The Fund Financial Statements also allow the government to address its Fiduciary Funds (Police
Pension and Firefighters Pension Funds). While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the
govemment, these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the
govemment. Therefore, these assets are not presented as part of the Government-Wide Financial
Statements.

While the Business-type Activities column on the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (see pages 24-
25) are the same as the Business-type column on the Government-Wide Financial Statement, the
Governmental Major Funds Total column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement
focus (current financial resources versus total economic resources) which is reflected on the page
following each statement (see pages 21 and 23). The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond
proceeds and interfund transfers as other financial scurces as well as capital expenditures and bond
principal payments as expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate
the capital assets and long-term obligation (bonds and others) into Governmental Activities column (in
the Governmental-wide statements).

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 29 through 78 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information conceming the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
benefits to its employees and budget to actual information for the General Fund and major Special
Revenue Funds. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 79 through 89 of this
report.

Infrastructure Assets

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure — roads, bridges, storm sewers, etc.)
have not been reported nor depreciated in governmental financial statements. This new statement
requires that that these assets be valued and reported within the Governmental column of the
Govermnment-wide Statements. Additionally, the government must elect to either (1) depreciate these
assets over their estimated useful life or (2) develop a system of asset management designed to
maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. I the government develops the asset
management system (the modified approach) which periodically (at least every third year), by category,
measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the
govemment may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation.



CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The City has chosen to depreciate assets over their useful life. If a road project is considered
maintenance - a recurring cost that does not extend the road's original useful life or expand its capacity —
the cost of the project will be expensed.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT

Statement of Net Assets
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position:

Table 1
Statement of Net Position
As of April 30, 2021
(in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Government
2021 2028 2021 2020 2021 2020
Current and Other Assets $ 33021 § 26023 $ 5352 § 3,879 § 38373 § 29902
Capital Assets 101,705 102,183 30,231 30,458 131,936 132,641

o

Total Assets 134,726  § 128206 $§ 35583 § 34,337 170309 § 162,543

Deferred Outflows of Resources § 15557 § 10817 § 2323 & 1530 3 17880 & 12347

Current Liabilities § 7307 $ 872 3 2293 § 235 § 9600 § 9,088
Noncurrent Liabilities 66,495 69,918 14,261 12,857 80,756 82,775
Total Liabilities $ 73,802 $ 76650 § 16554 $ 15213 $ 90,356 $ 91,83

Deferred Inflows of Resources § 17325 § 11,774 § 1082 § 967 § 18407 § 12,741

Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt $ 82452 & 80,538 § 23,181 § 2288 % 105633 § 103,424
Restricted 9,860 5319 288 768 10,148 6,087
Nonspendable I | - - 1 1
Unrestricted (33,158) (35,259 (3,199 {3,967) (36,357) (39,226)
Total Net Position $ 59155 § 50,599 § 20270 $ 19,687 $ 79425 § 70,286

For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Position (page 18).
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CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {Continued)

Normal Impacts

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Assels
summary presentation:

Net Results of Activities — which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted
assets.

Borrowing for Capital — which will increase current assets and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital — which will reduce current assets and increase capital
assets. There is a second impact, an increase invested in capital assets and an increase in related new
debt which will not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital — which will (a) reduce current assets and
increase capital assets and (b) will reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital
assets, net of debt.

Principal Payment on Debt — which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b)
reduce unrestricted assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation — which will reduce capital assets and invested in
capital assets, net of debt.

Current year impacts

The City's combined net position (which is the City’s bottom line) increased from $70.29 million to
$79.43 million for a total increase of $9.14 million in net position. Of this increase, Govemmental
Activities increased by $8.56 million and Business—type activities increased by $583 thousand. Within
Governmental Activities, Current and Other assets increased by $7.00 million. Part of the reason for this
increase was a $3.76 million increase in cash which was due to unspent sales tax proceeds set aside for
special purposes such as for payment of Police and Fire pension contributions to be made in the
following year and the transfer of $1.50 million from the Water Department due to the sale of the old city
lake. $2.06 million of the increase was due to the increase in Property Tax and Sales Tax receivable.
Sales Tax Receivable was primarily due to a change in the way the State of Iflinois collects out of states
sales tax. Property Tax Receivable increase in due to increase activity and additional TIF Districts.
These increases amount to $5.82 million of the $7.00 million increase in Current and Other Assets.
Pension and OPEB Deferred Outflows of Resources increased in the amount of $4.77 million due to a
$5.89 million increase in OPEB outflows. This will be recognized as an expense in future years.
Noncurrent Liabilities decreased by $3.42 million due to payoff of Long-Term Debt. Increase in OPEB
liability was offset by decrease in Net Pension Liability. In Business Activities, the increase in Current
and Other Assets is from $1.2 million of unspent loan proceeds. The Deferred Outflows of Resources
increase is due to Outflows from OPEB calculations. Borrowings in long-term debt was $678 thousand
greater than reduction in Long-Term Debt. Total OPEB liability increased by $1.23 million. Net Pension
Liability in prior year of $408 thousand became a Net Pension Asset $156 thousand in the current year.

Changes in Net Position
The following table represents the condensed statement of Changes in Net Position:

11



CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {Continued)

REVENUES
Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and
contributions

Capital grants and
contributions

General revenues:

Property taxes

Sales Tax (shared and
home rule)

Other taxes

Other

Total Revenues

EXPENSES:

General government

Public health and safety
Streets, alleys & cemeteries
Culture and recreation
Development

Interest expense
Unallocated depreciation
Water

Sewer

Total Expenses

Excess before Transfers
Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position, May 1

Net Positlon, April 30

Table 2

Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

(in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total

Activitles Activities Government
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
$ 1881 § 3062 $ 7181 §$ 7378 $ 9062 $ 10,440
1,261 1,321 - - 1,261 1,321
1,284 280 815 - 2,099 280
5,450 B|553 - - 5:450 8’553
20,739 17,002 - - 20,739 17,002
7,295 5,785 - - 7,285 5,785
393 553 463 1 856 554
$ 38303 $ 36556 $ 8459 $ 7379 §$ 46,762 $ 43,935
$ 4199 § 3845 $ - 3 - $ 4189 § 3,845
12,003 12,938 . - 12,003 12,938
4,959 5,487 - - 4,959 5,487
3,997 5,349 - - 3,997 5,349
4,264 3,969 - . 4,264 3,969
319 596 . - 319 586
1,297 1,267 - - 1,297 1,267
- - 3,387 3,549 3,387 3,549
- - 3.198 3|054 3’198 3'054
$ 31,038 % 33,551 $ 6585 $ 6603 $ 37623 § 40,154
$ 7265 $ 3005 $ 1874 § 776 % 9,135 $ 3,781
1,291 {796) {1,291} 796 - -
$ 8556 $ 2208 $ 583 §$ 15672 § 9,139 § 3,781
$ 50589 § 48390 $ 19687 $ 18115 $ 70286 $ 66,505
$ 60155 $ 50,599 $ 20270 § 19,687 $ 79425 $ 70,286

12



CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Normal impacts
Revenues:

Economic Condition — which can reflect a declining, stable or growing economic environment and
has a substantial impact on state income, and sales tax revenue as well as public spending habits for
building permits, elective user fees and volumes of consumption.

Increase/Decrease in City Approved Rates — while certain rates are set by statute, the City Council
has significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease rates (water, wastewater,
impact fees, building fees, home rule sales tax, etc.).

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and non-
recurring) — certain recurring revenues (state shared revenues, etc.) may experience significant
changes periodically while non-recurring (or one-time) grants are less predictable and often distorting
in their impact on year to year comparisons.

Market Impacts on Investment income — the City’s investment portfolio is managed using a short-
term average maturity and the market condition may cause investment income to fluctuate less than
alternative longer term options.

Expenses:

Introduction of New Programs - within the functional expense categories (Public Safety, Public
Works, General Government, etc.) individual programs may be added or deleted to meet changing
community needs.

Increase in Authorized Personnel — changes in service demand may cause the City Council to
increase/decrease authorized staffing. Staffing costs (salary and related benefits) represent
51.26% of the City’s total operating expenses.

Salary Increases (annual adjustments and merit) — the ability to attract and retain human and
inteflectual resources requires the City to strive to approach a competitive salary range position in the
marketplace.

inflation — while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest, the City is a major consumer of

certain commodities such as supplies, fuels, and parts. Some functions may experience unusual
commodity specific increases.

13



CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Current Year Impacts
Governmental Activities
Revenue:

The City's largest of revenues is sales tax which was 54.14% of total Governmental Activities
revenue. The second largest source of revenue is property taxes at 14.23% of total Governmental
Activities revenue. Tax Increment Financing (TiF) districts generated $5.34 million or 97.97% of the
property tax. The variance in the above percentagss from prior years are due to the City no longer
levying property tax for Fire and Police Pension but instead using a portion of the City’s three
quarters of one percent increase in Home Rule Sales Tax to pay for those contributions. The property
tax generated by the TIF districts must be used for development or other eligible costs within the TIF
districts. Total revenues excluding special item and transfers increased by 4.78%. The net increase
was due to an increase in capital grant revenue, sales tax and intergovernmental revenue which
offset the decrease in property tax revenue and service charges and fees. The decrease in Charges
for Services was a result of certain City revenue producing facilities being shut down by the Covid-19
pandemic.

Expenses:

Total expenses decreased by $2.51 million from the prior year. $1.35 million of the net decrease was
due to a reduction in Culture and Recreation expense due to closure of facilities due to the pandemic.
Public Health and Safety decreased by $935 thousand due to reduction in GASB 68 pension
expense, Streets Alleys and Cemeteries expense decreased by $528 thousand due to a reduction of
TIF expenditures. Gross payroll and benefits for the City for the current year was approximately
54.93% of total expenditures. The City contributes to three different defined benefit pension plans
which are the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund, Pclice Pension Fund and the Firefighters Pension
Fund. See the Notes to Financial Statements for a detailed analysis of the various pension funds.

Business-type Activities
Revenues:

Charges for services decreased by $197 thousand. The $815 thousand in capital grants was the
forgivable portion of two lllinois Environmental Protection Agency loans on two water projects. Cther
line item increase was from the sale of the old City lake.

Expenses:
Total expenses decreased by $18 thousand over the prior year. The Water Department had a

decrease of $162 thousand and the Sewer Department had an increase of $144 thousand. The
decrease in the Water Department and increase in Sewer Department were due to various items.

14



CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

At April 30, 2021, the governmental funds (as presented on the balance sheet on page 20} reported a
fund balance of $ 22.62 million which is a 36.77% increase from the beginning of the year ($ 16.54
million.) The main portion of the net increase in the General Fund Balance was due to a combination
of $705 thousand dollars received in grant monies for prior year grant expenses and $388 thousand
collected on previous small business loans which were designated for Committed balance, $982
thousand collected from the increase in the home rule tax designated for economic development. An
increase in special revenue funds of $1.33 million was due to unspent motor fuel tax and unspent
Build lilinois Bonds totally $649 thousand and $836 thousand of the unspent portion of the home rule
sales tax committed to payment of future police and fire pension contributions. The main portion of
the increase in the capital project fund was the sale and transfer of the old city lake to the project
fund. $5.89 million is in unassigned general fund types indicating availability for continuing City
services. The $6.81 million in committed funds represents cash reserves which are set aside for

emergency situations.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City passes a Budget Ordinance as the means to provide legal authority to allocate funds to specific
spending activities. Transfers between line items within a department do not require Council approval. If
required, the City passes budget revisions to approve the spending of funds which were not anticipated.
The Budget Ordinance is on the cash basis of accounting.

The general fund budget was amended for $2.00 million in net increases. Capital Outlay had an increase
of $1.40 million $1.125 million of the increase was for the purchase of the Motel Marion.

Table 3
Budget Compared to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

(in thousands)
Originat Amended

General Fund Types Budget Budget Actual
Expenditures

General government $4,136 $4,430 $3,932

Public health and safety 9,641 9,800 8,689

Streets, alleys &

Cemeteries 3.463 3,463 3,437

Cultural and recreation 1,162 1,162 516

Development 761 0 958

Debt Service 273 283 272

Capital Outlay 551 1,946 2,055
Total $19,987 $21,989 $20,859
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CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Capital Assets

At the end of Fiscal year 2021, the City's Governmental Funds had invested $102 million, net of
depreciation (see Notes to Financial Statements #5} in a variety of capital assets and infrastructure as
reflected in the following schedule.

Table 4
Governmental Funds
Change in Capital Assets
(in thousands)

Balance Net Balance
April 39, Additions/ April 30,
2020 Deletions Transfers 2021
Non-depreciable Assets
Land 3 27,784 § 190 $ - 5 27,984
Construction in Progress 1,836 (399) (233) 1,204
Other Capital Assets
Infrastructure 73,120 1,630 - 74,750
Parking Lot improvements 538 25 - 563
Buildings 42,488 798 - 43,286
Machinery and Equipment 5,487 180 - 5,667
Vehicles 6,079 179 - 6,258
Software 171 28 - 189
Land Improvements 414 67 - 481
Less Accumulated Depreciation
on Other Capital Assets (55,744) {2,944) - (58,688)
Totals $ 102,183 § (246) 3 (233) § 101,704

Debt Outstanding

The City of Marion has an Aa3 rating with Moody's Ratings Service. As a home rule authority, the City
does not have a legal debt limit. As of April 30, 2021, the City had total long-term debt and loans
payable of $31.88 millicn. The schedule below does not include liabilities owed for accrued vacation,
pension and other post-employment benefits which are detailed on the Statement of Net Position on
page 18 and further explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Table 5
Changes in Long-Term Debt
{in thousands)
Balance Net Balance
April 30, Additlons/ April 30,
2020 Deletions 2021
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Debt $ 18,041 $ {2,474) $ 15,567
Cther Contractual Liabilities 8,791 {733) 8,058
Governmental Activities Total $ 26,832 $ (3.207) $ 23,625
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CITY OF MARION, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Activities
General Obligation Debt $ 4,072 $ {762) 3 3,310
Other Contractual Liabilities 3,500 1,440 4,940
Business Activities Total 3 7,572 678 8,250
Total Long-Term Debt 3 34,404 $ (2,528) $ 31,875

The City during the year incurred bank loans and a refunding of bond debt in the amount of $15.09
million while paying off $17.62 million in total debt. See Note 6 of Notes to Financial Statements for
additional detail.

Economic Factors

Economic factors continued on a positive pace as shown by unemployment numbers, increasing single-
family home and commercial building permits, and increasing consumer spending.

Unemployment over the fiscal year was driven by the pandemic and experienced a high of 17.7% in April
2020, and a low of 5.4% in November 2020. The 12-month unemployment average for the fiscal year was
5.07%, which is a slight increase over the previous fiscal year.

Commercial building permits increased in number but decreased in total investment with 38 permits issued,
totaling $10,696,941 while the previous year was 30 permits totaling $15,505,487. 36 new home permits
were issued, which was consistent to the previous year and there was 1 apartment/duplex building permit.
A total of 71 building permits were issued in the fiscal year which includes homes, apartments, additions,
and commercial buildings which is a decrease of 54% from the permits issued in the previous year
whereas, the total dollars invested in these buildings was $18,589,694 compared to previous year total of
$18,042,053.

This year showed modest economic growth in consumer spending, as measured by retail sales tax which
slightly increased over the previous fiscal year and continues a positive trend.

Most notable commercial projects in this fiscal year were Love's Truck Stop, Aldi remodel, Popeye's
Restaurant, Drive-In Theater, and Texas Roadhouse which is still in construction, and several existing
building remodels.

The city continues to be optimistic about economic activity, not only by ongoing interest in new
commercial sites, but also by current business expansions. Most notable business expansions were to
the Black Diamond family of businesses and their continued investment in retail expansion in Marion

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additionat financial information should be addressed to Steve Hale, City Treasurer,
City of Marion, 1102 Tower Square, Marion, IL 62959,
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Clty of Marlon, lllinols

Statement of Net Position
April 30, 2021
Governmoental Businass-type
Activities ___Bctivities Total
Axsats
Cash ard cash equivalents $ £,399.97% s 1,618,782 $ 8018758
Restricted cash 62285 1,748,526 1,810,821
Investments 8,812,839 793,650 10,606,585
Reslrctad investmenis 373820 - r3ewn
Recoivables, net
Accounts receivabla 61,805 562,841 624,748
Property laxes 6,475,004 . 6,475,004
Seles taxas 5,648,785 - 5,648,785
Other taxes 496,080 . 496,080
Accrued interast 396,285 - 396,285
Grert receivable 40,001 15,105 55,196
Loans recehvable 921,270 86,284 1,007,564
Bonds recelvable 1,772,327 - 1,772,327
Irergovernmental recaivatite 508,443 - 508,443
Bue from other funds 46,124 - 46,124
Inventory - 370,966 370,966
Prepaid ilems 5,350 . 5,350
Capital sssets, non~deprociable 20,187,785 5414217 34,602,002
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 72,516,774 24,816,325 97,333,099
Net pension asset - 155,656 155,656
Total Assots s 134,725,353 $ 35.5823362 3 170,307,715
Doferred Quitiows of Resources
Deferred cutfiows, penaions $ 5,181,408 -3 565421 H 5,746,829
Deferred outflows, other poslempicyment 10,250,761 1,757,429 12,008,590
Defemed outilows, debt refundting 124628 - 124,628
Total Defarred Gutflow of Resources 5 15,556,797 $ 2.323.250 $ 17.880.047
Llabliities
Atcounts payable 3 1,083,577 H 352,681 3 1,448,258
Property laxes payable 13,763 . 13,763
Accrnsed payroll 221.884 30,001 251,975
A d payroll relsted 182,438 . 192,438
Accrsed interest payable 10,939 17,522 28,461
Oue to olher funds - 46,124 48,124
Customer daposits - 570,598 &70,508
Dameage deposits €3.000 . 53,000
Uneamed revenue 181.288 . 161,288
Norcurrent liahiitas:
Due within ona year 5,527 652 1,175,565 6,703,517
D in mere then one year 18,690,193 7,148,827 25,840,020
Total QPER Hability 39,350,221 7.111,468 46,461,688
Net pansion kabilty 8,454,304 - 1,454,304
Yatal Liabilitias $ 73,801,559 H 16!553.876 $ ©0,355.435
Daferrad inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property laxes 5 5,475,004 $ . % 6,475,004
Deferred nflows, pensions 10,850,113 1,081,506 11,931,619
Total Defamed Inflows of Resources § 17326, 417 5 1,081,506 5 18,406,623
Mat Posttion
Net investment in capital assels g 82,452,446 $ 23,181,168 $ 105,633,614
Rastricted for:
Dorar restricted axpendtures 366,684 - 366,654
Public safely expenditures 1,861,703 - 1.861,703
Capita! projects 2,234,031 . 2,234,031
Debt service 1467475 268,160 1,755,674
Coametary 1BATT - 18,177
Maintenance of rogdways 1,673,342 - 1,673,342
Tourism and recraation 1,681 - 1,681
Development 2,236,953 - 2,236,993
Nenspendable 1.000 . 1,000
Unvestricted {deficit} {33.158,058) (3,199.137) {36.357.195}
Total Net Positlon 5 59.155.474 -] 20,270,230 $ 79,425,704

The roles to tha fi

s are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Marion, lllinols
Statement of Activitles

For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Granis Capital Grants
Charges for and and Governmental Businass-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities
General government 3 4,198,496 611,510 1,179,934 405,006 {2.002,046) $ (2,002,046}
Public health and safety 12,003,017 285,793 15,200 226,450 {11,475,574) (11,475,574}
Streets, alleys, and cemeteries 4,959,099 95,515 - 652,860 {4,210,715) {4,210,715)
Ctihture and recreation 3,987,435 BBB,126 66,088 - (3,043,221) {3.043,221)
Development 4,263,662 - - - {4,263 662) (4.263.662)
Interest expense 318,450 . - - (318,490) {318,490}
Unallocated depreciation 1,297,387 - - - (1,287,387) ;1.29?.3372
Total Governmental Activities 31,037,586 1,880,944 1,281,222 1,284,325 {26,611,095) (26,611.085)
Business-Type Activities
Water 3,387,490 3,764,438 - 800,000 1,176,948 1,176,948
Sewer 3,197,605 3,416,256 - 15,105 233,755 233,755
Total Business-Type Activities 6,585,006 7,180,604 - 815,105 1,410,703 1,410,703
Totals $ 37,622,682 ] §,061,638 $ 1,261,222 $ 5099.430 {26,611,095) 1,410,703 (25,200,392}
General Ravenues
Taxes
Property taxes 5,450,350 - 5,450,350
Sgles taxes 20,739,475 - 20,739,475
Cther taxes and franchise fees 3,741,881 - 3,741 881
Intergovernmenial 3,552,775 - 3.552.775
Invastment income 144,466 6,148 150,614
Miscellansous 248,204 52,980 301,184
Sale of capital assets - 403,647 403 647
Transfers 1,290,292 {1,290,292) -
Total Genaral Revenues, Transfars and Special Rems 35,167,443 {827,517) 34,339,926
Change in Nat Position 8,556,348 583,186 9,139,534
Net Position - Baginning of Year 50,599,126 19,687,044 70,286,170
Net Position - End of Year 59,155,474 3 20,270,230 3 79,425,704
==

The notes to the financia) statements are an integral par of this statement.
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City of Marion, Hiinols
Govermmental Funds
Balance Sheet
Aprll 30, 2021

Total
TIF Total Non-Major Governmental
General Radevelopment Debt Sarvice Funds Funds
Aggets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,004,233 3 576,650 -3 1,452 888 $ 2,365,205 $ 6,399,976
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 33,404 - - 28,891 62,295
Invesiments 6,335,380 500,089 . 2,977,490 4,812,939
Raeslricted investmenis 10,814 - - 363,106 373,920
Accounts receivable 51,390 - - 10,515 61,905
Property taxes receivable 100 5,994,219 369,250 111,435 6,475,004
Sales taves receivable 5,030,228 - - 618,557 5,648,785
Other taxes receivable 358,423 . - 137,657 496,080
Accrued interast recelvable 10,575 - - - 10,575
Grant receivable . - 15,761 - 24,230 40,091
Loans receivable 517,858 403,412 - - 921,270
inlergovernmental receivable 452,285 - - 56,158 508,443
Due from other funds 50,423 - - 65,941 116,364
Prepaid items - - - 5.350 5,350
Total Assets 3 14,855,113 3 7.480.111 $ 1,522,138 $ 6,765,635 3 30,932,997
Liabilitles
Accounts payable 5 495,630 3 240,481 3 - $ 359,406 $ 1,095,577
Property taxes payable - - - 13,763 13,763
Accrued payrol! 192,025 - - 29,859 221,684
Accrued payroll related expenses 192,438 - B - 192,438
Due to other funds 10,167 - - 60,073 70,240
Damage deposils 63,000 - - - 63,600
Unearned revenue 130.360 - 50,928 181,288
Total Liabilitles 1,083,680 240,481 - 514,029 1,838,180
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 100 5.994,219 369,250 111,435 6,475,004
Fund Balances
Nonspendable - B - 1,000 1,300
Restrictad for:
Donor restricted expenditures 13,232 - - 353,452 366,684
Public safety 28,741 - - 1,832,962 1,861,703
Capital projects - - - 2,234,031 2,234,031
Detd service - - 1,452,588 25,526 1478414
Cemetery - - - 18,177 18,177
Mafntenance of roadways - - - 1,673,342 1.673.342
Tourism and recreation - - - 63,049 63,049
Devefopment 981,582 1,255,411 - - 2,236,993
Committed 6,807 288 . - . 6.807,288
Assigned 50,561 - - - 50,561
Unassigned 5,889,929 - - {61,368} 5,828,561
Total Fund Balances 13,771,333 _1.255,411 1,452,888 6,140,171 22.619.803
Total Liabilities, Daferred Inflows, and
Fund Balances $ 14,855,113 3 7490111 3 1,822,138 ] 6,765.635 3 30,932,997

The notes o financial stataments are an integre! part of this statement.
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City of Marion, lllinois

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balances to the Governmental Activities in

the Statement of Net Position
April 30, 2021

Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Amounts reporied for governmental activities in
the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
not current financial resources and, therefore are not
reported in the governmental activities of the
governmental funds.

interest payable is recorded in the Statement of Activities
when incurred; these costs are recorded in governmental
funds as expense when paid.

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the curent
period and therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds, unamortized loss, and notes
payable are not due and payable in the current period and therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-term bonds receivable and the related accrued interest
receivable are not due and receivable in the current period and
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pansions and
OPEB Costs are not reported in governmental funds,

Net Pension Liability and Total OPEB Liability are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

$

22,619,803

101,704,559

(10,939)

(593,113}

(23,500,404)

2,158,037

4,582,056

(47,804,525)

$

99,155,474

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Ravenues
Property taves
Sales laxes
Other taxes and franchise fees
Licanses and permits
ntergovemmental revenue
Senvica chamges and fees
Grant mvenye
Investmeni income
Miscellaneous meome
Rastricted donations

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General govemment
Public health and safaty
Streets, lieys, and cemeteries
Culture and recreation
Dewelopment
Debt servies:
Principat
Intarest
Capita) outlay

Total Expendltures

Excens (Deficioncy) of Revenues Over
Expenditeres

Other Financing Sources [Uses)
Transfers in (out)
General long-term dabt issued
Refunding of dett
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Totzl Other Flnancing Sources (Uses)
Net Change [n Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Baginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

City of Marion, lllinols
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Total
TIF Total Non-Major Governmental

Genparal Redevalopment Dabt Servico Funds Funds
i 51 $ 5,339,801 3 68,792 $ 110,468 3 5,519,142
18,213,018 - - 2,526,457 20,739,475
2,609,994 - - 1,041,867 3,741,581
412,441 - - - 412,444
2,889,305 . - 663,470 3,662,775
537,968 - - 930,535 1,468,503
1,831,838 70,898 . 642,810 2,345,647
94,667 5,859 3.124 9,466 13,116
169,557 40,216 - 5,629 215,302
9.400 - . 4,502 13,902
26,855,239 5,456,805 71,916 5,936,124 38,322,084
4,006,638 - - 4,006,638
9,609,400 - 1,743 613 11,353,013
3,422,492 16,057 - 1,104,742 4,543,292
484,816 - - 2,471,386 2,956,202
829,106 2.579.475 - - 3,408,581
245183 708,182 14,462,562 350,918 15,806,845
27,161 - 566,073 33.885 627,124
2.405.294 528.919 - 1,520,434 4,454.647
21,030,080 3,832,633 15,028,640 7.264.979 47,156,342
5.828.148 1,624,172 (14.956.724) (1.329.855) {6,834,258)
{4,841,651) {1.076,535) 3,534,200 3,807,726 1,623,740
1,330,160 - - 450,355 1,780,615
- - 11,154,371 - 11,154,371
181,919 - - 275,000 456,919
{3,329,572) (1,076,535} 14,888,571 4.633.081 14,915,545
2,498,577 547,637 {268.153) 3,303,226 6,081,287
11,272,756 707,774 1,721,041 2,836,945 16,538,516
§ 13,771,333 $ 1,255,411 3 1,452,508 3 6,140 171 22,619,803

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this stetement.
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City of Marion, lliinois
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Govermnmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Net Change In Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 6,081,267

Amaunts reported for Govermmental Activities in the Statemen! of Acliviies
are different because:

Govemmental funds repor capital outlay as expenditures; however, they
are capilalized and depreciated in the Statement of Activities.
Depreciation expense {3.272.327)
Capital asset purchases, capitalized 4,454,647 1,182,320

Transfer of capiial assets reported as transfers in Statement of Activities,
not reparted as transfer in govermmental funds. (232,757}

The effect of various transaclions involving capital assets (sales, trade-ing,
and contributions) is to increase (decrease) nel assets. (1,428,042)

The et effect of transactions involving the lcan receivable on the Special
Service Area. {37.542)

Compensated absences are reported in the Statemant of Activities and Changes in
Nat Position, but does not require the use of cument financial resources.
Therefore, this accrued expense is not reported as an expenditure in 271,744
governmental funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not requise the use of
current financial resources and. therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in govermmental funds.
Increase in OPEB expense {2.008,608)
Decrease in pansicn expanse 1,569,462 {439,146)

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds loans leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principat of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neilher transaction, howaver has any efiect on net position. Also,
govermnmenta! funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first Issuad, whereas thase amounts are defarred and
amortized in the stalement of activities. [n the statement of activities, interest
is accrued on owtstanding bonds, wheraas in the governmental funds, an
interest expenditure is reporied when due. The follewing is the detall of the net
effect of these differences in the trealment of long-lerm debt and refated items:

Repaymant of long-term debt 15,606,844
nterest 4,283
Amortization of bond premium 335,817
Defemred amount on refunding {31.465)
Issuance of lcng-term debt (1.780.515)
Refunding of debt (11,154,371} 3,180,583

The Health Reimbursement fund is used by management to charge the costs of
health insurance reimbursements to individual funds. The net revenue

(expense) is reported with govermmental activities, (22,109)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 8,556,348
—_————a—a———

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Net Poattion
Proprigfary Funds
April 30, 2024
Govermnmental
Activities
Enterprise Funds Internal Sorvice
Watar Sewer Total Businoss- Health
Dopartment Department _Type Activitios Relmbursement
Assais
Current Assots:
Cash and cash aquivatents H 1,048,289 $ 570,493 L] 1,618,792 H -
Reslricted cash and cash equivalents 1,570,773 177,753 1,748,528 -
Investments 543,647 250003 793,850 .
Accounis receivable 204 540 279,301 562,641 .
Gram recelveble - 15,105 15,105 -
Loans recetvabla 86,294 - 85,204 -
Inventory 283710 B7.256 370,868 -
Total Currant Assets 3817253 1,378,911 5196,164 -
Nencurrent Assols:
Capiizl assets, non-cepreciable 5292716 121,501 5414217 -
Capfial assels, depreciable B8,709.614 15,108,711 24,818,325 -
Re! penslon asset 108,282 47,364 155,656 -
Total Noncurrent Assats 15,110,822 15,275,576 30,386,168 -
Tolz! Assats 18,927,875 18,654 487 35,582 362 -
Defarred Qutflows of Resourcas
Dt 1 oulfiows, [ i 254,680 310,73 585,421 -
Gran! revenve B78,755 1,075,074 1,757,829 -
Total Deforred Qutflows of Resources 833 445 1,266,805 2,323,250 -
Liabllitles
Current Liabllides:
Accounts payable 287 423 65,258 352,881 -
Actrued payroll 14,841 15,250 20,091 -
Accrued interes! payable 5,038 12464 17,522 -
Due to ofher funds 4,558 37,158 46,124 -
Compensated absences 36,250 39,755 76,014 -
Customer deposils 870,558 - 670568 -
Bonds payable 225,148 558,264 763,412 -
Notes payable 168,560 223,593 392,153 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,416,835 51,760 2,368,585 -
Noncurrent Liabilites:
Bonds payable 1473610 1,052,727 2,526,337 -
Hotas payable 2256110 2,201,366 4,547 476 -
Tolal QPEB liability 2840318 4,262,150 7.111.468 -
Total Non-Curreni Llabl)itlos 8,579,038 7,606,243 14,185,281 -
Total Liabllilon 7,995,073 8,558.003 18 563 876 -
Deafarred Inflows of Resources
Deferred mflows. pansions 517,075 564 431 1,681,506 -
Toial Defi d Infh of R 517,075 564 411 1,081,506 -
Nat Poskion
tnvested In capiial assets, nel of relited dabt 12,076,508 11,102,260 23,101,188 -
Restrictad for:
Dabl sarvice 110,446 177,753 280,199 -
Unrestricied {840.982) {2,358 155} 13,196,137 -
Total Net Positfon $ 11,348,372 $ 8,921 858 $ 20,270,230 5 -
The notes to the financial are an integral part of this statement.

Clity of Marton, (tinols
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Operating Revenues
Service charges and fees
Miscellaneous income

Totel Operating Revanues

Operating Exponses
Perscnnel services
Coniractual services
Utilities
Repairs and mamtenance
Cther supplies and expenses
Insurance cfaims and expenses
Water purchases
Dapraciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Incoma (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses)

Investment income

Grant revenue

Rental income

Bond premivm amertization
interest expense

Sale of caphtal assets

City of Marion, lllinols

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expansas and Changes In Fungd Net Fosition
For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Total Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses}

Income {Loss} Belore Transfers and Capltal
Contibutlons

Transfers in {out)

Capital contributions

Total Transfors and Capital Contributions

Change in Not Posltion
Net Position, Beginning

Not Position, Ending

Governmental
Activitios
Enterprise Fundsg Internal Service
Tota) Businass-Type Hoalth
Water Departmant Sawer Dopartment Activities Reimbursemeont
$ 3,764,438 $ 3,416,256 3 7,180,694 B
27412 16,223 43,635 6
3,791,830 3.432479 7,224,325 [
865,667 980,498 1,846,166 -
50417 48,935 68,352 B
80,409 287,619 368,028 -
158,139 384,888 543,027 .
68,531 381,633 450,164 -
299,253 371,448 £70,702 .
1,415,649 . 1.415,649 -
408.626 679,566 1,068,192 -
3,346,691 3,134,569 6,481,280 -
445,159 297,850 743,040 8
3,746 2,402 6.148 -
800,000 15,105 815,105 -
9,345 - 9,345 -
5.031 32,314 37,345 -
(52.881) {109,805) {162,586) -
402,797 850 403,647 -
1,167,938 {58,934) 1,108,004 -
1,613,087 238,956 1,852,053 6
(1,500,912) (13,137 {1,523,049) 691}
232,757 - 232,757 -
{1.277,155} {13,137) (1,280,292} {691)
335,042 225,818 561,761 {685}
11,012,430 8,666,039 19,708,468 685
$ 11,348,372 $ 8,921,858 $ 20,270,230 -

The notes Lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Marion, lilinois

Propristary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended April 30, 2021
Govemmental
Activities
Entarprise Funds Intemnal Service
Watar Sowor Total Buainess- Health
Department Dopartment Typo Actlvitios Reimhureement
Cash Flows from Oparating Activities
Recoipts from customers L 3 3.734,796 $ 3,429,754 5 7.164,550 $ L
Payments to employess {835,984) {B47 459) {1.683,483) -
Payments to suppliars of goods end services {2,129,307) {1,784,140) (3,913,447} -
Not Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitien 769,505 758,115 1,567,620 6
Cash Fiows From Nencapital Financing Activities
Net operating trensfers {1,249 078) 103,104 (1,145,974) (362)
Proceeds from capital grants 800,000 15,105 815,105 -
Neot Cash Provided {(Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities {445.078) 118,209 {330,859} {362)
Cash Flows from Ceplial and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,538,937 850 1,539,787 -
Interest paid on capital debt (53,342) {110,548} (163,850) -
Purchase of capital assets {1,722,4580) (274.422) {1,995,912) -
Principal paid on capital debt (220,031} (729.769) {949,800} .
Bond premium amsrization 5011 - 5,00 -
Proceeds from tong-tarm debt 1,573,498 - 1,573,488 -
Net Gash Provided (Usod) by Capital and Relatad
Financing Activitios 1,121,603 {1.113.869) 7714 -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Intarest on investments 3746 2402 6,148 -
Rental incame, net 9345 . 8345 -
Nat Cash Provided (Used) by Invoating Activities 13,001 2402 15,493 -
Increase {Decreasa) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,455,121 {185,163) 1,259,658 {356)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,682,819 1,193,442 297623 356
Change From [Investment to Cagh {518.878) {250,003} (768 881) -
Cash and Cash Equivalents &t End of Year 5 2619062 $ 748,246 3 3367 308 - -
Reconclllation of Operating Income {Loag) 10 Net Cagh
Provided (Usod) by Operating Actlvitles
Oparating income ({loas) $ 445 159 -] 257,880 3 743 D49 $ -]
Adjustments to recancile eperating income {i08s) 1o net
cash provided {used) by operating ectivities:
Depreciation 408,626 679.566 1,088,192 -
{Increase) decrease in accounis receivable 5,861 {2.725) 3,136 -
{tncroase) decraase in inventones (73.512) 16,768 (56,743) -
{increase) decrease in defemad outifows {269,941) {523.465) {793,406) .
increase {decrease) in custemer deposits 22733 - 22,739 -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 53,024 {200,150} (147,1286) -
Increase (decrease)} in acocnied payroll {42.442) (40,897) {83,338) -
Increase (decraase) in deferred revenue 5616 5616
Increase {decrease) in totzl OPEB tiability 440,750 793,861 1.234.711 -
Increase (decrease) in net pengion liabllity {284,078) {275,634) {563.712) .
Increase (decrease) in defermed inflows 57,703 56,800 114,503 -
Total Adjustiments 324,248 500,225 824.5M1 .
Ngt Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities S 7168505 s 798,115 $ lse7620  § [

The notes to the Rnancial statemenl are an integral part of this stalement.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Fiduciary Fund Types
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
April 30, 2021

Pension Trust

Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 895,016
Accrued interest receivable 72,502
Investments -
U.S. Government and agency cohligations 7,433,994
Corporate bonds 3,038,078
Insurance company contracts 811,456
Mutual funds 8,802,632
Stocks 1,494,185
State and local obligations 257,099
Exchange traded funds 10,940,128
Payroll receivable 47,129
Total Assets 33,752,219
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3225
Payable from purchases of investments 452,365
Total Liabilities 455,580
Net Position
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 33,336,629

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Marion, Illinois
Fiduciary Fund Types

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Additions

Contributions:
Employer
Plan members

Total Contributions

Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments

Interest and dividends
Investment expense

Net Investment Income
Total Additions
Deductions

Benefits paid

Refunds of contributions

Administrative expense
Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, Ending

Totals

$ 1,691,152
420,772

2,111,824

7,044,457
748,837
(50,045)

7,743,249

9,855,173

1,776,547
52,298
52,183

1,881,028

7,974,145

25,362,484

$ 33,336,629

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2021

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City's accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units.

A. Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated on February 24, 1841 and operates under an elected
Mayor/Council form of government. The City's major operations include public safety, fire
protection, street maintenance, recreation, and general administrative services.

The City's reporting entity includes the City's governing board and all related
organizations for which the City exercises oversight responsibiiity.

The City has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities
which benefit the citizens of the City should be included within its financial reporting entity
or as a component unit. The criteria include, but are not limited to, whether the City
exercises oversight responsibility (which includes financial interdependency, selection of
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal matters), scope of public services, and special
financing relationships.

The City's financia! statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for staie and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required to
follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements to its governmental activities. The City also has business-type
activities and proprietary funds on which to apply the proncuncements. The Police
Pension Fund and Fire Pensicn Fund have been included as fiduciary component units
reported as a Pension Trust Fund. The Police Pension Fund functions for the benefit of
the City's sworn police employees and is governed by a five-member pension board.
Two members appointed by the Mayor, two elected police officers, and one elected
beneficiary consfitute the pension board. The Fire Pension Fund functions for the
benefit of the City's sworn firemen and is governed by a five-member pension board.
Two members appointed by the Mayor, two elected firemen, and one elected beneficiary
constitute the pension board. The City and the Police Pension Fund participants are
obligated to fund all the Police Pension Fund costs based upon actuarial valuations,
including administrative costs. The City and the Fire Pension Fund participants are
obligated to fund all the Fire Pension Fund costs based upon actuarial valuations,
including administrative costs. The State of lllinois is authorized to establish benefit
levels and the City is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of the contribution levels. Accordingly, the Police Pension Fund and Fire
Pension Fund is fiscally dependent on the City. Separate financial statements are not
available for the Police Pension Fund and Fire Pension Fund. The significant accounting
policies established in GAAP and used by the City are described below.

29



City of Marion, lllinois
Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2021

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
B. Basic Financial Statements

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as
a whole} and fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the
government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either
governmentai or business-type. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental tevenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The City's
government-wide activities include both governmental and business-type activities.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about
the City as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column (a)
is presented on a consolidated basis and (b) is reported on a full accrual, economic
resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as
long-term debt and obligations. Interfund receivables/payables resulting from short-term
interfund loans are eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. The
City's net position is reported in four parts - invested in capital assets, net of related debt;
restricted net assets; non-spendable; and uorestricted. The City first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities. This government-wide focus is more on the
sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City’s net position resulting
from the current year's activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the City's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service,
program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered
by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the
extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the City.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmentai funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Fund Financiai Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered
a separate accounting entity. Funds are organized into three major categories:
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governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The operations of each fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
balance, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpeses for which they
are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than
reporting funds by type. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of
the City or meets the following criteria:

(a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for
all funds of that category or type; and

(b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total
for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and
presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

The following fund types are used by the City:

Governmental Fund Types - These are the funds through which most governmental
functions typically are financed. The funds included in this category are as follows:

General Fund Types - The General Fund and the Semi-Autonomous Departments
(Cultural and Civic Center, Senior Citizens Council, Boyton Street Community Center,
Revitalization, and Economic Incentive) are the general operating funds of the City. They
are used to account for all financial resources devoted to financing the general services
that the City performs for its citizens, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are established to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts and major capital projects) that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The City’s special revenue
funds are the Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Fund, the Road and Bridge Fund,
the Motor Fuel Tax Fund, the Gas Tax Fund, Foreign Fire Insurance Fund, the Pavilion
Fund, the HUB Recreation Center Fund, the Special Revenues - Police Fund, Carnegie
Library Fund, Property Tax Fund and Goddard Chapel Restoration Fund.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is established for the purpose of accumulating resources
for the payment of long-term debt including capital lease obligations, principal and
interest other than those payable from Enterprise Funds.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is established to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by Enterprise Funds).

Proprietary Fund Types - These funds account for operations that are organized to be
self-supporting through user charges. The fund included in this category is the Enterprise
Fund.
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Enterprise Funds - These funds are established to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the
intent is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Internal Service Fund — These funds are established to account for services and
commodities fumished by a department of the City to other departments within the City.

Fiduciary Fund Types - These funds account for assets held by the City as a trustee or
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other units of governments. These funds
are as follows:

Pension Trust Funds - These funds were established to provide pension benefits for City
police and fire employees. The principal revenue source for this fund is employer and
employee contributions. The financial statements presented for these funds, the
Statement of Plan Net Position and Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position, are not
consistent with conventional basic financial statements.

Custodial Funds - This fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of
operations or have a measurement focus. The agency fund is accounted for using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The City does not currently have an agency fund.

Maijor and Non-major Funds:

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Fund Brief Description
Major Governmental:
General Fund Types Accounts for financial resources devoted to

financing the general services that the City
performs for its citizens.

Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment

Fund Accounts for revenues and expenditures
providing tax incentives related to the
development, redevelopment, and
rehabilitation of real property within the TIF

Debt Service Fund: districts.

Debt Service Fund
Accounts for the payment of long-term debt

principal, interest and related costs.

Major Proprietary:

Water Accounts for activities related to providing
water service to the citizens of the City.,

Sewer Accounts for activities related to providing

sewer service to the citizens of the City.
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Non-major governmental:
Permanent:
Throgmorton Endowment Fund

General Projects Fund

Special Revenue Funds:
Road and Bridge Fund

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

Gas Tax Fund

Foreign Fire Insurance Fund

Special Revenue Police Fund

Pavilion Fund

HUB Recreation Center Fund
Goddard Chapel Restoration Fund
Carnegie Library Fund

Property Tax Fund
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Accounts for the revenues and expenditures
to maintain the Throgmorton gravesite.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures to
acquire and construct major capital facilities.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of
improving roads and infrastructure,

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures
of improving roads and infrastructure as
authorized by Illinois Department of
Transportation.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of
improving roads and infrastructure and other
expenditures determined by the council.

Accounts for revenues received from the
Nlinois Municipal L.eague and the
corresponding expenditures of that money.
The money shall be used for the
maintenance, use, and benefit of the fire
department,

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures
received from 911 fees, DUI fees, vehicle
impound fees, and drug enforcement
income. The money shall be used for public
health and safety purposes as determined
by Hlinois State Statute.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of
the City's event center.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of
the City's recreation center.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of
maintaining Goddard Chapel.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of
the City's library.

Accounts for revenues received from home
rule saies tax. The money shall be used for
employer contributions to the police and
firefighters pension funds.
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Non-major Proprietary:

Internal Service Accounts for reimbursements to City
employees and certain retirees to cover
medical claims for deductibles over $500.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures are recognized
in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to
the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual

The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements are presented
on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred.

The accrual basis of accounting is also utilized by the proprietary funds. Under this
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred. The accrual basis of accounting is followed for presentation of
assets of the Pension Trust Funds. Liabilities pertaining to benefits payable or refunds
payable are presented on the modified accrual basis, with remaining liabilites presented
on the accrual basis of accounting.

Modified Accrual

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both “measurable” and “available.” Revenues are
considered “available’ when they are collectitle within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilites of the current period. The City considers revenues to be
‘available” as they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal petiod
except for sales tax and telecommunication taxes which are 90 days. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as ali eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider are met,

Taxes (excluding property taxes), licenses, charges for services and interest associated
with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and are
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal
and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when paid.
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D. Annual Budget Ordinance

The City Council annually passes a budget ordinance which includes all fund types using
the cash basis of accounting which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
generally accepted accounting principles. Each fund's budget is prepared on a detailed
line item basis. Expenditures are budgeted by department and class as follows: salaries
and benefits, services and charges, supplies, capital outlay, debt service. All unexpended
budgetary items lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cash on deposit with financial institutions that can be
withdrawn without prior notice or penalty. Cash equivalents include short term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of 80 days or less. For purposes of proprietary
fund statement of cash flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents totaled $3,367,308
at April 30, 2021.

Separate bank accounts are not maintained for all City funds. Certain funds maintain their
uninvested cash balances in a common checking account, with accounting records being
maintained to show the portion of the common bank account balance attributable to each
participating fund.

F. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Cash deposits are reported at carrying value which
reasonably estimates fair value.

G. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by
the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.

Bad debts of the General Fund are accounted for by the allowance reserve method in
recognizing bad debt expense. This method better matches the cost of operating the fund
with revenues of the fund and is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

H. Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method, and consists of expendable
supplies held for consumption for governmental funds and the proprietary funds.
Reported inventories of governmental funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve
which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable resources.

|. Due To and Due From Other Funds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by
all funds affected in the period in which transactions are executed. Interfund receivabies
and payables are eliminated in the government-wide statement of net position.

35



City of Marion, lllinois
Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2021

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
J. Restricted Assets

Enterprise funds and debt service funds are required to establish and maintain prescribed
amounts of resources (consisting of cash and temporary investments) that can be used
only to service outstanding debt. Carnegie Library, Senior Citizens, Boyton Street, and
Civic Center are required to establish and maintain prescribed amounts of resources
(consisting of cash and temporary investments) that can be used only for
donor-designated purchases.

K. Capital Assets

The City is required to spread the cost of its capital assets over the assets’ useful lives.
These capital assets include land, buitdings, and related equipment. The depreciation
expense amounts charged to each of the functions are in the statement of activities.

The City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than
one year are stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government
wide financial statements. The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with
all other capital assets.

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported
at historical or estimated historical cost, including all ancillary charges necessary to place
the asset in its intended location and condition for use. Infrastructure projects with a cost
of $100,000 or more are also reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets requires
measurement at acquisition value (an entry price). Additions, improvements and other
capital outlays that exceed $15,000 for building improvements, $10,000 for land
improvements, $50,000 for water and sewer line improvements, and $10,000 for
software, and which significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.
Depreciation on all assets is calculated using the straightline method. The estimated
useful lives of assets are based on local government suggested basis, past experience,
or other reliable sources. Useful lives typically will not exceed fifty (50) years. The
following estimated useful lives are used for depreciation purposes:

Infrastructure 15-40 years
Buildings and improvements 16-50 years
Furniture and equipment §5-20 years

Property, plant and equipment acquired for proprietary funds is capitalized in the
respective fund to which it applies.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Assets acquired by gift or bequest are
recorded at their acquisition value at the date of transfer.

Depreciation of exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an
expense against operations, and accumulated depreciation is reported on the proprietary
funds’ balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method of depreciation applied to the cost of each class of
property, plant and equipment. Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets of
the Water and Sewer departments are as follows:
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Buildings and grounds 15-76 years
Improvements 15-75 years
Machinery and equipment 5-15 years
Water and sewer lines 50-75 years

L. Compensated absences

For the City as a whole, benefit pay is accrued for benefits earned but not taken at Apri!
30, 2021. Unused vacation time cannot be carried over to subsequent years with the
exception of the Police Department.

Police Department officers may carryover up to 40 hours of vacation to the first two
months of the next year or six months of the next year if preapproved vacation has been
cancelled by the employer. The City aliows employees to accumulate unused sick leave
to a maximum of 1,920 hours, for all except police officers and firefighters which is 1200
hours. Sick leave will be paid upon iliness while in the employment of the City. This sick
leave program also includes an annual buy-back provision upen the meeting of certain
requirements, and is not paid upon termination except for police officers and firefighters
which can be paid up to 600 hours of accumulated sick time upon retirement after 20
years of service. As of April 30, 2021, the liability for sick leave is $2,318,127.

M. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary
fund type financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reporied net of the applicable bond
premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

N. Net position and fund balance classifications
Government-wide Statements
The government wide net position is classified into the following four categories:

a) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b) R_estricted net position - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use
either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
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regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legistation.

c} Unrestricted net position - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital asset, net of related debt”, or “non-spendable.”

d) Nonspendable - Consists of assets that cannot be spent because they are either (a)
not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually to be maintained intact.

Fund Statements
The governmental funds’ fund balance is classified into the following categaries:

a) Nonspendabie fund balances include amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form, such as inventories, or are legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.

b) Restricted fund balances are those that have externally imposed restrictions on their
usage by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws
and regulations.

¢} Committed fund balances are self-imposed limitations that the City's Council
approved, which is the highest level of decision-making authority within the City. Only
the Council can remove or change the constraints placed on committed fund
balances.

The City's policy is to maintain a reserve balance at minimum level equal to or greater
than 25% of the General Fund current year budgeted expenses including transfers
from the General Fund less capital outlays supported by specific revenue sources.

d} Assigned fund balances are resources constrained by the City's intent to be used for
specific purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed. Unassigned fund
balances are the residual classification for the general fund and includes all
spendable amounts not reported in the other classifications. Also, deficits in fund
balances of the other governmental funds are reported as unassigned.

0. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It alsg includes all
revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing,
or investing activities.

P. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The deferred amount on debt refunding is recognized
as a deferred outflow, and the related expense will be amortized to future periods.
Additionally, the City has deferred outflows related to pension and other postemployment
benefits to be recognized in future periods and for pension contributions made after the
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measurement dates. In addition to fliabilities, the statement of financial position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenues) until that time. The City reports unavailable/unearned property
taxes in this category. The City also reports deferred inflows related to pensions.

Q. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 — Deposits and Investments

The City and Pension Funds categorize the fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based
on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the assel. Level 1 inputs are
quoted prices on active markets for identical assets. Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Permitted Deposits and Investrnents — The City's investment policy allows for deposits and
investments in interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposits, any other
investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the lllinois Banking Act,
bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities which are
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States, bond, note indentures or similar
obligations held by an agency of the United States, State of lllinois Public Treasurer's
Investment Pool and the lllincis Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET).

The pension trust fund's investment policies aliows for the same investments as the City
plus investments in general and separate accounts that are managed by life insurance
companies with certain restrictions, corporate bonds with certain restrictions, common
stocks listed on a national securities exchange or board of trade, and mutual funds which
meet certain restrictions.

A, Deposits
Primary Govemment Statement of
Govemnmental  Business-Type Fiduciary
Activities Activilies Total Net Position Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6360976 § 1618782 $ 8018758 § 885016 § 8,913,772
Restricted Cash and Cash

Equivalents 62,2095 1,748,526 1,810,821 - 1,810,821
Investments 9,812,939 793,650 10,606,589 32,777,572 43,384,161
Restricted Investmants 373,820 - 373,520 - 373,920

Total Cash and Investment % 16640130 § 4160958 §_ 20810088 § 33672588 § 54,482,676
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Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits
might not be retumed to it. The City's general investment policy requires all amounts
deposited or invested with financial institutions in excess of any insurance limit shall be
protected using one of two methods. The first method is a) collateralization with securities
eligible for City investment or any other high-quality, interest bearing security, b) the
second method is using an irrevocable letter of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Chicago. The market value of the pledged securities shall equal or exceed the
portion of the deposit requiring collateralization.

At April 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the City's deposits with financial institutions,
which includes demand deposits, savings accounts, and certificates of deposit, was
$10,692,670 (excludes $31,925 in cash on hand held at the City). The bank balance was
$17,231,459. As of April 30, 2021, none of the City's bank balances (certificates of
deposit, checking, and savings accounts) were exposed to custodial credit risk.

During the year ended April 30, 2021, the depository banks used by the City had pledged
$1.419,432 in federal securities by U.S. Bank to secure the City's deposits in excess of
the amounts insured by the FDIC. The pledged securities are held by the pledging
financial institutions' trust department or agent in the City's name.

The City also had a $11,225,000 irrevocable letter of credit issued by the Federal Home
Loan Bank to cover deposits held by First Southern Bank,

B. Investments

The llinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the State of lllinois, Office of the
Treasurer, which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment
purposes. lllinois Funds is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but
does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. Investments in Hlinois Funds are valued at lllinois Funds’ share price, the price for
which the investment could be sold.

The lllinois Investment Fund (IMET) is a nonprofit investment trust formed pursuant to the
lllinois Municipai Code and managed by a Board of Trustees elected from participating
members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The IMET
Convenience Fund is not rated. Investments are valued at the fund’s share price, the
price for which the investment could be sold.

As of April 30, 2021, the City, including pension trust funds, had the following investments
and maturities:
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Investment Maturities (In Years)

Moody's

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 15 6810 More Than 10 Rating
Mutual funds § BB02632 $ 8802632 $ - % - % - N/A
Common stocks 1,615,192 1,615,192 - - - NiA
Municipal bonds 257,099 - 257,089 - - AAZ-A2
Federal Natipnal Mortgage
Association 441,120 - - 79623 361,497 AAA
Federal Home Loan Morigage
Corp. 85,890 - - 35,921 49 969
United States Treasury 6,906,984 415,370 4,776,923 1,714 691 - N/A
Insurance contracts - Fixed 811,456 - 811,456 - - NIA
Illinois Funds Money Market 9,376,652 9,376,852 - - - MN/A
Corporate Bonds 3,038,078 119,741 1,842,084 1,076,253 - AAA-BAAJ
Exchange traded funds 10,940,128 10,940,128 - - - NIA
IMET 1,482,850 1,482,850 - - - NIA
Total $ 43758081 § 32752565 § 7687562 § 2906488 § 411466

All of the investments listed above, except for lllinois Funds Money Market and IMET, are
valued using Level 1 inputs,

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways
the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by structuring the investment
portfolio so that securities mature {0 meet cash requirements for ongoing operations.

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to interest Rate Risk

The City's investments include the following investments that are highly sensitive to
interest rate fluctuations:

Highly Sensitive Investments Fair Value
Federal agency securities. Some of these securities are subject to early

payment in a period of declining interest rates. The resultant reduction in

expected total cash flows affects the fair value of these securities and

makes the fair values of these securities highly sensitive to changes in

interest rates. $ 527,010

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. The City minimizes its exposure to credit risk by
limiting its investments to the safest types of securities; by pre-qualifying the financial
institutions, brokers/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers which the City will do business;
and by diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
securities will be minimized.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investment
in a single issuer. Disclosures are required for any issuer that represents 5% or more of
total investments, exclusive of mutual funds, exchange-traded funds, external investment
pools and investments issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government. The investment
policy of the City contains a 50% limitation on the amount that can be invested in any one
issuer, with the exception of U.S. Treasury securities and the fllinois Public Treasurers

Investment Pootl.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that an investment denominated in the currency of a
foreign country could reduce its U.S. dollar value, as a result of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. The City had no foreign currency risk as of April 30, 2021,

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, (e.g.,
broker-dealer) to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
City's investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the
exposure to custodial credit risk for investments, other than the following provision for
investments: a list will be maintained of financial institutions authorized to provide
investment services. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved security
broker/dealers selected by creditworthiness who maintain an office in the State of lllinois.
These may include primary dealers or regional dealers that qualify under Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net capitat rule). The policy also
states that, at the request of the City, the firms performing investment services for the
City shall provide their most current audited financial statements and or their most current
Consclidated Report of Condition (call report) for review. At year end, none of the City's

investments were subject to custodial credit risk due to one of the following:

Investments were part of an insured poof

. Investments were book-entry only in the name of the City and were fully
insured

) Investments were part of a mutual fund

) Investments were held by an agent in the City's name

. Investments which are secured by an imevocable letter of credit with the
FHLB of Chicago.

Note 3 — Restricted Assets

Governmental Funds

Senior Marion
Permanent Pavilion Citizens Camegie  Community
Fund Fund General Council Library
Cash $ - $ 25526 % 30991 § S 3365 §
Certificates of deposit 1,957 - - 10,814 361,149
Total § 1957 § 25626 § 30991 § 10814 § 364514 § 2413

42



City of Marion, [llinois
Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2021

Note 3 — Restricted Assets (Continued)

Restricted assets of the General Fund represent restricted grant monies which are restricted
as to the type of expenditures allowed.

Restricted assets of the Library and Senior Citizens Council represent donations received in
which the principal and sometimes the eamnings of these assets are restricted as to the type
of expenditures allowed.

Restricted assets of the Boyton Street Community Center Fund represent a scholarship fund
in which these assets are restricted as to the type of expenditures allowed.

Restricted assets of the permanent fund is for the upkeep of the Bamett and Throgmorton
grave lots in the Rose Hill Cemetery.

Enterprise Fund

Water Department  Sewer Department

Cash $ 1570773 $ 177,753
Restricted assets of the Water Department is for debt service, capital improvements, and
ESCrow.

Restricted assets of the Sewer Department are for debt service.
Note 4 — Property Taxes

The City's property tax is levied as of January 1 each year on the assessed value listed as
of the prior January 1 for all real property in the City. The County Clerk's Office determines
necessary tax rates and extends the taxes based upon the equalized assessed values.
Assessed values are established by the County Assessment Board at 33 1/3% of assumed
market vaiue.

Property taxes are due in two installments, the first installment is normally due in August and
the second installment is due in October. Interest, at a maximum of 1 1/2% per month
attaches to delinquent taxes. There is not a specific lien date, however, any property with
taxes still delinquent are subject to the property tax sale which is normally held in
December.

Property taxes are recognized as revenue when they become available to finance
expenditures. This occurs when the taxes have been coflected. Accordingly, assessed but
uncollected taxes are reported in the City's financial statements as receivables fully offset by
deferred revenue accounts.

The 2019 assessed valuation for property taxes collected in fiscal year 2021 in the City of
Marion was $342,807,730 and in the Tax Increment Funds were $74,992,939. The tax levy
for 2019 which represents the property taxes collected in fiscal year 2021 was 0.00002 per
$100 assessed valuation.
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Note 6§ — Capital Assets
The following is @ summary of changes in the capital assets for the fiscal year:

Beginning
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Delelions Transfers Ending Balance
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land $ 27794344 § 1685539 § (1,396192) § - § 27,983,601
Construgtion in Progress 1,836,334 1,261,334 {1,690 817) {232 757) 1,204,084
Total capital assets not
being depreciated ——rB 630678 2876873 _  (3.087.009) 2327 — 29,187,785
Capital assets being
depreciated:
Land improvemenis 414,180 67,300 - - 481,480
Parking lot improvements 537.579 25,000 - - 562,579
Office equipment 566,795 52684 - - 572,088
Fixed mechanical
equipment 1,918,132 - - - 1,918,132
Major moveable equipment 3.001.433 363,593 {188,554} - 3,176,472
Vehicles 6,078,850 359,530 (180,035} - 5,258,345
Railroad improvements 610,953 - - - 610,953
Mall infrasiructure 19,157 897 - - - 19,157,897
Buildings 42,488,451 797,257 - . 43,285,708
Streets 40,096,451 1,607,674 . - 41,704,125
Bridges 946,386 - - - 948,385
Storm sewers 3,762,769 - - . 3,762,769
Sidewalks 2,655,327 - - . 2,658,327
Fleod control projects 5,050,469 - - - 5,050,469
Streat lights 694,469 22424 - - 716,580
Traffic lights 145,694 - - - 145,694
Software 170,060 29,250 . . 199,310
Ti S in:
e jated 128,295 885 3277.019 {368,589) - 131,204,325
Less accumulated depreciation
for:
Land improvements 238,758 24,314 - - 263.072
Parking lot improvements 185,561 31,789 . - 217,350
Office equipment 421,280 23,254 - - 444 534
Fixed mechanical
equiptnent 1,151,847 117,740 - - 1,269,587
Major moveable equipment 1,958,601 214,342 (163.647) - 2,005,286
Vehicles 3,865,325 472,710 (164,664) - 4,173,371
Rallroad improvements 450 487 15,273 - . 474,760
Mall infrastructure 19,157 897 - - - 19,157,897
Buildings 10,627,745 1,076,357 - - 11,704,112
Streets 13,368,600 928,063 - - 14,286,653
Bridges 524 555 23,680 . - 548,215
Storm sewers 1,005,854 95,790 - . 1,101,654
Sidewalks 438,273 88,461 - . 526,734
Flood conirol projects 2,013,304 101,009 . - 2,114,313
Street lights 170,200 35,553 . - 205,753
Traffic lights 5,464 7.285 - - 12,749
Software 150,774 16,717 - - 167,491
T mytal
depreciation — 55743535 3,272,327 (328311} . 58,687 551
al 1
depreciated, net 72 552,360 4,692 {40.278) - 72,516,774
mmental activiti itz
ssels, e 102183038 § _ 2AB1SAS § (3127287) § _(232757) § 101704550



City of Marion, lilinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

April 30, 2021

Note 6 — Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 104,162
Public health and safety 563,420
Streets, alleys and cemeteries 321,828
Cultural and recreation 985,530
Unallocated 1,297 387
Total governmental activities depreciation expense § 3272327
Beginning
Buslness-type activities: Balance Additions Detetions Transfer Ending Balance
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land 3 3544128 3 24129 § - $ - $ 3,568,257
Construction in progress 893.011 1,899.070 {946,121) - 1,845,960
Yolal capital assels not
being depreciated 4,437 139 1,923,199 {946,121 - 5414217
Capital assets being
depreciated:
Land improvements 65,505 - - - 65,505
Structures 2,982,865 - (184,560) . 2,798,305
Bulldings 18,764,039 - . - 18,764,039
Fixed equipment 3,183,227 77.470 {302,156) - 2,958,541
Equipment and machinery 1,283,914 5,199 {140,604) - 1,148,509
Trucks ard tractors 1,380,299 68,513 {27,589) - 1.421,223
Transmission and
distribution systems 15,404,340 635,886 (2,669,797) 232,757 13,603,196
Lift stations 1,148,834 - - - 1,148,834
Total capital assels
ing de| jated 44,213,123 787,078 (3,324 706} 232757 41,908 252
Less accumulaled deprecialion
for:
Land improvements 31876 3,112 - - 34,768
Structures 953,344 60,191 (163,088) - 850,447
Buildings 8,684,369 448,523 - - 9,142,892
Fixed equipment 992,867 100,885 {203,195) - 890,567
Equipment and machinery 940,283 52,646 {168,938) - 823,99
Trucks and tractors 1,038,840 83,700 {27,588) - 1,094,952
Transmission and
distribution systems 4,800,951 294 688 {1,625,756) - 3,469,883
Lift stations 739970 44,437 - - 784,407
ula
depreciation 18,192,300 1,088,192 {2,188 565) - 17.081.927
Total capital assels being
depreciated, net 26,020,823 {68,357} {1.136.141} 282 757 24.816.325
Business-type activilies capital
assets, net § 30457862 £ 1629085 % _ (2.089263) § 232 757 $___ 30230542
Business-type activities:
Water $ 408,626
Sewar 679,566
Total b activities depreciation expense k) 1068 182
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt
Legal Debt Margin

The City of Marion, (llinois is a home rule municipality. Under the lllinois Compiled Statutes,
a home rule govermnment may issue notes and bonds in excess of any statutory limitation
and they shall not reduce the debt incurring power otherwise authorized for any such unit of
government. Therefore, the City of Marion, Illincis has no legal debt limitation.

Changes in Long-Term Debt for Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of iong-term transactions of the City's governmental activities for
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2021:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Addittons Reductions Balance Cne Year
General Obligation Bonds-
Pavilion Bonds, series
2011 $ 540,165 $ - 3 212991 § 327174 § 221,558
GO Bonds, series 2014 3,230,000 - 280,000 2,940,000 300,000
GO Bonds, series 2013 2,625,000 - 2,625,000 - -
GO Bonds, series 2012 8,720,000 - 9,720,000 - -
GO Bonds, series 2011A 700,000 - 345,000 355,000 355,000
GO Bonds, series 2019 642,084 - 99,562 542 522 102,430
GO Bonds, series 2020 - 10,000,000 - 10,600,000 -
GO Bonds, series 2020A - 802,000 - 802.000 902,000
Subtatal 17,457,249 10,902,000 13,292,553 15,066,696 1,880,988
Add - Premium on bonds 584,028 252 371 335,817 500,582 27,377
Total Bonds Payable 18,041,277 11,154,371 13,628,370 15,567,278 1,808,365
Other Liabilities -
Capital Lease Payable 516,822 - 120,097 396,725 106,527
Notes Payable 8,274,624 1,780,615 2,384,210 7,661,029 3,513,060
Compensated Absences 864,860 - 271,747 593,113 -
Total OPEB Liability 31,452,335 7.897,886 - 39,350,221 -
Net Pension Liability 16,072,930 - 7.618,626 Bas430d4 _ 0000 -
Taotal Other Liabilities 57,181,571 9,678,501 10,404 680 56,455,392 3,619,587

Total Long-Term Debt § 75220848 § 20832872 § 24033050 § 72022670 § 5527952

For governmental activities the General Fund makes payments on the compensated
absences, OPEB liability and net pension liability.

The City's outstanding bonds and notes payable from direct borrowings related to
governmental activities are $1,771,696 and $7,661,029, respectively. There are no special
provisions to these issues. In regards to the notes payable, $2,682,665 of the debt has
specific collateral attached to it.

On October 29, 2020 the City completed a current refunding (Exempt General Obligaticn
Bond - Series 2020) of the remaining $9,720,000 of the Exempt General Obligation Bond -
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Series 2012 and $380,000 of the Exempt General Obligation Bond - Series 2013. The
current refunding will increase cash flow over the life of the new bond by $833,550. The
economic gain on the refunding was $817,998.

On November 17, 2020 the City completed a current refunding (Taxable General Obligation
Bond - Series 2020A) of the remaining $902,000 of the Exempt Generat Obligation Bond -
Series 2013 The current refunding will increase cash flow over the life of the new bond by
$18,536. The economic gain on the refunding was $18,445.

General Obligation Bonds payable at April 30, 2021, are comprised of the following
individual issues:

General Obligation -

The City issued $3,115,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,

Series 2011A, to pay off prior Special Service Area Bonds, dated May

19, 2011, due in annual principal installments ranging from $275,000 to

$355,000 through January 1, 2022; interest rate is variable from 2.25%

to 3.80%. $ 355,000

The City issued $2,200,000 Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, to

refund prior pavilion bonds, dated June 21, 2011 due in monthly

installments of $19,208 through October 21, 2022; interest rate is fixed

at 3.95%. 327,174

The City issued $4,520,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014, for
capital projects, dated December 23, 2014, due in annual principal
installments ranging from $200,000 to $850,000 from November 1, 2015

through November 1, 2026; interest rate is variable from 2.00% to
4.00%. 2,940,000

The City issued $10,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020,

for capital projects, dated October 29, 2020, due in annual principal

installments ranging from $745,000 to $1,330,000 from November 1,

2022 through November 1, 2032; interest rate is variable from 1.00% to

2.00%. 10,000,000

The City issued $902,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2020A, for capital projects, dated November 17, 2020, due in November
1, 2021; interest rate is 0.75%. 802,000

The City issued $745,000 General Obligation TIF Series 2019 Bonds, to
pay off prior General obligation bonds Series 2007, dated August 08,
2018 due in annual principal installments ranging from $99,562 to

$114,754 through October 18, 2025; interest rate is fixed at 2.88%. 542 6522
General Obligation Bonds payable 15,066,696
Add: Premium on bonds 500,582
Total $ 15567278
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt (Continued)

As of April 30, 2021, $1,478,414 is available in Debt Service Funds to service General
Obligation Bonds and one note payable.

Debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending April 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 $ 1,880,988 $ 288,036 $ 2,169,024
2023 1,855,996 243,152 2,099,148
2024 1,948,418 212,218 2,160,636
2025 1,981,540 180,889 2,162,429
2026 1,599,754 163,297 1,753,051
2027-2031 4,325,000 323,269 4,648,269
2032-2033 1,475,000 29.650 1.504.650
Total § 15066606 § 1430511 $ 16.497.207

Notes payable at April 30, 2021 are comprised of the following individual notes:

a) 0.00% note payable to lllinois Dept. of Transportation for
engineering services for Morgan Street Overpass in monthly
instaliments of $2,500 through April 27, 2014 and then changing
to annuai instaliments of $80,000 through April 27, 2025. $ 360,000

b)  0.00% note payable to lllinois Dept. of Transportation for single
point interchange ramps in monthly instaliments of $50,000
through October 12, 2015 and then changing to annual
instaliments or $618,182 through October 12, 2025. 3,709,091

c)  1.700% note payable to Chase to refund General Obligation
Refunding Bonds Series 2005, dated September 15, 2005 for
annual instaliments from $698,000 to $1,406,000 beginning
September 15, 2016 through September 15, 2021.

1,406,000
d)  3.690% note payable to First Southern Bank for a police vehicle in
monthly instaliments of $2,048 beginning December 30, 2018
through November 30, 2021. 14,168

e) 3.080% note payable to Banterra Bank for laptops in police
vehicles in monthly instaliments of $2,189 beginning July 24, 2018
through June 24, 2021, 4,360

f)  3.240% note payable to First Southern Bank for a code
enforcement vehicle in monthly instaliments of $414 beginning
March 8,2019 through February 8, 2022, 4,083

g)  3.680% note payable to First Scuthern Bank for an EMA vehicle in
monthly instaliments of $482 beginning December 30, 2018
through November 30, 2021, 3,335

h)  3.690% note payable to First Southern Bank for a mosquito
abatement vehicle in monthly installments of $347 beginning
December 30, 2018 through November 30, 2021, 2,397
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt (Continued)

i)

)

k)

P)

Q)

s)

t

Total

3.690% note payable to First Southern Bank for a Cemetery Dept.

vehicle in monthly instaliments of $838 beginning December 30,
2018 through November 30, 2021.

3.240% note payable to First Southern Bank for two Caterpillars
for MFT Dept. in monthly installments of $3,258 beginning
September 30, 2018 through August 30, 2023,

3.240% note payable to First Southern Bank for a truck for MFT
Dept. in monthly installments of $994 beginning December 30,
2018 through November 30, 2021.

2.75% note payable to Bank of Herrin for Police Department in
monthly installments of § 3,177 beginning February 16, 2020
through January 16, 2023.

3.24% Note Payable to First Southern Bank for HUB Fitness EQ
in monthly installments of $ 2,195 beginning November 16, 2018
through October 16, 2022.

2.77% Note Payable to First Southern Bank for Police Department
in monthly instaliments of § 2,032 beginning May 03, 2020
through April 3, 2023.

2.25% Note Payable to Banterra Bank for Gas Tax Fund (Street
Department) in monthly installments of § 3,818 beginning March
10, 2020 through February 10, 2025.

1.80% note payable to First Southern Bank for police cars in
monthly installments of $ 2,606 beginning October 28, 2020
through October 30, 2023,

2.10% note payable to First Southern Bank for police cars in
monthly installments of $ 1,897 beginning September 8, 2020
through September 15, 2023.

2.25% note payable to First Southern Bank for Kubota and
attachments in monthly instafllments of $ 1,388 beginning June 22,
2020 through June 30, 2023,

1.50% $10,0600,000 Line of Credit with Banterra Bank beginning
June 1, 2020 through May 31, 2021.

2.50% note payable to First Southem Bank for construction loan
beginning January 12, 2021 through January 15, 2032.
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending April 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 $ 3,513,060 $ 40905 § 3,553,965
2023 1,372,672 5,612 1,378,284
2024 793,134 1,620 794,754
2025 745,799 388 746,187
2026 618,182 - 618,182
2027 618,182 - 618,182
Total § 7661029 § 48525 § 7700584

Leases payable at April 30, 2021 are comprised of the following individual leases:

a)  2.125% lease payable to U.S. Bancorp for Ford F250 in monthly
installments of $635 beginning November 1, 2017 through

October 1, 2022. $ 10,629
b) 2.125% lease payable to U.S. Bancorp for 2017 International tfruck
in monthly installments of $3,099 beginning November 1, 2017
through October 1, 2022. 51,842
c}  2.366% lease payable to Government Leasing for 2 fire trucks in
monthly instaliments of $5,821 beginning May 18, 2016 through
May 18, 2026. 334,254
Total Leases Payable $ 396725
Debt service requirements to maturity for leases payable are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending April 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 106,527 $ 8134 $ 114,661
2023 82,683 5.840 88,523
2024 65,652 4,201 69,853
2025 67,222 2631 69,853
2026 68,830 1,023 69,853
2027 5811 12 5,823
Total g 396,725 § 21,841 § 418,566

The City also has $10,000,000 line of credit of which $1,125,000 has been used.
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Changes in Long-Term Debt for Business Type Activities
The foliowing is a summary of the City's business-type activities for the fiscal year ended

April 30, 2021:
Beginning Ending Due Within
Business-Type Activities Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
General Obligation Bonds -
GO bonds, series 2014 $ 2025000 B - 3% 510000 % 1515000 % 525,000
GO refunding bonds
sefies 2017 1,870,000 - 215.000 1,655,000 220,000
Subtotal 3,895,000 - 725,000 3,170,000 745,000
Add - Premium on Bonds 177.094 - 37,345 138,748 38,412
Total Bonds Payable 4,072.094 - 762,345 3,308,749 783412
Other Liabilities -
Lease Payable 15,471 1,200,000 6,305 1,209,166 118,110
Note Payable 3,484,135 951,990 705,662 3,730,463 274,043
Compensated Absences 113,428 - 37.414 76,014 -
Total OPEB Liability 5,876,757 1,234,711 - 7,411,468 -
Net Pension Liability 408 056 - 408,056 - -
Total Other Liabilities 9,897 847 3,386,701 1,157,437 12,127,111 392 153

Total Long-Term Debt $ 13960941 R 3386701 § 10919782 § 15436860 3 1175565

The City’s outstanding notes payable from direct borrowings related to business-type
activities of $3,730,463 are secured with specific collateral for each borrowing.

Enterprise Funds bonds payable at April 30, 2021, are comprised of the following individual
issues:

Generai Obligation Bonds:

$4,575,000, Series 2014 to refund IEPA loan, dated December 23,
2014, due in semiannual installments ranging from $165,000 to

$280,000 through May 1, 2024; interest is variable from $2.0% to 4.0%. ¢ 1:515.000
$2,295,000, Series 2017 for refunding of Series 2008 bonds, dated

October 13, 2017, due in semi-annual installments ranging from

$210,000 to $255,000 through October 15, 2027; interest rate is variable

from 2.0% to 3.0%. 1,655.000
General Obligation Bonds Payable 3,170,000
Add: Premium on bonds 139,749
Net Enterprise Funds Bonds Payable $ 3300749

As of April 30, 2021, $288,199 is available in water and sewer funds to service general
obligation honds and IEPA loans.
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt {Continued)
Changes in Long-Term Debt for Business Type Activities
The following is a summary of the City's business-type activities for the fiscal year ended

April 30, 2021:
Beginning Ending Due Within
Business-Type Activities Balance Additions Reductions Balance Onhe Year
General Obligation Bonds -
GO bonds, series 2014 $ 2025000 % - 3 510000 § 1515000 $ 525,000
GO refunding bonds
series 2017 1,870.000 - 215,000 1,655,000 220,000
Subtotal 3,885,000 - 725,000 3,170,000 745,600
Add - Premium on Bonds 177,004 - 37,345 139,749 38.412
Total Bonds Payable 4,072,094 - 762,345 3309749 783412
Other Liabilities -
Lease Payable 15,471 1,200,000 6,305 1,209,166 118,110
Note Payable 3,484,135 951,990 705,662 3,730,463 274,043
Compensated Absences 113,428 - 37414 76014 -
Total OPEB Liability 5,876,757 1,234,711 - 7,111,468 -
Net Pension Liability 408,056 - 408,056 - -
Total Other Liabilities 9 B97.847 3,386,701 1,157,437 12,127,111 392,153

Total Long-Term Debt $ 13960941 § 3386701 $ 1919782 § 15436860 § 1175565

The City's outstanding notes payable from direct borrowings related to business-type
activities of $3,730,463 are secured with specific collateral for each borrowing.

Enterprise Funds bonds payable at April 30, 2021, are comprised of the following individual
issues:

General Obligation Bonds:

$4,575,000, Series 2014 to refund IEPA loan, dated December 23,
2014, due in semiannual instaliments ranging from $165,000 to

$280,000 through May 1, 2024; interest is variable from $2.0% to 4.0%. ¢ 1:515.000
$2,295,000, Series 2017 for refunding of Series 2008 bonds, dated

Qctober 13, 2017, due in semi-annual instaliments ranging from

$210,000 to $255,000 through October 15, 2027; interest rate is variable

from 2.0% to 3.0%. 1,655,000
General Cbligation Bonds Payable 3,170,000
Add: Premium on bonds 139,749
Net Enterprise Funds Bonds Payable $ 3,308,749

As of April 30, 2021, $288,199 is available in water and sewer funds to service general
obligation bonds and IEPA loans.
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Debt service requirements for general obligation bonds payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending April 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 $ 745,000 $ 93575 § 838,575
2023 770,000 69,225 839,225
2024 675,000 42 100 717,100
2025 235,000 24,088 259,088
2026 240,000 18,150 258,150
2027-2028 505,000 15,225 520,225
Total £ 3170000 $ 262363 $ 3432363

Enterprise Fund notes payable at April 30, 2021, are comprised of the following individual
notes payable:

A. 2.90% note payable to First Southern Bank for Rolling Hills sewer
system improvements, in monthly instafiments of $6,270 beginning
July 30, 2017 through June 30, 2027. $ 423,856

B. 0.000% note payable to the State of illinois for water-line
replacements, in semi-annual instaliments of $12,189 beginning
October 15, 2011 through October 15, 2030. 231,583

C. 1.25% note payable to the State of lllinois for N.E. sewer-ine
extension, in semi-annual installments of $33,675 beginning June
11, 2013 through May 11, 2033. 777,144

D. 1.25% note payable to the State of lllinois for sewer plant
renovation, in semi-annual instaliments of $59,128 beginning
November 8, 2013 through November 8, 2032. 1,313,958

E. 2.21% note payable {o the Siate of illinois for water-line
replacements, due in semi-annual installments ranging from $13,490
to $16,158 including interest through December 15, 2035. 401,758

F. Initial disbursement by State of lllinois Environmental Protection
Agency for water main loop and high service pump installation. 366,600

G. 1.50% note payable to the State of lilinois for elevated water storage
tank improvements, in semi-annual installments ranging from
$4,330 to $6,333 beginning November 15, 2021 through May 15,
2041, 215.564

Total $ 3,730,463
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Note 6 — Legal Debt Margin and Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Debt service requirement to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending April 30 Principai Interest Total
2022 $ 274,043 $ 50,204 $ 324,247
2023 311,723 50,806 362,529
2024 307,796 45,887 353,683
2025 312,816 40,866 363,682
2026 317,940 35,742 353,682
2027-2031 1,353,299 114,513 1,467,812
2032-2036 709,885 37,290 747,175
2037-2041 137,793 7,767 145,560
2042 5,168 47 5215
Totals £ 3730463 $ 383122 $ 4113585

Enterprise Fund lease payable as of April 30, 2021 is as follows:
A. 2.125% lease payable to US Bancorp for 2017 Ford F250, due in
monthly installments of $548 including interest through October 1, 2022 § 9,166

B. 1.582% lease payable to {JS Bancorp for water tower due in
semi-annual installments of $65,108 tax exempt beginning July 13, 2021

through January 13, 2031 ___1.200.000
Total $_1.209.166
Debt service requirement to maturity for lease payable is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending April 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 $ 118,110 $ 18,676 $ 136,786

2023 116,172 16,781 132,953

2024 115,247 14,969 130,216

2025 117,077 13,138 130,215

2026 118,936 11,279 130,215
2027-2031 623,624 27 451 651,075

Total $ 1,209,166 $ 102,284 § 1,311,460

Note 7 — Lease Obligations

The City is obligated under certain leases accounted for as operating leases. Operating
leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligations, and therefore, the results of
the lease agreements are not reflected in the City's asset or liability accounts. The City also
has recorded capitalized leases for the purchase of certain items. See Note 6 for additional
information.
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Summary;
Net Pension Liability
Net Pension Liability is reported in the accompanying statement of net position as follows:

Net Pension

Liability/{Asset)

ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund $ (1,046,221)
Fire Pension Fund 3,715,192
Police Pension Fund 5628677
Total Aggregate Net Pension Liability $ 8298648

Deferred Inflows and QOuiflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows and Qutflows of Resources are reported in the accompanying statement of
net position as follows:

Net Net
Differences Differences
Between Between
Expecied & Projected and
Actual Employer Actual Changes in
Experience  Contributions Earnings Assumptions
lilinois Municipal
Retirement Fund $ (13,585) $ 216,947 § (2,505,895) % (98,838)
Fire Pension Fund {(57,255) - (1,494,182) 220,871
Police Pension Fund (770.468) - 1,725,283 42 899
Totals $ _(841308) § 216947 § (5725360) § 164,932

Pension Expense
Pension expenses are included in the accompanying statement of activities as follows:

Pension

Expense
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund $ (437,778)
Fire Pension Fund 345,830
Police Pension Fund 582,042
Total Pension Expense $ 490,094
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)

IHinois Municipal Retirement Fund

A. Plan Description

The City's defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and
disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The City's plan is managed by the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund
(IMRF), the administrator of a multi-employer public pension fund. A summary of IMRF's
pension benefits is provided in the “Benefits Provided” section of this document. Details
of all benefits are available from IMRF. Benefit provisions are established by statute and
may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of lllinois. IMRF issues a
publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial
statements, detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position, and
required supplementary information. The report is available for downioad at www.imif.org.

Benefits Provided

IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the
Regular Plan {RP). The Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) pian is for sheriffs,
deputy sherifis, and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County
Official (ECO) plan for officials elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed
to new participants after that date).

All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are
eligible for Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they
have at least eight years of qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age
55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at full benefits) with eight years of service are
entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payabie monthly for life, in an amount equal to
1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for
each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of
earnings. Final rate of eamings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48
months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is
increased by 3% of the original amount on January 1 every year after retirement.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2
employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who
retire at age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of
service are entitied to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount
equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2%
for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of
earnings. Final rate of eamings is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive
months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is
increased on January 1 every year after retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser
of.

o 3% of the original pension amount, or
» 1/2 of the increase in the Consurner Price Index of the original pension amount.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:
As of December 31, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

IMRF
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 102
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 64
Active plan members 140
Total — 306

Contributions

As set by statute, the City’s regular plan members are required to contribute 4.5% of their
annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount
necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its
own employees. The City's annual contribution rate for calendar year 2020 was 9.04%.
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2021, the City contributed $580,220 to the plan. The
City also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement
benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF levei. Contribution rates for disability and
death benefits are set by IMRF's Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement
benefits rate is set by statute.

B. Net Pension Liability

The City's net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2020. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

C. Actuarial Assumptions
Mothods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability at December 31, 2020

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets

Price Inflation 2.25%

Salary increases 2.85% t0 13.75%

Investment Rate of Return 7.25%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to

the type of eligibility condition. Last updated for the
2020 valuation pursuant to an experience study of
the period 2017-2019.
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Mortality For non-disabled retirees, the Pub-2010,
Amount-Weighted, below-median income,
General, Retiree, Male {(adjusted 106%) and
Female (adjusted 105%) tables, and future
mortality improvements projected using scale
MP-2020. For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010,
Amount-Weighted, below-median income,
General, Disabled Retiree, Male and Female
(both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality
improvements projected using scale MP-2020.
For active members, the Pub-2010,
Amount-Weighted, below-median income,
General, Employee, Male and Female (both
unadjusted) tables, and future mortality
improvements projected using scale MP-2020.

D. Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return to
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table as of December 31, 2020:

Long-Term
Portfolio Expected

Target Real Rate of
Asset class Percentage Return
Equities 37.00% 5.00%
International Equities 18.00% 6.00%
Fixed Income 28.00% 1.30%
Real estate 9.00% 6.20%
Alternative Investments 7.00% 2.85-6.95%
Cash Equivalents 1.00% 0.70%

Total 100.00%
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E. Single Discount Rate

A Single Discount Rate of 7.25% was used to measure the total pension liability. The
projection of cash flow used to determine this single discount rate assumed that the plan
members' contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expecied rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that
the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation
bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve)
as of the measurement date (to the extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net
position is not sufficient to pay benefits).

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan
investments is 7.25%, the municipal bond rate is 2.00%, and the resulting single discount
rate is 7.25%

F. Changes in the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Plan Fiduciary  Net Pension
Total Pension  Net Position (Asset) Liability

Liability (a) {b} (a} — (b)

Balances at December 31, 2019 $ 20001,063 § 28432016 3% 1,469,047
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 651,066 - 651,066

Interest on the Total Pension Liability 2,128,698 - 2,128,698

Differences Between Expected and Actual

Experience of the Total Pension Liability {102,736) - (102,736)

Changes of Assumptions {272,871) - (272,871)

Contributions—Employer - 567,142 (567,142)

Contributions—Employee - 286,524 (286,524)

Net Investment Income - 4,087,305 {4,097,305)

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of

Employee Contributions {1,730,486) {1,730,486) -

Other (Net Transfer) - (31,546) 31,546

Net changes 673,671 3,188,939 (2,515,268)
Balances at December 31, 2020 $ 30574734 $ 31620955 3 _ {1,046221)
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G. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the plans net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount
Rate of 7.25%, as well as what the plan's net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher
{6.25%) {7.25%) (8.25%)
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) § 2598476 $ (1,046,221) $ (3,863,041)

H. Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended April 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $(437,778). At
April 30, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of
Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions resources resources

Deferred Amounts to be Recognized in Pension Expense in
Future Periods

Differences between expected and actual experience $§ 491428 § 505013
Changes of assumptions 376,421 475,259
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 1,339 316 3,845 211
Total Deferred Amounts to be recognized in pension expense in

future petiods 2,207,165 4,825 483
Pension Contributions made subsequent to the measurement

date 216.947 -
Total Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions $ 2424112 $ 4825483

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Net Deferred inflows of
Year Ending December 31 Resources
2021 $ (960,636)
2022 (358,570)
2023 (870,359)
2024 (388,036)
2025 {40.677)
Total $ (2618,318)
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Fire Pension Fund

A_ Plan Description

Fire-sworn personnel are covered by the Fire Pension Plan which is a defined benefit
single-employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the
defined benefits as well as the employee and employer contribution levels are mandated
by Illinois Compiied Statutes (40 ILCS 5/4-1) and may be amended only by the lilinois
legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. The Fire Pension
Board consists of five members. Two are elected by active plan members. One is elected
by the retired members and two are appointed by the City. At April 30, 2021, the Fire
Pension Plan membership consisted of;

Active members 25
Retirees and beneficiaries 16
inactive, Non-retired members 1
Total S

The Fire Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. The Fire Pension Plan now has a two Tier coverage. Tier 1 coverage is for
Firefighters employed prior to January 1, 2011. Tier 2 coverage is for Firefighters
employed after December 31, 2010. Tier 1 employees attaining the age of 50 or more
with 20 years of creditable service are entitled to receive a monthly benefit of 1/2 the
monthly salary attached to the rank held in the fire service at the date of retirement. Tier 2
employees must attain the age of 65 or more with 10 years of creditable service to
receive a monthly benefit computed by multiplying 2.50% for each year of service
completed by the finail average salary (as defined in the statutes). Tier 1 employees with
at least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service may retire at or after age
60and receive a reduced benefit. Tier 2 employees attaining the age 50 with 10 or more
years of creditable service may retire with a reduced benefit. The maximum pension
under Tier 1 or Tier 2 is 75% of the computed salary. The monthiy benefit of Tier 1
employees who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1877 shall be
increased annually following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon -
reaching the age of 55 years by 3% of the original pension and 3% compounded annually
thereafter. The monthly benefit of Tier 2 employees shall be increased on January 1st
occurring either on or after the attainment of age 60. Each annual increase shall be the
lesser of 1/2 of the Consumer Price Index-Urban or 3% of the original pension.
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Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the Fire
Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of
service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated
interest. The City is required to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled
actuary. Effective July 1, 2011, the City has unti} the year 2040 to fund the plan in an
amount sufficient to bring the total assets of the fire pension fund up to 90% of the total
actuarial liabilities. For the year ended April 30, 2021, the City's contribution was 42.04%
of covered payroll.

B. Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of April 30, 2021. The total pension
liability used to caiculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date.

C. Actuarial Assumptions
Methods and Assumptions Lised to Determine Total Pension Liability and Contribution Rates

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year smoothed market, no corridor for contribution
determination

Salary increases Graded by age from 6.3611% to ultimate of 2.6220%

Payroll Growth 3.50% per year

Investment Rate of Return 6.75% per year

Retirement Age Graded by age

Tier 1 - 10% at 50 to 100% at age 65
Tier 2 ~ 3% at 50 to 100% at age 65

Mortality RP 2014 Base Rates with Blue Collar Adjustment
Projected to 2021 with Scale MP 2020

D. Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Every year Marion Fire Pension’s investment advisor develops 10 year capital market
assumptions. The capital market assumptions on plan investments reflect market-implied
equilibrium returns combined with Marion Fire’s investment advisor's subjective views
using a technique known as the Black-Litterman method. These returns are then used in
robust stochastic analysis to produce the 10 year expected median nominal rate of return
for each asset class in which the Pension is invested. This creates rolling 10 year
expected returns that can fluctuate as expected market conditions change. Marion Fire's
target allocations are then combined with the average expected return for each asset
class to calculate a long-term expected annual return of the Pension.
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Long-Term
Portfolio Expected
Target Real Rate of

Asset Class Percentage Return

US Large Cap Equity 17.50% 8.75%
US Mid Cap Equity 11.00% 7.75%
US Small Cap Equity 7.00% 8.25%
international Developed Equity 13.50% 8.30%
International Small Cap Equity 4.50% 9.10%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.00% 11.15%
Real Estate Investment Trusts 5.50% 8.00%
Fixed Income (Investment Grade Only) 35.00% 1.95%

Total 100.00%

E. Single Discount Rate

A Single Discount Rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability. The
projection of cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the
plan members’ contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that
the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation
bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve)
as of the measurement date (to the extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net
position is not sufficient to pay benefits).

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan
investments is 6.75%, the municipal bond rate is 2.12%, and the resulting single discount
rate is 6.75%.
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F. Changes in Net Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary  Net Pension
Total Pension Net Position (Asset) Liability

Liability (a) (b) {a) — (b)

Balances at April 30, 2020 g 18091649 $ 11871810 § 6119.738
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 416,887 - 416,887

Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,193,766 - 1,193,796

Differences Between Expected and Actual

Experience of the Total Pension Lizbility 432,935 - 432,935

Changes of Assumptions 11,817 - 11,817

Contributions—Employer - 673,801 {673,801)

Contributions—Employee - 159,422 {159,422)

Net investment Income - 3,626,759 {3,626,759)

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of

Employee Cantributions (749,145) (749,145) -

Other (Admin. Expenses) (16.971) {16,971} -

Net Changes 1,286,319 3,693,866 {2,404 547)
Balances at April 30, 2021 $ 19380968 $ 15665776 § 3715192
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 80.83%

G. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the plan's net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount
Rate of 6.75%, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher
(5.75%}) {6.75%) (7.75%)
Net Pension Liability 5 6,559,679 $ 3716182 % 4,395,959

H. Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended April 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $345,830. At
April 30, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources reiated to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of
Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions resources resources
Deferred Amounts to be Recognized in Pension Expense in
Future Periods

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 382601 § 439,856
Changes in assumptions 220,871 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 758,930 2253112
Total Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions $ 1362402 § 2692968
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Net Deferred Inflows of

Year Ending April 30 Resources
2022 $ (288,445)
2023 (293,885)
2024 (304,328)
2025 (548,529)
2026 14,749

Thereafter 89,872

Total $ (1,330,566)

Police Pension Fund

A. Plan Description

Police-sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan which is a defined benefit
single-employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the
defined benefits and the employee and employer contribution levels are governed by
lllinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1) and may be amended only by the lllinois
legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. The Police Pension
Board consists of five members. Two are elected by active plan members. One is elected
by the retired members and two are appointed by the City. At April 30, 2021, the Police
Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Active members 40
Retirees and beneficiaries 24
Inactive, Non-retired members 2
Total - 66

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. The Police Pension Plan now has a two Tier coverage. Tier 1 coverage is for
policemen employed prior to January 1, 2011. Tier 2 coverage is for policemen employed
after December 31, 2010. Tier | employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 years
of creditable service are entitled to receive a monthly benefit of 1/2 the monthly salary
attached to the rank held in the police service at the date of retirement. Tier 2 employees
must attain the age of 55 or more with 10 years of creditable service to receive a monthly
benefit computed by muitiplying 2.50% for each year of service completed by the final
average salary (as defined in the statutes). Tier | employees with at least 8 years but less
than 20 years of creditable service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced
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benefit. Tier 2 employees attaining the age 50 with 10 or more years of creditable service
may retire with a reduced benefit. The maximum pension under Tier 1 or Tier 2 is 75% of
the computed salary. The monthly benefit of Tier 1 employees who retired with 20 or
more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually following the first
anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of 55 years by 3% of
the original pension and 3% compounded annually thereafter. The monthly benefit of Tier
2 employees shall be increased on January 1st occurring either on or after the attainment
of age 60. Each annual increase shall be the lesser of 1/2 of the Consumer Price
Index-Urban or 3% of the original pension.

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police
Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of
service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated
interest. For the year ended April 30, 2021, the City's contribution was 38.93% of covered
payroli,

A separate report on the police pension fund may be obtained at the City Clerk's office in
City Hall.
B. Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of April 30, 2021. The total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuariat valuation
as of that date.

C. Actuarial Assumptions
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability and Contribution Rates

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year smoothed market, no corridor

Salary Increases Graded by age from 7.3611% initially to uitimate rate of
3.622%

Payroll Growth 3.50% per year

Investment Rate of Return 6.76% per year

Retirement Age Graded by age
Tier 1 - 15% at 50 to 100% at age 65
Tier 2 — 5% at 50 to 100% at age 65

Mortality RP 2014 Base Rates with Biue Collar Adjustment
Projected to 2021 with Scale MP 2020
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D. Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Every year Marion Police Pension’s investment advisor develops 10 year capital market
assumptions, The capital market assumptions on plan investments reflect market-implied
equilibrium returns combined with Marion Police's investment advisor's subjective views
using a technique known as the Black-Litterman method. These returns are then used in
robust stochastic analysis to produce the 10 year expected median nominal rate of return
for each asset class in which the Pension is invested. This creates rolling 10 year
expected retuns that can fluctuate as expected market conditions change. Marion
Police’s target allocations are then combined with the average expected return for each
asset class to calculate a long-term expected annual return of the Pension.

Long-Term
Portfolio Expected
Target Real Rate of

Asset Class Percentage Return

US Large Cap Equity 17.50% 6.75%
US Mid Cap Equity 11.00% 7.75%
US Small Cap Equity 7.00% 8.25%
international Developed Equity 13.50% 8.30%
International Small Cap Equity 4.50% 8.10%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.00% 11.15%
Real Estate investment Trusts 5.50% 8.00%
Fixed Income (Investment Grade Only) 35.00% 1.95%

Total 100.00%

E. Single Discount Rate

A Single Discount Rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability. The
projection of cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the
plan members’ contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that
the plan's fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation
bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve)
as of the measurement date (to the extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net
position is not sufficient to pay benefits).

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on pian
investments is 6.75%, the municipal bond rate is 2.12%, and the resulting single discount
rate is 6.75%.
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F. Changes in Net Pension Liability

Net Pension

Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary (Asset) Liability

Liability (a) Net Position {b} {a) — (b)

Balances at April 30, 2020 $ 22282774 § 13390574 §$ 8892200
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 767,261 - 767,261

Interast on the Total Pension Liability 1,464,611 - 1,464,611

Differences Between Expected and Actual

Experience of the Total Pension Liability (114,210) - (114,210}

Changes of Assumptions 15,008 - 15,008

Contributions—Employer - 1,017,351 (1,017,351)

Contributions—Employee - 261,350 {261,350)

Net Investment Income - 4,116,492 (4,116,492)

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of

Employee Contributions {1.079,701) {1.079,701) -

COther (Admin. Expenses) {35212) {35212} -

Net Changes 1,017,757 4,280,280 (3,262 523)
Balances at April 30, 2021 $ 23300531 § 17670854 3 __ 5628677
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 75.84%

G. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount
Rate of 6.75%, as well as what the plan's net pension liability would be if it were

calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher

(5.75%) (6.76%) (7.75%)

Net Pension Liability $ 8,941,459 § 5620677 $ 2,927,336

H. Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions

For the year ended April 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $582,042. At
April 30, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

outflows of inflows of
Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions resources resources
Deferred Amounts to be Recognized in Pension Expense in
Future Periods
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1062051 § 1,8325619
Changes in assumptions 42,899 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 855 366 2.580.649
Total Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions $ 1960316 & 4.413168
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
refated to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Net Deferred Inflows of

Year Ending April 30 Resources

2022 3 {(416,695)
2023 (401,727)
2024 {408,604)
2025 (689,141)
2026 (47,721)
Thereafter (488.964)
Total 3 (2.452.852)

Note 9 — Deferred Compensation Plan

Employees of the City of Marion, Illinois may participate in a deferred compensation plan
adopted under the provisions of Internai Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred
Compensation Plans with Respect to Service for State and Local Governments).

The deferred compensation plan is available to all employees of the City. Under the plan,
employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and avoid paying taxes on the
deferred portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred compensation amount is not
available for withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency.

The deferred compensation plan is administered by the City. Under the terms of an IRC
Section 457 deferred compensation plan, all deferred compensation and income attributable
to the investment of the deferred compensation amounts held by the City, are held in trust
for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The City holds no
investment responsibility or liability for losses under the pian.

Note 10 — Other Postemployment Benefits

A. Plan Description

in addition to providing pension benefits described in Note 8, the City of Marion, lllinois
provides the continuation of health care benefits to employees, who retire from the City.
Employees who terminate after reaching retirement eligibility in the plan are eligible to
elect to continue their health care coverage by paying the required portion of the monthty
premium rate. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer
contributions are governed by the City and can be amended through its personnel
manual and union contracts. No assets are accumulated in a way that meets the criteria
in paragraph 4 of GASB statement 75.
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Note 10 — Other Postemployment Benefits {(Continued)
Benefits Provided

The City provides continued medical and prescription drug coverage at subsidized rates
to all eligible employees, which creates an explicit subsidy of retiree medical and
prescription drug coverage. To be efigible for benefits, an employee must qualify for
retirement under one of the City's retirement plans. Upon a retiree reaching age 65 years
of age, Medicare becomes the primary insurer and the retiree can choose to not
participate in the plan or continue under the City plan at a Medicare Supplement rate
which is also subsidized.

Membership
The City's Retiree Healthcare Program includes five employee groups.
At April 30, 2021, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving

benefits 83

Active employees 158

Total 241
Participating employer 1

B. Total OPEB Liability
The City's OPEB liability of $46,461,689 was measured as of April 30, 2021, and was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

C. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Discount {Interest) Rate 2.12%

Salary Increases 3.50% per year

Mortality Probabilities of death for participants were according to

RP 2014 Blue Collar base rates projected to 2021 using
scale MP 2020 for Police and Fire. For all others the RP
2014 base rates projected to 2021 using scale MP 2020
was used.
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Note 10 — Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)
D. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at April 30, 2020 $ 37,329,002
Changes for the year:;

Service Cost 818,612

Interest 1,070,225

Benefit changes* (279,752)

Differences Between Expected

and Actual Experience 288,949

Assumption Changes 8,337,778

Benefit Payments (1,103,215}

Net Changes 9,132,597
Balance at April 30, 2021 $ 46461689

*Reduction of $270,125 due to elimination of Cadillac tax. Reduction of $9,627 due to
reducing the subsidy to 50% for Police and Firefighters hired after May 1, 2021.

E. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB fiability of the City, as well as what the City's total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower (1.12 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.12 percent) than
the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
{1.12%) (2.12%) {3.12%)
Total OPEB liability $ 55,640,006 $ 46,461,689 § 39,336,228

F. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total
CPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1
percentage-point lower (6.0 percent decreasing to 3.0 percent) or 1 percentage-point
higher (8.0 percent decreasing to 5.0 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend

rates.
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
{6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)
Decreasing to Decreasing to Decreasing to
3.0% 4.0% 5.0%
Total OPEB liability 3 38,972,847 § 46,461,689 § 56,186,360

70



City of Marion, illinois
Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2021

Note 10 — Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB:

For the year ended Aprif 30, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $3,338,077. At
April 30, 2021, the City reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred
Qutflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience ] 254,178
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 11,754,412
Total Deferred Amounts Related to OPEB $ 12,008,590

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Net Deferred Qutflows of

Year Ending April 30 Resources
2022 $ 1,7289892
2023 1,728,992
2024 1,728,992
2025 1,728,992
2026 1,728,992
Thereafter 3,363,630
Total 2 12,008,500

Note 11 — Fund Balance Reporting

According to Government Accounting Standards, fund balances are to be classified into five
major classifications; nonspendable fund balance, restricted fund balance, committed fund
balance, assigned fund balance, and unassigned fund baiance.

A. Nonspendable Fund Balance -
The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent

because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required
to be maintained infact. The "not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not
expected to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid amounts.

Throgmorton Endowment. During a prior year, the City received a special bequest in the
amount of $1,000 from the Estate of Edna V. Throgmorton. This amount is to be kept
intact and invested in interest bearing securities. The income derived Is to be used for the
upkeep of the Barnett and Throgmorton grave lots in the Rose Hill Cemetery.
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Note 11 — Fund Balance Reporting (Continued)

B. Restricted Fund Balance:
The restricted fund balance classification refers to amounts that are subject to outside
restrictions. Things such as restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws and regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. $415,179 of the restricted net position or restricted fund
balance results from enabling legislation adopted by the City. The City has the following
restricted fund balances:

Restricted for TIF development: This was created to restrict the use of all resources
collected or earned by the Tax Increment Financing Funds for development of private and
public projects in the TIF districts.

Restricted for donor expenditures - This was created to segregate a portion of fund equity
for future expenditures defined by the donor.

Restricted for maintenance of roads: This was created by enabling legislation (state and
local) to fund the maintenance and upkeep of City streets.

Restricted for public safety expenditures: This was created by enabling legislation to
restrict the use of 911 fees, DUI, drug enforcement fees, vehicle fund, and foreign fire

insurance coliected for police and fire department expenditures.

Restricted for debt service - This was created to segregate a portion of the fund equity
account for debt service, including both principal payments and interest payments. The
restriction was established to satisfy iegal restrictions imposed by various bond
agreements.

Restricted for tourism and recreation - This was created to restrict the use of funds
collected for the premotion of tourism and recreation.

Restricted for cemetery - This was created to restrict the use of funds set aside by the
council for cemetery related expenditures.

Restricted for capital projects - This was created to restrict the use of funds set aside by
the council for various capital projects.

C. Committed Fund Balance
The committed fund balance classification refers to amounts that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government's
highest level of decision making authority (City Council). Those committed amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same type of formal action (resolution or ordinance) it
employed to previously commit those amounts.

By city ordinance, the City has comimitted to a cash reserve policy in the general fund that
requires a minimum level equal to or greater than 25% of the general fund’s current year
budgeted expenditures and transfers out. Council has a right to determine if any portion
of the cash reserve should be spent and is required to take all necessary actions to
increase the cash reserve balance to the 25% threshold in future years.
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Note 11 — Fund Balance Reporting (Continued)
D. Assigned Fund Balance

The assigned fund balance classification refers to amounts that are constrained by the
Finance Commissioner as allowed by Council Resolution to be used for a specific
purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. Assigned fund balance amounts are
shown in the general fund.

. Unassigned Fund Balance
The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for amounts in

the general fund for amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to
specific purposes within the general fund.

F. Expenditures of Fund Balance

Unless specifically identified, expenditures act to reduce restricted balances first, then
assigned balances, next unassigned balances and finally act to reduce committed
balances. Expenditures for a specifically identified purpose will act to reduce the specific
classification of fund balance that is identified.

Capital Special Total

Pemanent Projects Revenue  Debt Service Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
Fund Balances
Nonspendable $ - % 1000 § - & - 8 - % 1,000
Restricted for -
Doner expenditures 13,232 - - 353,452 - 366,684
Public health and safety 28,741 - - 1,832,962 - 1,861,703
Capital projects - - 2,234,031 - - 2,234,001
Debt service - B - - 1,452,888 1,452,688
Cemetery . a57 - 17,220 - 18,177
Maintenance of roadways - - - 1,673,342 - 1673,242
Tourism and recreation - - - 88,575 - 88,575
Development 981,582 - - 1,255,411 - 2,236,853
Committed for -
Cash reserve 6,807,288 - - 6,807,288
Assigned
Library 50,561 - - - 50,561
Unassigned 5880020 - - [61,368) - 5,828,561
Total Fund Balances §J3771.333 § 1957 § 2234031 § 5150504 § 1452888 § 22619803

At April 30, 2021, the HUB Recreation Center Fund, a non-major special revenue fund,
has a deficit fund balance of $61,368.
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Note 12 — Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous fransactions between funds.
individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at April 30, 2021 arising from

these transactions were as follows:

Fund
General Fund
Camegie Library Fund

HUB Recreational Center

(Gas Tax Fund

Foreign Fire Insurance Fund

Pavillion Fund

Water Fund

Sewer Fund

Capital Project Fund
Goddard Chapel Fund
Revitalization Fund
Total

Interfund balances result from the timing difference between when payments are made or

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
$ 50,423 § -
- 207
- 57,338
55,507 -
- 515
- 2,013
- 8,968
- 37,166
10,167 -
267 -
10.167

§ 716364 5 116364

receipts received and when transfers are made to and from other funds.

Interfund balances are expected to be repaid within one year.

Schedule of operating transfers within the reporting entity:

Fund

General Fund Types -
General Fund
Cultural and Civic Center Fund
Senior Citizen Council Fund
Boyton St Fund

Special Revenue Funds -
Pavilion Fund
HUB Recreational Center Fund
Motor Fuel Fund
Gas Tax Fund
Foreign Fire Insurance Fund
Special Revenues Police Fund
Carnegie Library Fund
TIF Redeveiopment Fund

Transfer Out Trangfer In

$ 6,191,899 § 109,036
- 472,457
- 580,407
- 187,348
6,191,899 1,349,248
- 81,670
781,600 1,336,903
- 789

30,463 -

1,385 -
13,725 2,813
- 664,861

1,076,535 -
1,903.718 2,087.036
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Note 12 — Interfund Transactions (Continued)

Capital Project Fund -

Capital Project Fund - 2,647,873
- 2.647 873
Debt Service Fund -
Debt Service Fund - 3,534,200
- 3,534,200
Enterprise Funds -
Water Dept. Fund 1,509,912 -
Sewer Dept. Fund 13,137 -
1,523,049 -
Internal Service Fund -
Health Reimbursement Fund 691 -
691 -
Total $§ 9618357 § 9,618,357

Transfers are used to {1} move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts
restricted to debt service from the funds coliecting the receipts to the debt service fund as
debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with

budgetary authorizations.
Note 13 — Tax Abatement

As of April 30, 2021, the City provides tax rebates through two main programs. The tax
rebates are in substance equivalent to tax abatements and thus disclosed under GASB

pronouncement 77—Tax Abatements. The two main programs are as follows:

1. Tax Increment Financing District Redevelopment Agreements

2. Economic Incentive Agreements

Tax Increment Financing District Redevelopment Agreements

This type of agreement is authorized by the lliinois Statute 65 ILCS 5111-74.4 et. Seq., the
“Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act”, the “TIF Act”. The TIF Act allows developers
to be reimbursed certain eligible projects costs for developments within the TIF District. The
eligible costs are reimbursed to the developer through a combination of sales tax increment
and real estate tax increment rebates or just real estate tax increment rebates. In all cases,
the developer must first pay the tax and then request reimbursement of the tax paid along

with proof of payment.
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Note 13 — Tax Abatement (Continued)

In general, the sales tax increment is based upon a % of the municipal sales tax generated.
Usually when a developer moves from a non TIF area to a TIF area any sales tax
reimbursement must be above a baseline amount. Any real estate rebate is a percentage of
the real estate taxes generated above a baseline amount. The baseline amount in most
cases is the amount of equai assessed vaiuation at the time the TIF district is created. The
developer will receive rebates until the earlier of the eligible project costs are reimbursed or
the TIF ends. Specific details such as eligibility, special provisions, percentage of rebate,
type of rebate, commitments by Developers, etc. would be specific to each Redevelopment
Agreement, but all the terms in the contracts are per an approved Redevelopment
Agreement entered into pursuant to the TIF Act. The following is the amount of taxes
rebated during the year ending April 30, 2021 by TIF District.

Amount of Sales Amount of Real

Tax Increment District Tax Rebated Estate Tax Rebated
Marion TIF | $ 5262 $ 348,949
Marion TIF V - 102,117
Marion TIF VI - 107,542
Marion Heights | TIF 574,409 701,167
Marion Heights [l TIF 1,628 89,132
Marion HUB TIF 1,630 221,746
Marion Hillview TIF 5115 148,128
Marion Little Tractor TIF 11,279
Total g&.ﬁl& $ 1,730,060

The City is required to file an annual report on each TIF District with the lllinois State
Comptrolier. Those reports can be viewed on the Comptroller's website.

Economig Incentive Agreements

The City has also entered into Economic Incentive Agreements which are allowed under
lllinois Statute 65 ILCS 5/8-11-20 et. Seq. These agreements allow for the rebate of a % of
municipal sales tax generated by the developer for a specified period of time or sometimes
until certain developer costs are reimbursed. As with the TIF agreements, all other details
such as eligibility, special provisions, commitments by the developers, etc. are specified in
each of the Economic Incentive Agreements.

Total Sales Tax Rebated 3 109,554
Note 14 — Pledged Revenue

The City has pledged municipal sales tax and real estate taxes generated in connection with
the Tax Increment Financing redevelopment agreements with developers.
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Note 14 — Pledged Revenue {Continued)

Effective July 1, 2005 the City increased its home rule sales tax by one quarter of one
percent. The City has entered into an agreement with the Southem lllinois Baseball Group,
Inc. (Developer) to pay them one-half of the sales tax increase (one eighth of one percent).
The City pays the Developer by the last day of the month its sales tax portion for the
preceding month. The Developer cannot use the funds for any purpose other than to satisfy
construction loan obligations. The City's obligation will continue until the earlier of (1) thirty
years after the City's first payment or (2) the date that all construction loan obligations have
been paid in full. As of April 30, 2021, the Developer's portion of the home rule sales tax
increase amounted to $599,873.

Note 15 — Contingent Liabilities
Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government
carries commercial insurance.

Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs: property,
liability, and workers’ compensation. During the year ended April 30, 2021, there were no
significant reductions in coverage. Also, there have been no settlement amounts which
have exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years.

Contingencies:
Litigation
The City is party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental

operations. These legal proceedings are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the
affected funds of the City.

Grants

In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various federal and
state agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority,
the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of
funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not
believed to be material.

Development

The City has varicus TIF districts for which they are contingently liable to developers as
costs are incurred over a period of years. As eligible redevelopment costs are incurred, the
City receives municipal sales tax and real estate taxes. The City in turn refunds a
percentage of the tax increment to the developer based on the percentages specified in the
various redevelopment agreements.

Note 16 — Risks and Uncertainties

investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit.
It is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the statement of net

assets available for benefits.
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Note 17 — Commitments

In October of 2006, the City entered into an agreement with the Rend Lake Conservancy
District to supply the City with a needed supply of treated water for domestic, commercial
and industrial use. The agreement is in effect until December 31, 2046. The City may
discontinue purchasing treated water from the District only if (a) the District has recouped its
costs of providing water to the delivery point and the cost of the water storage reservoir or
(b) the City reimburses the District for any remaining cost which has not been recouped by
the District. Construction of the project was completed in July, 2010.

Note 18 — Subsequent Events

The City has evaluated for inclusion as a subsequent event disclosure those events that
occurred prior to December 17, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued. There were no events that require disclosure except as noted below:

Due to the Covid19 pandemic, as a precaution, the City negotiated a $10,000,000 line of
credit with Banterra Bank. As of the report date the City used $1,125,000 of the line of credit
for a purchase of property. The borrowed amount was repaid in the following year.
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Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes and frenchise fees
Licenses and permils
Intergovemmental revenue
Service charges and fees
Grant revanue
Invastment Incoma
Misceltanecus income

Total Ravenuas

Expendituras
General govermment
Public health and safety
Streets, alleys, end cemeterios
Cultural and recreation
Development
Debt service:
Princlpal
Interest
Capltal outiay

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In {out)

General long-term debt issued

Proceads from sale of caplial assets

Total Other Flnancing Sources {Usas)

Nat Change In Fund Balances

City of Marion, ilinols

Ganoral Fund Types
Scheduls of Revenues, Expendltures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual {with Variances)
For the year ended Aprll 30, 2021

Varianca with
Actual Amounts, Flnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Budgatary Basls Qver {(Under)
Original Final

$ 100 $ 100 $ 51 $ {49)

19,100,000 19,100,000 19,208,585 198,585
2,955,520 2,955,520 2,693,034 (262,486)
429,950 429,950 412,441 {17.509)

2,440,700 2,440,700 2,769,345 328,645
1,304,500 1,358,000 503,266 (854,734)
632,300 1,677,700 1,422,365 (155,335)
143,670 143,670 73,812 {69,858)

160,950 160,950 243979 83,029
27,067,650 28,186,580 27,416,878 (749,712
4,135,840 4,430,290 3,932,001 (498,289}
9,641,020 9,800,220 9,688,687 {111,533}
3,463,180 3,463,180 3,437,397 {25,783}
1,162,270 1,162,270 516,378 (645,892)

760,850 904,950 957,813 52,863
251,400 251,400 245,183 6217}
21,800 3,510 27,161 (4,349)

550,700 1,945,980 2,055,388 108,409
19,986,900 21,985,800 20,860,000 {1,128,791)

7,080,780 6,176,790 5,556,869 380,079
(6,664,020) (7.302 490} {7.459,242) {1586,752)

426,600 1,316,600 1,330,160 13,680

- 48,400 117,763 69,363
(6,237,420} (5,937, 450) (6,011,319} (73.829)

$ 843,370 ] 235,300 $ 545,550 $ 308,250

The notes to financia! statemants are an integral part of this statemant.
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City of Marion, Iilincls
TIF Redevelopment Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (with Varlances)
For the year endad April 30, 2021

Varlatice with
Actual Amounts, Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Budgatary Basls Over {Under}
Origlinal Final

Revenuas

Property taxes 3 5,074,830 $ 5,385,180 $ 5,338,832 $ (45,358)

Grant revenue - 104,480 104,483 3

Investment income 8,160 8,160 3916 (4,244)

Miscellaneous incone - 40,220 40,218 {4)
Total Revenues 5,082,980 5,638,050 5,488,447 {48,603)
Expendittiras

Streets, alloys and cemeteries 486,050 518,920 40,5208 (478,391)

Devetopmant 1,825,760 2,163,280 2,608,043 444,763

Debt service:

Principal 708,200 708,200 708,182 {18)

Capltal outiay - 553,560 558,492 4,932
Total Expandltures 3,020,010 3,943,960 3,915,246 {28,714)
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 2,062,980 1,554,080 1,573,201 (20.889)
Other Finanting Sources (Uses)

Transfers in (out) {3.221 570} (1,221,570} {1,078,375 143,185
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses} {1,221,570) (1,221,570) {1,078,375) 143,185
Net Change In Fund Balances $ 841,410 ] 372,520 $ 494,826 $ 122,306

The notes to financie) statements are an integral part of this stetement.
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The City Council annually passes a budget ordinance which includes all fund types using the cash
basis of accounting which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally accepted
accounting principles. Adjustment to budget basis from GAAP basis is due to timing differences. Each
fund’s budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis. Expenditures are budgeted by department and
class as follows: salaries and benefits, services and charges, supplies, capital outlay, debt service. For
each fund, total fund expenditures may not legally exceed the budgeted amounts. All unexpended
budgets lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

The fund financial statements in this report are prepared on the modified accrual basis. The budget
ordinance is prepared using the cash basis of accounting. The following schedule reconciles the
difference between the legally enacted budget and General and TIF fund expenditures:

Adjustment to Actual on Variance
Actual on Budgetary Budgatary Over
GAAP Basis Basis Basis Budget {Under}
Expsnditures
General
General Government $ 4006638 § 32925 § 3932001 § 4,430,290 $ 498,289
Public health and safety 9,609,400 26,061 9,688,687 2,800,220 111,533
Streets, alleys
and cameteries 3,422.492 14,905 3,437,397 3,463,180 25,783
Cultural and recreation 484 816 30,677 516,378 1,162,270 645,892
Development 829,106 128,707 957,813 904,850 (52,863)
Debt service
Principal 245,183 - 245,183 251,400 6,217
Interest 27,181 - 27,161 31,510 4,349
Capital outlay 528,919 1,526 470 2,055 389 1,845,980 {109,409}
Total Expenditures $ 19153715 § 1759745 $ 20,860,008 § 21989800 $ 1129791
TIF Redevelopment
Streets, alleys and
cemeteries $ 16,057 § 24472 % 40,520 § 518920 $ 478,391
Development 2,579,475 28,568 2,608,043 2,163,280 (444,763)
Debt Service
Principal 708,182 - 708,182 708,200 18
Capital outiay 528,919 28573 558,492 553 560 {4,932)
Total Expenditures § 3832633 § 82613 § 30915246 $ 3043060 § 26714

The City operated within the Jegal confines of the budget ordinance prepared on the cash basis of
accounting.
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City of Marion, lllinois

Multiyear Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Police Pension Fund
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $§ 767261 § 618466 § 559356 $ 541348 $ 515566 $ 489,508 $ 480,200
Interest on the total pension liability 1,464,611 1,317,308 1,380,424 1,349,045 1,306,976 1,235,401 1,074,041
Changes of benefit terms - 33,502 - - - - -
Differences between expected ang actual experience {114,210) 1,291,960 (1,755,490) {487,598) (279,109) 238,173 (850,327
Changes of assumptions 15,008 40,371 - - - - 2,526,327
Eenefit payments and refunds (1.079,701) (1,119,621} (948,858) {930,348) (911,588) (895,194) (792,811)
Other (Admin Expense) {35,212) (21,353} - - - - -
Net Change in Total Pension Liability $ 1,017,757 $ 2,160,633 § (762,566) $ 472447 $ 631845 $ 1,067,888 $ 2,437,439
Tetal Pension Liability - Beginning 22282774 20,122,141 20,884,707 20,412,260 19,780,415 18,712,527 16,275,088
Total Pension Liability - Ending {A) $23,300531 $22282774 $20122141 $20884707 $20412260 $19780415 $ 18,712,527
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Member contributions $ 261350 § 225133 § 213300 $ 202395 $ 200549 $ 180,337 § 178,949
Employer contributions 1,017,351 1,012,811 1,014,558 997,462 850,449 722,600 662,900
Net investment income 4,116,492 (470,338) 802,525 838,002 596,676 173,455 738,694
Benefit payments {1,079,701) (1,119,621) (946,856) (930,348) (911,588) {895,194) (792,811)
Other (Net Transfer) - - (35,303) (25,250} (22,663) (11,262) (10,054)
Qther (Admin Expense) {35,212) (21,353) - - - - -
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position $ 4,280,280 $ (373,368) $ 1,048224 §$ 1,082,261 $ 1,113423 $ 169936 $ 777678
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 13,390,574 13,763,942 12,715,718 11,633,457 10,520,034 10,350,098 8.572.420

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (B)
Net Pension Liability - Ending (A)-{B)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability

Covered Valuation Payroll

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered
Valuation Payroll

$17670.864 $13300574 $137A3942 $12715718 $11633457 §$10,520034 § 10,350,008
$ 5629677 § 88092200 3 6358199 § B16RS9A9 § 8778803 § 9260381 § 8362429

75.84% 60.09% 68.40% 60.98% 56.99% 53.18% 55.31%

$ 2613422 § 2430908 % 2,101,205 $ 2,0689936 $ 1,970,828 $ 1,866,868 $ 1,824,825

215.41% 365.80% 302.60% 394.85% 445.44% 496.04% 458.26%

Additional years will be added to the schedule annually until 10 years of data is presented.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Multiyear Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Fire Pension Fund
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 416887 ¢ 421,285 $ 380816 $ 373215 $ 365360 $ 356,987 $ 347912
Interest on the total pension liability 1,193,798 1,121,897 1,067,048 1,038,539 984,434 843,345 844,006
Changes of benefit terms - 5,457 - - - - -
Differences bstween expected and actual experience 432,935 (46,100} 4.911) (458,631) (182,202} (31,022) {101,072)
Changes of assumpticns 11,817 272,648 - - - - 870,309
Benefit payments and refunds (749,145) {631,570) (532,212) (529,531) (519,657) (506,344) (477,797)
Other (Admin Expense) (16,971} (14,764) - - - - -
Net Change in Total Pension Liabitity $ 1,280319 $ 1,128853 § 910741 § 423592 % 657,935 §$ 762,966 $ 1,483,448
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 18,091,649 16,962,796 _ 16,052,055 15,628 463 14,970,528 14,207,562 12,724,114
Total Pension Liability - Ending (A) $19.380,968 § 18,091,643 $.16962,796 $16052,056 § 15628463 §$ 14970528 $ 14,207,562
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Member contributions $ 159422 § 150991 $ 148468 $ 1458684 $ 142490 § 139,192 § 133,500
Employer contributions 673,801 670,792 671,961 656,121 550,277 493,200 425,800
Net investment income 3,626,759 (392,343) 686,637 650,050 653,365 19,892 512,933
Benefit payments (749,145) {631,570) (532,212) (529,531 (519,657) {508,344) (477,797)
Other (Net Transfer) - - (17,665) (15,357) (14,789} (15,338) {22,225)
Other (Admin Expense) (16,971) {14,764) - - - - -
Mzt Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position $ 3603866 $ (216894) $ 957,187 $ 508967 $ 811695 $ 130602 $ 572211
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 11,971,910 12,188,804 11,231,617 10,324 650 9,512,955 9,382 353 8.810,142
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (B) $15665776 $11.971910 $1218A.804 $11.231617 $10324650 $ 9512955 $ 9.382353
Net Pension Liability - Ending (A){B) $ 3715192 3 6,119.739 $ 4773992 § 4820438 3 5303813 § 5457573 § 4825200
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability 80.83% 66.17% 71.86% 69.97% 66.06% 63.54% 66.04%
Covered Valuation Payroll $ 1602842 % 1,604,657 % 1600401 $ 1,543819 § 1,511,781 % 1475358 § 1,431,067
Net Pengion Liability as a Percentage of Covered
Valuation Payroll 231.79% 381.37% 298.30% 312.24% 350.83% 369.92% 337.18%

Additional years will be added to the schedule annually until 10 years of data is presented.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Multiyear Schedule of Changes in the Net Penslon Llability and Related Ratios
lllinois Municipa! Retirement Plan
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Calendar Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2018 2015
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 651086 $ 650197 $ 601,509 $ 611219 $ 591,756 $ 556,314
interest on the total pension liability 2,128,698 2,001,545 1,863,085 1,982,884 1,919,498 1,813,559
Changes of benefit terms - - - - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability (102,736} 757,224 (435,519) (618,757) (327,102) a7z, 74
Changes of assumptions (272,871) - 791,468 (837,535) {31.,862) -
Benefit payments, including refunds of Employee
Contributions (1,730,486} {1,580,644) (1.443.037) (1.350,847) (1,351,237) {1,340,561)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability $ 673671 $ 1828322 $ 1477506 § (213,036) § 801,053 $ 1,402,026
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 29,801,063 28,072,741 26,595,235 26,808,271 26,007,218 24 605192
Total Pension Liability - Ending (A} $30574734 $20901063 $28072741 $26595235 $26808271 §26,007218
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 567142 $ 547638 $ 669876 $ 651,087 $ 621827 $ 618,207
Contributions - Employees 286,524 298,579 312,701 274,662 258,102 253,187
Net investment income 4,097,305 4,580,448 (1,417 ,569) 4,125,252 1,554,011 112,070
Benefit payments, including refunds of Employee
Contributions (1,730,486) (1,580,644) {1,443,037) (1,350,847) (1,351,237) (1,340,561)
Other (Net Transfer) (31,546) 339,294 303,198 {1,129.183) (157.298) 33,620
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Positicn § 3,188,939 $ 4,185315 § (1,574,831) $ 2570971 $ 925405 § (323477)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 28432016 24 246,701 25,821,532 23,250,561 22,325,156 22 648 633
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (B} $31620955 §$28432016 $24.246701 $25R821,532 §23.250561 §22.325156
Net Pension Liability - Ending (A)-(B) £ (1.046221) § 1469047 § 3826040 § 773703 § 3557710 § 3682062
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability 103.42% 95.08% B6.37% 97.09% 86.73% 85.84%
Covered Valuation Payroll § 6,267,830 § 6,630,005 $ 6529006 $ 6,903,020 $ 5,699,612 $ 5,592,090
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered
Valuation Payroli {16.69)% 22.16% 5§8.60% 12.68% 62.42% 65.84%

Additional years will be added to the schedule annually until 10 years of data is presented.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Multivear Schedule of Contributions
Police Pension Fund
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Actual

Contribution Contribution as
Relation to the a Percentage of
Actuarially Actuarially Contribution Covered Covered
Fiscal Year Determined Determined Deficiency Employee Employee

Endin ril 30 Centribution Contribution {Excess) Payroll Payroll
2021 $ 1058015 $ 1,017,351 § 40,664 $ 2,613,422 38.93%
2020 1,101,703 1,012,811 88,892 2,430,908 41.66%
2019 1,117,351 1,014,558 102,793 2,101,205 48.28%
2018 1,102,293 997,462 104,831 2,069,936 48.19%
2017 1,033,259 850,449 182,810 1,870,828 43.15%
2016 722,504 722,600 {(98) 1,866,868 38.71%
2015 662,898 662,900 {2) 1,824,825 36.33%
2014 590,755 592,000 {1,245) 1,737,719 34.07%
2013 558,869 569,900 (11,031) 1,534,666 37.14%
2012 624,046 569,900 54,146 1,629,445 37.26%

Note: Beginning in the year ending 2017, the Actuarially Determined Contribution computation was revised to
provide a 100% funding target rather than the former 90%. Actuarially Determined Contributions are
calculated as of May 1 of each year prior to the beginning of the year in which contributions are reported.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Multiyear Schedule of Contributions
Fire Pension Fund
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Actual

Contribution as
Required a Percentage of
Actuarially Contribution Covered Covered
Fiscal Year Determined Actual Deficiency Employee Employee

Ending April 30 Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroil Payroll
2021 $ 672,247 $ 673,801 § (1.554) § 1,602,842 42.04%
2020 656,860 670,792 (13,932) 1,604,657 41.80%
2019 673,801 671,961 1,840 1,600,401 41.99%
2018 657,794 656,121 1,673 1,543,819 42.50%
2017 622,389 550,277 72,112 1,511,781 36.40%
20186 423,633 493,200 {69,567) 1,475,356 33.43%
2015 425,798 425,800 (2) 1,431,067 29.75%
2014 402,828 421,500 (18,672) 1,396,133 30.19%
2013 382,560 387,400 (4,840) 1,340,601 28.90%
2012 411,634 384,670 26,964 1,440,119 26.71%

Note: Beginning in the year ending 2017, the Actuarially Determined Contribution computation was revised to
provide a 100% funding target rather than the former 80%. Actuarially Determined Contributions are
calculated as of May 1 of each year prior to the beginning of the year in which contributions are reported.
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City of Marion, Illinois
Multiyear Schedule of Employer Contributions
Ilinois Municipal Retirement Plan
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Actual
Contribution as
Required a Percentage of

Calendar Actuarially Contribution Covered Covered

Year Ended Determined Actual Deficiency Valuation Valuation

December 31 Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2020 $ 566,612 § 567,142 § {530y $ 6,267,830 9.05%
2019 547,638 547,638 - 6,630,005 8.26%
2018 669,876 669,876 - 6,529,006 10.26%
2017 635,324 651,087 (15,763) 6,103,020 10.67%
2016 621,828 621,827 1 5,689,612 10.91%
2015 610,097 618,207 (8,110) 5,592,090 11.06%
2014 585,535 594,889 (9,354) 5,131,769 29.75%

Additional years will be added to the schedule annually until 10 years of data is presented.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Schedule of Annual Money Rate of Return, Net of Investment Expense

2021 2020 2019 2018 017 2016 2015
Police Pension Plan 30.52% (3.40)% 6.19% 7.05% 9.30% 1.88% 7.53%
Fire Pension Plan 30.17% (3.18)% 6.00% 6.18% 6.75% 2.50% 6.05%
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City of Marion, Illinols
Schedule of Changes In the City’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

2021 2020 2019
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost including administrative expenses $ 818612 § 644279 % 589,748
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,070,225 1,175,782 1,168,126
Benefit changes (279,752) - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 288,949 - -
Assumption changes 8,337,779 5,024,096 880,678
Benefit payments (1,103,215} _ (1,076,671) _ (1,001 554}
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability $ 9132598 § 5767486 § 1,636,998
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 37,329,091 31,561,605 29,924 607
Total OPEB Liability - Ending 146461688 $37329001 §31,561.605
Covered — employee payroll $ 8598325 $ 8786287 $ 8,489,166
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of Covered -
employee payroll 540.36% 424.86% 371.79%

Additional years will be added to the schedule annually until 10 years of data is presented.
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Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules



Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted investments
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Sales taxes receivable
Other taxes receivable
Grant receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid items

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Property taxes payable
Agccrued payrofl
Due to other funds
UInearned revenue

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted for;
Donor restricted expenditures
Public safety
Capital projects
Debt service
Cemetery
Maintenance of roadways
Taurism and recreation
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabitities, Deferred Inflows, and

Fund Balances

City of Marion, lllinois
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Batance Sheet

April 30, 2021
Total Non-Major
Capital Project Special Revenue Governmental
Permanent Fund Funds Funds Funds

$ - $ 643,841 $ 1,722,264 $ 2,366,205
- - 28,891 28,891

- 1,863,983 1,113,507 2,977,490

1,957 - 361,149 363,106

- - 10,515 10,515

- - 111,435 111,435

- - 618,557 618,557

- - 137,657 137,657

- - 24,330 24,330

- - 56,158 56,158

- 10,167 55,774 65,941

- - 5,350 5,350

$ 1,957 $ 2,518,091 3 4,245,587 $ 6,765,635
$ - $ 270,297 $ 89,109 $ 359,406
- 13,763 - 13,763

- - 29,859 29,859

- - 80,073 60,073

- - 50,928 50,928

- 284,080 229,869 514,029

- - 111,435 111,435

1 1000 - - 1 ,000

- - 353,452 353,452

- - 1,832,982 1,832,962

- 2,234,031 - 2,234,031

- - 25,626 25,526

957 - 17,220 18,177

- - 1,673,342 1,673,342

- - 63,049 63,049
- - (61.368) {61,368)

1,857 2,234,031 3,904,183 6,140,171

$ 1,957 $ 2,518,001 $ 4,245 587 $ 6,765,635

The notes to financial stataments are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes and franchise fees
Intergovernmental revenue
Service charges and fees
Grant revenue
investment incorme
Miscellaneous revenue
Restricted donations

Total Revenuas

Expenditures
Public health and safety
Streets, alleys, and cemeteries
Culture and recreation
Debt sarvice:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Exponditures

Qther Financing Sources (Uses
Transfers in {out)

General long-term debt issued
Proceads from sale of capital assets
Tetal Other Financing Sources (Uses’

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Clty of Marion, llinois
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batances
For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Total Non-Major
Capital Projects Special Revenue Governmental
Permanent Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ - 3 - $ 110,468 3 110,468
- - 2,526,457 2,526 457

- - 1,041,887 1,041,887

- - 663,470 §63,470

- - 930,535 930,535

- 3,000 639,810 642,810

4 712 B,750 9,466

- - 5,529 5,529

. - 4 502 4,502

4 3712 5,931,408 5,935,124

- - 1,743,613 1,743,613

- 7.914 1,086,829 1,104,743

- - 2.471,388 2,471,386

- - 390,918 390,918

- 4,007 29,878 33,885

- 1,386,818 133,616 1,520,434

- 1,388,739 5,866,240 7,264,579
4 {1,395,027) 65,168 {1,329,855)

- 2,647,873 1,259,853 3.907,726

- 450,355 - 450,355

- 275,000 - 275,000

- 3.373.228 1,259,853 4,633,081

4 1,978,201 1,325,021 3,303,226

1.953 258,830 2,579,162 2,836,845

3 1,857 3 2,234,031 g 3,904,183 $ 8,140,171

The notes to financial stataments are an integral part of this statement.

91



Clty of Marion, lllinols
Permanant Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual {with Variances)
For the year ended April 30, 2021

Revehues
investment income

Total Revanues
Expenditures

Tatal Exponditures

Excess {Deficlency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Nat Change in Fund Balances

Variance with
Actual Amounts, Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis Over {Under)
Original Final
20 $ 4 $ {16)
20 20 4 {16}
20 20 4 (18}
20 20 $ 4 3 {18)

The notes to financial statemants are an integral pant of this statement.
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Clty of Marlon, {liinois
Caplital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes !n Fund Balances - Budget and Actual {with Variances)
For the year ended April 30, 2021

. Varianco with
Actual Amounts, Final Budget -
Budpgeted Amounts Budgetary Basls Cver (Under)
Original Finat

Revenues

Grant revenue 5 - 3 3,000 3 3,000 3 -

Investment Income - - 712 712
Tuotal Revenites - 3,000 3,712 712
Expendituras

Stroets, alloys and cemelares - - 18,080 18,080

Debt service:

Intereat - 4,010 4,007 (3)

Capltal outlay - 1,116,530 1,116,521 {9)
Tota! Expenditures - 1,120,540 1,138,608 18,068
Excess (Deficlency} of Ravanues Over Expenditures - (1,117,540} {1,134,898) {17,356)
Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Transfors in {out) 310,000 2,648,000 2,647 874 {128)

General longterm debt issued - 450,360 450,355 {5)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 275,000 275,000
Total Other Flnancing Sources {Uses) 310,000 3.088 360 3,373,229 274,869
Net Changs In Fund Balances $ 310,000 $ 1,880,820 $ 2,238,333 $ 257,613

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statemnent.
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Clty of Marfan, lilinols
Special Revonue Funds

Schedule of Revanues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bafances - Budget and Actuat {with Variances)

Revenues
Property taxes
OCther taxes and franchise fess
Inlergovernmental
Service charges and fees
Grant revenue
Investment income
Miscallaneous revanue
Restricted donations

Total Ravenuss

Expenditures
Public health and safety
Streets, alleys and cemateries
Cultural end recreation
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capltal outlay

Total Expenditures
Excass (Deficiency] of Revanues Over Expanditures

Other Financing Sources [Uses)
Transfers in (out)

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Not Changae In Fund Batances

For the yoear ended April 30, 2021

Variance with
_ Actugl Amounts, Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Budgetory Basis Over (Undar)
Original Final
$ 136,500 $ 136,500 $ 110,468 $ (26.032)
1,163,480 1,163,480 958,464 (205,016)
717.820 717,920 656,334 {61,588)
1,959,690 1,958,690 958,758 {1,000,932)
83,750 63,750 615,480 551,730
13,670 13,670 11,277 {2,393)
4,100 4,100 3,558 (542}
- - 4,602 4,502
4,059 110 4,059,110 3,318,841 (740,269)
1,696,150 1,708,730 1,708,020 (1.710}
1,233,950 1,234,800 1,598,126 353,326
3,076,780 3,076,790 1.907,100 (1,169,880)
395,130 395.130 380018 4,212)
30,330 30,330 29,878 {452)
220,910 220,910 102,247 {118,663)
6,653,260 6,667,690 5,736,289 (931,401}
(2,594,150) (2,608,580} {2.417,348) 191,132
3,362,380 3,279,690 3,879,286 599,696
3,362,380 3,279,590 3,879,286 595,686
$ 768,240 $ 671,010 $ 1,461,838 s 780,828

Tha notes to financlal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mrion, llinols
Kan-Mijor Special Revenua Funds

Gombinlng Salance Shaet
Aprl 30, 2021
Gaddard
Chapal Fomign Firn Apacial Revamue Total - Bpecial
Pavillon Restoration Hu@ Reoad and Eridge Molor Fue) Tax Gas Tax Insurance Police Camegla Library Pzay Taz Revenus Furks
Adsets - o —— e e— —_—
Cash 2ng cash equivaients 5 . 3 16,953 3 1te0n % 114,758 3 1.088 48 4 272402 3 ERRE) ) Ta8T4 3 5,008 5 - % 1,702 284
cash end cash 25526 - - . - - - - 2385 - 28,591
Ivosiments - . - - - - - 22,879 1.090.828 1,113,507
Restricted estments - . - - . - - 341,149 - 40
Artamis rocehable - - - - - - - 10,515 - - 10515
Prope ity tames receivable + - - 111,435 - - - - - - 111,435
Ba%s bxes receheabiy - + - . - - - - + B8 557 B18.557
Other by rocetvabie a1.9% - . - . 75718 - - - - 437,657
Grant recehati - - . - . 12427 - . 11,903 . 26330
trtorgovommerta! receivebio - . - B 55,058 . - . - - 50,188
Dus from other funds - m? - - - 55507 - - - - 55,114
Prapad Rems - - - - - - 5350 + - - 5,350
Tem Assaty 3 STINQ 5 1?2_2\'}_ 3 115,071 3 Frifl ] 5 1,142 404 % 416,084 3 asisoa 5 87.150 3 AGE 3072 3 1.709.185 3 4 245587
Lintstithes
Agcounts payabis ) LLR E - 3 50,572 3 - - - 3 75 3 1,400 3 - 3 23,908 3 - H 209
Accrped panyrol 2010 - 15,30 . - - - - B4 - 29050
Gt 16 other funds. 2,012 - 57,338 - - - 515 - 0T - BG07)
Ungemad rewinue + : 50,028 ] - - - . - - S0
Total Liabiitios 10,023 - 177,435 . . 154 1,815 - 22818 - 279,060
Inticws of R
UnavaRabi mivenus - (ropery toos - - - 111,635 - - - - - - 1II.43L
Fund Balances
Resirictad for:
Donor restriciad axpendungs - - - - - - - - 5452 - 353,452
Pubac setety - - - - - + 38,588 ar. 19 - 1,100,185 1,632,982
Dabi servica 2552 - - - - - - - - - 25526
Comotesy . 17,220 . - - . - . - . 17.220
Mameneacs of roadways - - - 114,759 1,142,404 415,179 - - - - 1.673,42
Touriam asd recreation S5.014 . - - - - - - 15,035 - 83 040
tnassigned : : i01.368) : . : - : - : @135
Total Fursd Balances. 106,540 17 220 51,388) 115,756 1,142 404 At5 176 30,500 B7,158 3T 4n7 1,708,183 3904 103
Tota! Liabéitins, Defetred infiows, and Fund
Batances L ] ar,m 3 1?,22_0 3 |16£Tl 3 22?‘19‘ 3 t.lﬂim 3 416.& 3 NISM 3 a7 1539 3 404 302 3 1‘?09‘185 3 4.24§I5B?

The notes 1o fasnclal statamenis am 40 Mgl pedt of this stalemont,
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Ehty of Marken, Oitnois.
KonMajor 3paucis! Revenus Funds

For the Yaar Endart Apelt 31, 2021

And CRasges 1n Fund Batences

Gouddard Chapat Forsign Fire Spwcial Rwwenoe Totz) - Bpacisl
Pardtios Restoration HUR Aoed snd Bridpe Motor Fusd Tax Oas Tax surance Folice Curnegiw Library Proparty Taa Havenve Funds
Furvinues - —_————

Property Lixes H . - § 10,4848 $ - - 3 - 3 - 5 - 5 110.484

Gaigs lnxes . . - . - . . - . 2520457 2508457

ihat Lixes and frarchoe fie 387,510 - - 452 . 505,24 57,427 1758 - . 1,041 287

Intergcrtimiental revetiue - - - . AT 447 . 18,023 . - a3t

Barvion chanies and fovs .oy 4390 [t ] - - - 40,408 B - 30,535

Gt revarue . . - - 558,543 12427 - - 60,540 - IRL10

et LT Wi ) L) 140 215 1488 ™ 153 4903 1028 a5

MEROMEA WS v R - dors - - . 197t - am - 5519

Retrictad donstiony 4 502 - - - - - - - £507
Totz) Revanuo AM IBD A.554 BA1 4B 111,14 1215470 808,334 58,758 57 569 Td 425 25T a8 500 402
Expancltunes

Prublic health and patsty B . - - - 4187 10575 - 1.861,158 1,742,813

Btramty, abeys, Ind ckiosrney - 3,308 . 75448 SAT 256 450,810 - - LN F

Culiry and rechiitbon W he - 1 52E - - - - - 720,145 - 2471300

Dbt dtncd

Princpat 22099 - 24055 - 153.212 - - . 0008
e 17,508 - 1004 - 10800 - - - - Fally ]

Capial sty 18,030 - - - - 2781 2430 5.000 LAk + A1 816
Tola! Expandibyres e 147 3308 1,470 B82 15 448 SA7 258 A42 B85 “,32- 15,575 Bl 540 1851 150 SMEID
Excess (Deiich ver E {114.787) 1,068 {520.378) M 7E BAB 227 342541 15,038 42504 {118 838,324 85 1658
Othar Flrancing Sounces (Usat)

Tramsters w jout) B1. 870 - 555 10 - TEY ;Em; {1,39%) [to.912) B54 581 1258853
Tota) Dttwr Finaning Sources {Usen} 21870 - 555 303 k1 (30,83} 11,395} {18,012} B84 1 - 1 mﬂ
Kl Change in Fund Balsncay 133,097} 1,085 {74 0?3! IS5 TS 543,011 84.217) 13,844 11,10 l?ﬂ&]_ A3 A 133501
Fuord Bxdences - Beginieg of Yasr 101,837 1B1M 12,705 B0.0a4 433,393 AT ERE 22 044 55807 41T a7 881 2579162
Find Balences - End of Yaar 7050 ] AT 23 ’!| ml 3 115,165 3 1, 142,404 &1 aﬂ‘ﬂ 3 34 588 5 !?.1£ 5 3?‘,42- | 1,709,185 £ 3 3 904 183

The notes to fnancis! stumarts e $0 rrdegra! pan of th 1adement
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Annota
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivatanis
Investments
Restricted investments
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Sales taxes receivable
Other taxes receivable
Accrued interest recaivable
Loans receivable
Intergovemmental raceivable
Due from other funds

Total Assets

Liabllites
Accounts payable
Accrued payrcll
Accrusd paynol related expenseas
Due to other funds
Damage depuosits
Uneamed revenue

Total Liabitities

Deferred Inflows of Rasources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Fund Balances

Restricted far;
Donor restricted expenditunes
Public safety
Development

Commitied

Assigned

Unassigned

Tota! Fund Balances

Totzl Liabiiities, Deferred tnflows, and
Fund Balancas

City of Marfon, IHinois

General Fund Typea
Combining Baelance Sheet
April 30, 2021
Boyton Street
Cuttural and Sentor Citizens Community Economic Tota! General
Ganeral Civic Center Council Canter Reviallzation Incontive Fund Types
1,262,424 % 142,555 -3 45,179 % 11,424 ] 142,435 5 400,216 E 2,004,233
30,891 - - 2413 - 33,404
6,332,475 2,905 - - - - 6,235,380
- - 10.814 - - - 10,814
51,3%0 - - - - - 51,380
100 - - - - - 100
4,680,230 - - - 99,999 249,999 5,030,228
358,423 - - - - - 358,423
10,570 - 5 - - - 10,575
417 856 - . - - 100,000 517,858
452,285 . - - - - 452,285
50,423 - - - - . 50,423
13,847 169 $ 145I460 ] 55'993 $ 13,837 ¥ 242‘434 $ ?’50'215 H 14 855|1 13
467 661 % 7996 $ 14,732 § 2,150 ) 3,150 -3 - 5 495,690
180,803 3,554 3958 3,870 - - 192,025
162,438 - - - - - 192,438
- - - - 10,167 - 10,167
63,000 - - - - - £3,000
- 130,360 - - - - 130,360
903,902 141,910 18,731 §,820 13,17 - 1,083,680
100 - - - - - 149
- - 10,619 2413 - - 13232
28,741 - - - - . 28,741
2,250 - - - 229117 750,218 481,582
6,807,288 - - - - - £,807,268
50,551 - - - - - 50,561
5,854 327 3,550 26,448 5,604 - - 5,889 929
12,783,167 3,560 7287 8,017 228117 750,215 13,771,333
13847169 $ 145,450 $ 55,098 $ 13 837 3 242434 $ 750,215 3 14,856,113

The noles tu fnancial stataments are an integral part of this statement.
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Clty of Marfon, lllinois
Gonoral Fund Types
Combining Statement of Rovenues, Expendituras and Changes in Fund Balances
Far the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Boytan Streat
Cultural and Senlor Citlzens Community Economic Total Genoral
General Civic Cantar Councll Conter Reavitalization Incentive Fund Types
Revenves — —
Property taxes } 51 . s - s - $ - - & 51
Sales taxes 17.163.020 - - - 299,999 745,999 18,213,018
Othar taxes and franchize fees 2,899,984 - - - - - 2,699,984
Licenses and permits 412,441 - - - - - 412 441
Intergovemmenta! revenue 2 889 305 - - - - . 2,885 305
Service charges and faes 421,360 2,389 114,219 - - - 537,968
Grant revenue 1772797 5.248 15,842 37,051 - - 1,831,838
Investment income 53,358 772 238 - as 216 94,657
Miscellaneous revenue 164,169 1,098 2777 1,513 - - 189,557
Restricted donations 9,400 - - - - 9,400
Total Revenues 25625,885 9,507 133,074 39,464 300,084 780215 26,858,239
Expendiurss
Generzl govemment 3,079,394 - 702,623 2249521 - - 4,008,638
Public heaith and aafety 9,609,400 - - - - - 9,609,400
Streats, alleys, and cemeteries 3,422 492 - . - - - 3,422 492
Culturer andd recreation - 484,815 - - - - 484,816
Developraent 812,948 - - . 18,161 - 829,106
Dobt servica;
Principal 245,183 - - - - - 245,183
Intemest 17,457 - - - 8,704 - 27.181
Capita! outiny 1,235,192 - - - 1,170,102 - 2405204
Total Expendiures 18,422 063 484 16 702 823 224 621 1,195 567 - 21,030,000
Exceas (Deficlency} of Revenuss Over Expenditures 7,203,832 {475.308) (569,548 {185,157} {895,883) 750,215 5,828,149
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) (6.082,863) 473,457 580,407 167,348 - - (4,841,651}
Genaral lang-temn debt issred 205,180 - - - 1,125,000 - 1,330,180
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 161,919 - - - - - 181919
Totsl Other Financing Sources (Uses) (5,695 784) 473,457 580,407 187,348 1,125 000 - (3,329,572
Net Change In Fund Belances 1,508,048 {1.852) 10,858 2,191 229,117 750,215 2498 577
Fund Batances - Beginning of Year 11,235,119 5402 26,409 5,828 - - 41,272,756
Fund Bajances - End of Year % 15743,16? - 3‘550 5 37|23? $ Bi01? $ 22911 17 3 750 215 $ 13,771,333

The notes to finanelal stataments are an integrel part of this statement.
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Property taxes receivable
Grant receivable
Loan receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Fund Balances
Restricted for:
Development

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabllities, Deferred Inflows, and
Fund Balances

City of Marlon, lllinols
Combining Balance Sheet

TIF Redevelopment Fund
April 30, 2021
TIF #1 TIF #5 TIF #8 TIF #10 TIF #11 TIF #12
388,309 2 3 19,301 $ 4 5 L] 19,893
- - 500,069 - - -
3,191,647 155,403 159,938 881,665 354,265 5,018
15,761 - - - - -
3.595.717 155,405 $ 679,308 $ 881,669 354,270 $ 24,911
15,498 13,958 3 1,394 $ 184,926 6,970 $ 976
15,498 13,959 1,384 184,926 6,970 976
3,191,647 155,403 159,938 881,665 354,265 5018
388,572 (13,957) 517,976 (184,922) (6,965) 18,917
388,572 (13.957) 517,976 {184,922) (6.965) 18,917
3,585,717 165,405 % 679,308 b 881,669 354,270 3 24.91 1

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



City of Marioen, {llinois
Combining Balance Sheot
TIF Redevelopment Fund

Apri) 30, 2021
TIF
REDEVELOPMENT
TIF #13 TIF #14 TIF #15 TIF #16 TIF #17 TIF #18 TIF #19 TIF #20 FUND

4 3 18,142 & 105,087 & 3 s 552 § 8247 & 1485 8 15666 % 576,650

. . . . . 500,069
481,680 22,316 252,309 1,216 155,669 30,366 26,057 276,670 5,994,219
. . . - . . . - 15,761
403,412 - - . - - - - 403,412
885085  § 40458  § 357366  § 1219 3 156,221 $ 38613 § 27522 % 292,338 3 7.450,111
6970 % 1,357 & 2007 $ 1,330 3 1,283 & 1,283 § 1,264 § 1,264 $ 240,481
6,970 1,357 2,007 1,330 1,283 1,283 1,264 1,264 240,481
481,680 22,316 252,309 1,216 155,669 30,366 26,057 276,670 5994 218
396,446 16785 103,050 (1,327} 731) 6,954 201 14,402 1,255,411
396,446 16,785 103,050 (1,327) (731) 6,964 201 14,402 1,255,411
885095 # § 40458 % 357,366 § 1219 § 156,224 3 3BE1Z § 27522 § 202336  § 7.490,111

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues

Property taxes
Grant revenue
Investment income

Miscellaneous income

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Streets, alleys, and cemeteries
Development
Dabt service;
Principal
Capital outlay

Totat Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues QOver
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in {out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances

City of Marion, lllinois

TIF Redevelopment Fund
For the Year Ended Aprii 30, 2021

TIF #1 TIF #5 TIF #8 TIF #10 TIF #11 TIF #12
3 3,048,243 $ 145,880 $ 150,822 $ 942,440 $ 256,634 3,053
25,726 - - - - -
1,971 61 865 392 110 47
40,216 - - - - -
3,116,156 145,941 151,687 842,832 256,744 3100
9,763 - - 540 918 -
435,285 108,025 114,350 1,287,201 126,015 4,911
618,182 - - 13.500 76,500 -
27,004 68,719 - - 115,083 -
1,090,234 177,744 114,350 1,311,241 318,526 4,911
2,025,022 {31,803) 37,337 {368,409) {81,782) {1,811
{1,884,105) 19,445 - 188,549 207,101 -
{1.984,105) 19,445 - 188,549 207,101 -
41,817 (12,358) 37,337 (179,850) 145,319 (1,811)
346,755 {1.599) 480,639 (5,062) {152,284) 20,728
$ 388,672 $ {13.957) $ 517,976 $ (184,9@ $ (8,965} 18,917

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

City of Marion, lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances
TIF Redevelopment Fund

TF
REDEVELOPMENT
TIF #13 TIF #14 TIF #15 TIF #16 TIF_#17 TIF #18 TIF #19 TIF_#20 FUND
3 406819 20,978 222721 § 1038 8 23113 % 22551 $ 6.573 86,985  § 5,339,831
45,173 - - - - . - . 70,899
2,041 35 248 - 15 16 5 53 5,859
- . - - . - . - 40,218
454033 21.014 222,969 1,038 23,128 22.567 6,578 89,018 5.456,805
3,508 . . . 1,328 - . . 16,057
261,413 6,789 163,140 6,676 22,534 18.141 6,379 7,316 2,579,475
- . - . - . . . 708,182
250.803 - . - - - - 67,300 528,919
515,724 5,789 163,140 6,976 23,862 18,141 6,379 74,516 3,832,633
{61,691) 14,225 59,829 (5,938) {734) 4,426 199 14,402 1,624,172
508,505 - (26,765} 5,925 1,290 2,275 1,245 - (1,076,535)
508,505 - (26.765} 5925 1,290 2275 1,245 - {1,076.535)
446,614 14,225 33,064 (13 556 6.701 1,444 14,402 547,637
(50,368) 2,560 69.986 (1,314} {1,287) 263 {1,243) - 707,774
$ 396,446 $ 16,785 103050  § (1327) % a8 6964 5 201 14402 & 1,255,411

100

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement



City of Marion, lllinois
Fiduciary Fund Types
Combhining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
April 30, 2021

Police Pension Fire Pension Totals
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 600,709 % 254 307 $ 895,016
Accrued interest receivable 38,117 34,385 72,502
Investments -
U.S. Govermment and agency obligations 3,587,325 3,846,669 7,433,994
Corporate bonds 1,468,140 1,569,938 3,038,078
Insurance company contracts 811,456 - 811,456
Mutual funds 4,650,551 4,152,081 8,802,632
Stocks 790,467 703,718 1,494,185
State and local cbligations 257,099 - 257,089
Exchange traded funds 5,798,102 5,142,026 10,940,128
Payroll receivable 29,642 17,487 47,129
Total Assets 18,031,608 15,760,611 33,792,219
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3,225 - 3,225
Payable from purchases of investments 357,629 94,836 452,365
Total Liabilities 360,764 94,836 455,580
Net Position
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 17,670,854 $ 15665775 $ 33,336,629

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Fiduciary Fund Types
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Palice Pension Fire Pension Totals

Additions
Contributions:

Employer $ 1,017,351 $ 673,801 1,691,152

Plan members 261,350 159,422 420,772
Total Contributions 1,278,701 833,223 2,111,924
Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 3,731,030 3,313,427 7.044 457

Interest and dividends 411,246 337,501 748,837

Investment expense {25,785) (24,260) {50,045)
Net Investment Income 4,116,441 3,626,758 7,743,249
Total Additions 5,395,192 4,459,981 9,855,173
Deductions

Benefits paid 1,027,402 749,145 1,776,547

Refunds of contributions 52,298 - 52,298

Administrative expense 35,212 16,971 52,183
Total Deductions 1,114,812 766,116 1,881,028
Change in Net Position 4,280,280 3,693,865 7,974,145
Net Position, Beginning 13,380,574 11,971,910 25,362,484
Net Position, Ending $ 17,670,854 $§ 15665775 33,336,629

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ANNUAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE SECTION



Federal Grantor/Pass
Through Grantor/Program Title

City of Marlon, [liinois
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the Year Ended April 30, 2021

U.S. Department of Agriculture passed through the linols
Siate Board of Educatlon:

Summer Food Service Program

Child and Adult Care Food Program

1i.5. Department of Agriculiure Rural Development:
Rural Business Development Grant
Toetal U.S. Cepariment of Agrcultyre

U.5. Department of Housing and Urban Development passed through the

linois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity:
Community Davelopment Block Grant
Community Development Block Grant
Community Development Block Grant
Total U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development

LS. Department of Transportation passed through the
linois Departmant of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Canstrustion {Federal-Ald Highway Program}
Highway Planning and Construction (Federal-Ald Highway Program)
State and Community Highway Safety
Total U.S, Department of Transportation

{M) Department of Treasury passed through the (lfinols
Department of Commerce and Economi: Oppertunity:
COVID-19 Coronavirus Refief Fund

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:
Capitalization Grants for Clean Waler State Revelving Funds
Capitaiization Grants for Clean Water State Revelving Funds
Total LS. Enviranmental Protection Agency

Election Assistance Cammission:
Delta Area Economic Development

U.5. Department of Health and Human Services:
Medicare Enroliment Assistance Program

U.S. Department of Homeland Secunity passed through the
lllinois Emergency Management Agency:
Emermency Management Pedormance Grant
Emergency Management Performance Grant

U.5. Department of Homeland Security passed through the
lline!s Law Enforcement Alarm System:
Homeland Security Grant Program
Tota) U.S. Department of Transportation

Total Federal Financial Assistance

(M) Denotas a major federal financlal assistance program.

Federal Ravenues Expendituras
CFDA Grant 51120 - 51120 -

Number — Number — __ 4/30/2021 ~—330/2021
10,559 21100017P00 $ 74952 3 7.952
10.558 21100017900 21,083 21,093
10.351 RO118476 1 45173
74,218 74218

14.228 19-243008 271.710 269,460
14,228 60,000 60,000
14,228 31,700 31,700
20.205 15,761 17,731
20.205 12,000 12,000
20.600 HS-21-0052 1312 1312
21.019 709,764 709.264
66.468 L17-3222 16,386 16,386
66.468 L17-3223 19,194 19.194
— 35,580 — 35580

90.201 - 15,105
93.071 2000 2,000
97.042 20EMA 20,980 25,321
97.042 19EMA 15,234 -
97.067 1.070 1070
—_— 253

& 1250829 £ 1254761

See accompanying notes 10 schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the
federal grant activity of the City of Marion, lllincis and is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this scheduie is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and the Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 2 - indirect Facilities & Administration Costs
The City of Marion elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate.

Note 3 - Subrecipients
The City of Marion, lllinois did not provide federal awards to any subrecipients.

Note 4 - Non-cash Assistance

There was no non-cash assistance reported in the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards.

Note 5 - Insurance
There is no insurance involving federal expenditures.
Note 6 - Loan Qutstanding

There are no loans outstanding involving federal funds.
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City of Marion, lllinois
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
for the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

internal control over financial reporting:

. Material weaknesses identified? —_yes X no
. Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? ___vyes _ X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? __yes _X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

. Material weaknesses identified __vyes _X no
. Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses ___yes _X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are

recl't:ired to be reported in accordance

with §200.516(a} __yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Amount of Federal Program
21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund $709,264

Total federal expenditures for 5/1/20 — 4/30/21 $1,254,761

% tested as major 56.53%

Doliar threshold used to distinguish

between type A and type B programs:; $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? __yes _X_no

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section Il - Major Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Programs

None
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City of Marion, lllinois
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
for the Year Ended April 30, 2021

Finding
Number Condition Current Status

None
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City of Marion, lllinois
Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings
Year Ending April 30, 2021

Corrective Action Plan

None necessary
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STATISTICAL SECTION



GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Not lnvestmen i capital sysms
Restricted
Nonspendabis
Unrestricted

Togl g it

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Net imvestmont In cepital axsets
Resticted
Unrestricted

Total type noLp

PRIMARY GOVERNNENT
Nal wvesimernt in capits! assets
Reatrictod
Nonspandable
Urrasirictad

Totx! primary govemment net posistion

Nole: Lerge d -]

fund bal
inlJ

Clty of Marlon, {llinots
Mot Pasition by Component
Last Ten Fiacel Yoars

2012 2013 2014 M5 218 2017 2mMa 2018 2020 2021

3 48418801 3 48988714 $ 49821327 5 58384124 $ 82047732 3 04,502,687 § 70354133 $ 77220078 $ BD5)6278 $ 82452448
7,090,015 8,787,744 8714621 8,308 101 8,697,029 5,808,183 3,263,750 B8.278.369 518,774 9,860,036
1.000 1,000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1,000
1214501 1,430,735 1,155 881 3,551,854 {11,073,454) {14,332 100} 15,248 239) 35,108,481 {34 BSE 536} {33, 180.056)

$ 5763207 556207243 $ 00691820 5 68242478 S 57272307 3 58279950 3 58,362 851 3 48389618 $_S51.002518 $_Su.155474
$ 18061850 518023300 § 16532881 $ 17.507.218 5 17584074 3 16.021088 $ 20538801 $  21,500.600 § 22,806,259 $ D188
1,040,330 1,771,424 1,584,620 993,485 1,057,100 608,784 230 847,651 707608 288,188
452,045 507,295 489 822 270,048 {508,384) 519,054 {188.842) {4,042028) {3,931.078) {3,189 137

$ 17.554.29¢€ 3 18,302,028 3 _ 18737103 5__18.770,759 5_15,535419 5 20147008 3 __20,955988 3 1811543 3 _87a2are $ 20 270,230
3 6448054 $ 85012023 § D0,503.989 $ TaEo.3d2 § 80032406 §  BABI9TS § 90940734 $ 58730458 $ 103,424,537 $ 105833814
8.038,345 10,559,188 11,209,241 7.208.508 7.854.138 0418927 3,791,889 6,524,050 6,080,472 10,143,265
1.000 - . 1.000 1,000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1,000 1,000

1,864 547 1,536 680 1,625,503 3822 000 (+2178.818) (13,614,048) {15415 084) (38,150,488} {38,768 614} {38,357 195)

$ 751684 433 37780997 5 79428732 5 85013638 3 75897726 $_ 7842785 5 78318850 $ 98505 047 570726395 S 8425 e

for FY 2018 was due to implemenation of GASSH 68

fund bl

for FY 2018 was g to implemontation of GASE 75.
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EXPENSES
Govemnmental Activities
Ganeral govamman]
Pubiic, health &nd satety
Strsars, alieys, end cometenes
Culiyra end fecreation

irderest
|

Tota| G

Business-Type Activities
Witer
Sewer
Total Typa Aztivities Exp

TOTAL GOVERNMENT EXPERNSES

PROGRAM REVENUES
Govemmentxl Activities
Chitpas for Sarvices
Gonersl povemment
Public, hoalh ang
Streets, Zlleys and cometones

Cuture and recraation

Qeoverlopment
Operiting Grinis and Coptribtions
Capilal Grants xnd Contribetions
Tonl A Progrm R
Buaness-Type Activites
Charges fot Setvicos

Waiar

Sqwer
Operating Grimts and Contriutions
Capia! Gremy and ContnDution

Tor! Business-Type Activites Program Reveras
TOTAL GOVERNMENT PROSRAM REVENUES
NET REVNUE [EXPENSE)
Govemmentel Activities
Buginoes-Type Activitiey
TOTAL PRIMARY COVERNMENT NET REVENUE (EXPENSE)

City of Maricn, [inals
Changes in Kat Postticn
Lawt Ton Fisca! Years

212 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2000 2021
3 2RI AT 3 303830 3 3044485 $ 2807404 2905642 3 238TH 3 3383478 E AN 3 415349
A2 T.887,108 9,116,035 10391 875 10,717,870 11,010,205 11.550.371 1710576 12,600,626 12,003,017
2850n 4257758 3653, 773 3,266,528 4,131,483 473169 4.503.659 5,280 501 5455812 4.550.096
2370623 2,383,342 2817267 451,285 4688411 4595412 544507 5.285.483 5.3260.205 3097 A4S
431 009 4543137 410070 341208 3155020 3840973 2.899.672 2871426 3.080.30%9 4293 862
762,036 24,905 97,268 1420749 153 92 1.751.T74 897,060 B46,396 556.237 318,400
1,426 82T 1,129,983 1,118 753 1,102,083 1,185 719 1,320,063 1,183.040 1,214 361 1 365 1 387
23425004 24,193,622 24 540 668 26,007 208 26.461.048 30,564,378 20673783 a0 382,021 33,148,456 31.037.586
3,351,986 3,354 232 3.416,004 3,555,721 3451019 3.483,060 3560810 3,340,866 3035 442 3.347.450
2,892 361 2800524 2,891,501 2,638,136 Aa4.818 3315 934 3,216,668 3.007.514 3531747 3,197,600
S.044.008 6,185,156 8,305.535 6.514,283 5455 635 B.768.954 B.7E7.47T8 6424 210 0,597,189 8,585,095
2% 455,380 30.304.71e 30.650,201 _ﬁm 34,028,652 37,363,372 M 461,273 38820231 39,715,045 37,622 682

——— r— — — ———— e —————  ———————
199,751 212264 240,957 263,636 259680 403,481 Mo w5510 50,645 &11.510
Frifra 2TD.505 1359 290,545 206,155 202.067 Wb 635 1,725 52,754 203,783
2441 175,840 92280 2 o7 407 6T 046 M7.32 87,015 B8 515
arosst 347.452 410543 843,305 2,434 230 2,500,538 2857080 2,581,188 2.282.67% 858126
49,6850 38,334 50,130 45835 47,751 44 571 33,208 -
1371603 @35,850 982 803 734510 833200 03151 580,252 1.035.766 1321274 1201 22
1,898 8 30727 2 H24 3512458 A56,748 638,620 1,534 015 230240 1,784 325
3,900,600 4.589410 1.07550% 4.6588.140 7301, 700 4412453 4,550,865 6.899,545 4 BB 007 4,426 491
3T B14 3654671 3432 244 2589711 3,400,848 3,809,540 1825170 3725442 3571 541 3764438
2,768,083 3,908,802 3,013,748 3,104,755 308,354 34803 3,350,002 3.358.505 3805914 3418258
- - - 16108 75.063 - - -
1170277 - 25956 : - - - - I 815,105
T804 B.760.473 B.E71.548 8.690.57 6474130 0,924,223 TATSAT2 T0091.547 LETIFTTN 7.995.709
11,224,580 £.130.083 g, 747 855 11,878,713 14,065,030 11.339.7115 12.138.937 13,791,492 12,041,452 12 422,200
e it —— ——— ———  ——— ———— —————  ————  e—al 0T}

(18.420.420) (21,624,092 {22 585,057) £21,111,066) {21.069.348) (29,151.88%5) 24,112,930 (FIE92.478) (70,484 453 (26.611,095)
1,181,648 LR K 324N 175,710 208,303 125208 397,694 653,737 910,266 1,410,703
‘182“.7&0! !2125&856! !EMMGI !E.NS.SSGE ’EM‘MEZ ’N.m.ﬂﬁz Iaus‘@ |2_1m!§2 IE!.“I,TW! 535.200‘3&
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BENERAL REVERUES AND OTHER CHANGES th NET POSITION

Govermnmental Activites
Taxes

Property 1axes
Sales texea
Other Laxes and franchise feey
Intergovsmenat
investment eoma
Mizcalianooyy

Gain (Losa) on 248 of caplial assats

Gain [Loas) on et of caplel assoly

Loxs Rocawiry
Spocia) Hem
Transfens

Toial Business-Type Acthvities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

CHANGES N NET POSITION
Govemmontal Activitas
Busingss-Typo Activitiaa

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Governmentsl Activities
Business- Type Acthilies

TOTAL PRIMARY GQOVERNMENT

CHAKGES (N NET POSITION AFTER PRIOR

PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
Govemmante! Acthities
Busitgs3-Typo Activities

TOTAL FRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Chy of Maricn, linats
Changes in Nai Pesition (comtinued)

Last Ten Fhaca! Yeans
2012 2013 24 s 2018 2017 2018 o8 0 290 2021
4670 897 57152304 6,188,554 6,548,808 IALCE G 7.470.252 7.620.710 B.311.561 8,552,851 5450350
13.230.625 13,554,579 13475074 13,302 948 138972245 13,002,723 15,081,272 15813523 11001718 20730475
1,478,055 2329500 3314407 3,724 286 3,702.250 3,765,412 3.7745.768 3.8688_215 4041608 37480
1,476,662 1.850.94 1,667,310 1,757 467 1.779.056 1.597.450 1,568,885 1.804,662 1,720,101 35527715
paagT 78,052 41,887 40, 54t 5B.7D& 65,469 130672 316,458 R0z 144,458
162471 84,205 96,520 320264 68481 (L] 121,453 110,748 31,881 245 204
- d2.241 51,743 {28.411) 26401 - - 5%
(5,068,948} - - - . - {9,652, 165} .
(12052 - - - - - N -
5 {137,773 36T E%%) 2!% gl;ﬂ‘s&) (175,485} (21,876) (%% Adgy 1
12 23,305,048 24,438 634 AT, 26.704.22 158,528 28,731,478 30,063,038 1,096,383 35,767 443
1403 2085 530 TAT 1350 4,951 26.1M 31.224 20.000 5,748
24516 42,437 8,620 19,864 €833 11,524 2260 9245 35.5%0 52,990
B . . . . 82 {93.487) 30,148 (82.857) 403847
- . 140,751 - - - - -
- . - (407,20%) . - - -
545 Sad 137 (2817 253,621 (21,268 1,713,588 175,485 21 67, 796 448 1 202
671,455 192 4585 166, Y84 |142.0!|:!! (13,35 1.787.258 120,388 103,308 TE7 152 {627.51 !!
13,286,018 23457 533 24505418 25303 649 20,120,922 26,548,787 26 551 BTG 30105484 31.803.543_ 34 330,026
{6. 641,075} 1,489,024 1873577 4,338,838 5.684 870 (982, 356} 2,018,548 8,308 810 2811.61 8556 46
1,853,113 T4T 802 526,185 31857 164,668 1,512.487 308,002 5738 1807 448 543,188
{4.987.96) 2228 534 2.402.772 4373203 5855017 £20.131 2,526,640 7.066.745 4218348 813954
. 96,000 . . - . - {16.2R2.655)
. . - - - - - {3,567 Ty
. 98,000 . - - - {19.880.357) - .
(8.541,075) 1577008 1673577 4,338 636 5.054.679 992,358) 2,018,548 @.073.045) 2811601 B.550. M8
1,853 113 747 802 528,185 33 B5T 194,998 1.912.4_2_ 508.062 {2,640 567) 1,507 448 83 186
$_ (4057062 3 2324838 2.402.772 $ 4373203 3 5.850.877 H 920121 $ 2526640 3 (12813612 3 _4.219.349 $ 9,139,554
S — N N — B E— N — e ——
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City of Mariom, linoks

Fund Balznces Governmeantsl Funds

Lant Tan Flacal Yoars
2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
GENERAL FUND M
Raatricted 5 285 495 - 207,693 5 168,382 205,425 3 184,666 3 2251 5 211370 $ 554,462 $ 80,495 H 1,023,558
Aasigned 460,804 72,523 12,530 89,007 62,132 54,532 a7 102,107 50,581 50,561
Commitied 443,678 4658748 4,767,505 4,934 514 4,601,530 5324178 5.317,947 54573268 5,615,045 8,507,208
Unassigned BTIB M 5102 763 7,958,287 5.147,327 5517 321 4,281 458 4,449,408 4,924 950 5528655 5,889, 020
TOTAL GENERAL FUXD 3 11,828,145 5 13,044,727 $ 12064710 10,378,273 $ 10375849 % 9.933,134 ] B,878.822 $ 11,038,845 $ 11272756 £ 13771333
S — _ E— R _
ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Special roverue funds
Restrictad 5 6.209 287 $ 1.081,129 H 0.010.807 19,001,190 5 11582448 $ 9,167,583 % 5894610 $ 4063671 H 3,288,938 E 5,220,982
Unassigned (61.268)
Capits! project funds
Restricted - T.218.432 8,348,120 2192382 575 - - - 255,830 223403
Unasaigned (186,000} - - - - - - -
Oabt service fung
Restricted 1,156 400 1,240.422 1,714,398 2.030.852 2,007,380 2060210 1.852.220 1,690,076 1.724,041 1,452,868
Parmznent fund
Nenspencabe 1,000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1,000 1,000 1.000 1,000 1.000 1.600
Restricied a3 42 ad2 B4l 845 453 ars g17 553 957
TOTAL ALL OYHER GERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 7,211,521 $ 15541625 3 16,074,847 14,226,267 $ 13802256 % 11,229.708 3 7.548, 7056 5 5,755.664 5 5,265,760 5 8,840,470
— ] —— E— a1 — A
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REVENUEY
Propedy s
Sales Taxes
Grarl fevenus
Liconses and permks
Intargove mmemiel revantey
Othor taxns and Franchis Tees
Serice chomes and Sos
rvestment noome
Restriod Donslions
MiscoTensows Reverus

Total mvenues

EXPENDITURES
Gentral governmem
Pubac, heedh end sefety
Streets, aleys snd cemedenes
Culturs and recreeuon
Cepal outtsy
Davelapmeni
Debi aorvdce
Tola) Expenditures

EXCESS {DEACIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDIMTURES

OTHER FINANCING BDURCES {USES)
Proceeds from long-lerm dett
Prieta nds fom sale of cepital cassls
Tramfers i {out)

TOTAL OTHER FINARCING SOURCES (USES)

SPECLAL ITEMS
Paymerd 1o BBA bondhokdars.
Peymes to Paviion bondnakders
Tloao out of Revohing Logrn Fund
Piyment to Counly Ky property L

TOTAL BPECEAL ITEMS

NET CHANGES IN FUND DALANCES

DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE OF
HOKCAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Clty of Marion, Tincis

Ch in Furd o Funds
Lavt Tan Flacel Years
2012 2013 014 2015 2015 2017 2018 2019 20 2021

3 A245 342 3 e0034T% 3 §58.005 5 49153 5 T.541.118 $ T.BA5 08T 3 To47 901 3 8,378,155 3 BAX D8 3 5519142
12,230,825 13,554 500 13,173,074 13,302,048 13071400 13962723 15081 272 15813523 17,001,118 208,473
wnrer L¥EE:R ] 9370 2,834 388 1507803 920,700 N5 2,142,074 L R ] 2,548 547
60,004 6,555 104,883 134,648 35014 106,15 177,085 205204 13 a0 12441
1,589,183 2,144,002 21T T4 2,041,172 2,232.422 210310 2041314 2254 075 2351470 3352775
1.510.51% 207160 3Mp112 3120322 274,103 g 4077 884 4,143,323 4081807 1. T4 881
A24.845 Ba4.451 940,236 1,454 541 2.850.045 2,061,705 2896 511 Z.059.587 2888 532 1.458 503
58,827 T8.052 41,745 40,540 8.783 9. 787 120,004 0150 7207 13118
39,833 10,450 18,101 18,346 1900345 1095 53,563 $38,305 B.458 13.902
306,295 352.602 223,807 335 530 125,578 2191 a7 208.791 458,457 215,302
25, 497 o JrrsEiFy] 27,000,387 31,242 087 M 50!.013 31, 7a4 818 33 224,403 38,765 488 3762157 30.322,084
2054852 38em2 3234133 255045 I 0E5 AT Jodewer 3118254 3,507 190 3.725.400 4,000 038
7305481 7,344,306 5403207 P32 DT TS ©.909.545 10,269,669 10.630. 560 10,588 314 11,353,013
3403.312 3,300,702 3,397 904 3166344 B584.181 454155 3,677,958 4905 927 4,625,572 4,543 202
2131024 2,040,895 2248013 Aoeraes 3,920 022 3,040,925 4,192,323 4.250,0680 4222 289 2955 M2
2321245 3884829 11135450 AL 200 8402637 15803,848 4,600,021 4.50%.530 4033242 A A54 047
4,321,029 A4 504,453 4,185,307 10,797 470 3,154 864 3,744,482 2,090,447 2,840,500 3,089 311 3,408,581
2,104,343 2470110 2.39%.520 4459 873 12336854 6,112,823 5024 208 5,504.280 0.074.564 18 435,089
24321 05A 26,004 SRS 35434 424 43,127 558 44 350,81% 351!0.851 35,350 898 35,380 406 1% 995,580 AT 156,342
1695411 (‘!’?1m_ﬂl g.am_ssg {51.885.451) (9.045,800) 1.385 835 (1.?35.495! (1,579,608 41,234 42%) H. 234,258
5,352,080 10,204,013 10,885, T8t 5,750,450 5,200,855 34423 208,603 420 434 3.218,185% 12,034,038
458 616

- 12,825 15,120 {305,000 21288 (1,772,385} 22 55¢ 21,878) 7758 1,523 740

5,352 580 10.218.530 10,580,901 5442 483 0,202,143 ;mzug! Foaf-r] ﬂl?,@l 96430 14,915,545
2981339 - - - - - - - . -
{2,008,848) . - - . - - . -
i . . . - (1.852.185) - - -

. . . . - - {503.045) . . .

{5,050.2 - - - - 5521 - . -
3 §.318.004 3 2445887 ] 2 A58.044 ] EJQTM! £ EJ&!} ] 75 204, 3 IE&W.“I i 3 sl.tYl.Eﬂz! 3 !E‘Ez 5 6,081,267
5% 10.80% T1.51% 11.30% M 15 54% 10.44% 11.28% 17.05% 15 49%
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City of Martan, lllinois

Taxabla Sales by Category - M pal Tax
Last Fen Years
{Unaudited}
Calendar Year 2011 2012 2013 Flal ) 2015 2018 2017 2048 2019 20
General Merchandise H 1448414 $ 1,714 822 $ 1,678,796 $ 1,676,599 s 1,696,741 H 1,196,812 } 4 1,105,635 L 1,102,880 H 1,161,140 $ 1,094,178
Food 675,855 T10.406 Fir.ee1 748,398 710,905 1,191,795 1.266.470 1317227 1,342,746 1,382,683
Drinking and Eating Places 700,163 7184878 725,745 750,566 801,532 821,182 850,726 BBV, BOT 844,106 744,817
Appare! 414,013 210,728 273N 191,686 177,750 155,387 153,404 157,821 144,071 103,530
Fumiture & H.H. & Radio 82276 67,974 71,215 61,394 69,084 53,170 49,520 64,532 97,606 113,695
Lumbayr, Bkdg, Hardware 743574 774,4H 769,470 7378 825,783 B47,350 879,159 839,450 835,742 1,040,025
Automative & Filing Stations 1,625,038 1,864,850 1,821,876 1812976 110,744 1,848,754 1,747,596 1,929,102 1,990,760 2,077,181
Drugs & Miscellaneous Retail 834,199 B93.505 8a0,975 860,748 1.101.557 1145230 1,145,109 1,103,551 1172294 1224944
Agriculiure & All Othars 200,883 237584 229,023 214627 225,661 261,433 307,578 346,752 367.574 346,452
Manufattures 105,625 106,528 101,206 107,715 105856 S5803 101,960 78,042 88639 77,466
TOTAL $ | 0 H 7,318,357 3 7,227,538 s 7,205,187 3 7 590 3 ?I61§9|7 5 1.821,157 3 7,808,271 s 8,085,678 3 8 572
CITY DIRECT SALES TAX RATE m % _‘% 1.00% 1.00% ‘Iﬂ_ﬂjé, 1.00% 1& 1.00% 1.00%
Data Soureq
liEnots Department of Revenue

Data by calegory is no! available from the Siate of Hlinols for categories with less than four taxpayers. Any nonreporied intals are Included In the
Genera) Merchandise category.
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Taxable Sales by Category - Home Rule Tax

City of Marion, lllinots

Data by calegory Is not avaliable from the State of illinols for categaries whh less than four taxpayers. Any nonreported totals are included In the

General Meschandlse category.

tn July of 2017 the homerule tax rate Increased from 1.25% to 1.50%.

In January of 2020 the homerul tax rate Increased from 1.50% to 2.25%

114

Last Ten Years
[Unaudited)

Caolendar Year 2011 2012 2013 214 2013 2018 2017 2018 219 2020
General Merchandise 3 1,280,361 § 1,499,832 § 1439666 $ 1411470 § 1417128 § 1,046,629 % 1,076,999 § 1,532,320 3 1,089,745 § 1,674,141
Food 382,150 416,799 483,673 445977 387,205 799,213 873,891 985,466 1,021 584 1,481,834
Drinking and Eating Places 868,355 887,608 897,607 928,621 992,553 1,017,522 1,174,232 1,291,108 1,328,349 1,659,676
Apparal 429221 263,387 259,165 239,600 222176 194,207 212,147 236,447 216,080 233,443
Furnfture & H.H. & Radio 102,843 84,568 89,018 76,742 86,328 66,481 67,920 96,808 146,408 255,775
Lumbser, Bldg, Hardware 862,718 926,047 913,601 893,298 852,274 973,344 1,123,200 1,250,248 1,239,608 2,317,934
Automotive & Filing Stations 527,783 627,859 575,17 604,218 596,176 §73.576 597,220 752,307 728,967 1,005,186
Drugs & Miscellaneous Retall 843,947 873,293 810,148 757,670 811,985 817,151 985,825 267,884 855,513 1,432,903
Agrizuliure 8 Al Others 267,466 273,040 268,617 248,398 260,013 304,745 396,527 473,775 488,584 660,071
Manufactures 122,381 121,248 112,723 119,721 122,241 114,135 131,685 113,510 128,732 167,094
TOTAL $ 6707225 § 5073080 § 5847950 § 5723715 § 5848079 § 5905983 3 6539846 § 7199872 % 7,248,570 § 10,898,057
CITY DIRECT SALES TAX RATE 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 152% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% ﬂ
Dala Source
filtnols Department of Ravenue



Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

City of Marion, lllinois

Last Ten Years

City and County Records

Home rule tax increasee .25% on July 1,2017.
Home rule tax increasee .75% on January 1, 2020.
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{Unaudited)
County
City School
Calendar Direct County  State Facility
Year Rate Rate Rate Rate Total
2011 225% 025% 5.00% 1.00% 8.50%
2012 2.25% 0.25% 5.00% 1.00% B.50%
2013 2.25% 025% 500% 1.00% 8.50%
2014 2.28% 0.25%  5.00% 1.00%  8.50%
2015 2.25% 0.25% 5.00% 1.00% 8.50%
2016 2.25% 0.25% 5.00% 1.00% 8.50%
2017 250% 025% 5.00% 1.00% 8.75%
2018 250% 025% 5.00% 1.00% 8.75%
2019 250% 025% 500% 1.00% 8.75%
2020 325% 025% 5.00% 1.00% 9.50%
Data Source



Clty of Marion, {Hinols
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Years
{Rate Per $100 of Assessed Value)

{Unaudited)
City Direct Rates Ovetlapping Rates
Williamson Maron

Tax Total County Willlamson  John A. Unit #2 Marion Total

Year Flre Potica Debt Direct Willamson Building County Logan School Park Overlapping Tolal Al

Levied Corporate Panslon Ponslon Service Recreaiion Rate County Commsslon Alport College District District Rates Rates
2011 0.13444 0.19778 0.05206 0.368428 1.34328 £.22958 0.09610 0.54842 3.73698 0.22830 6.18268 £.56694
2012 0.14626 0.20641 0.05230 0.05000 0.45567 1.31761 0.22958 0.09967 0.55535 4.04335 0.24323 6.48939 £.94508
M3 0.14360 0.22358 0.05059 0.04721 0.46496 1.36508 0.23255 0.10055 0.56323 408750 0.25279 6.60168 705664
2014 0.16634 0.24371 0.05060 D.0472 0.50786 1.41689 0.24071 0,10320 0.59101 421779 0.26473 6.83433 7.34219
2018 0.17905 0.27672 0.04557 0.50134 1.40830 0.24927 010270 0.61581 4.20029 0.26575 6.84372 7.34506
2016 0.20804 0.31627 0.00000 0.04427 0.56858 132663 0.24727 0.10122 0.61545 414139 0.26955 6.70154 7.27009
2017 0.21124 0.318%4 0.04389 0.57407 1.35475 0.25426 0.10297 0.62445 4,.26466 0.28054 6.88163 745570
2018 0.20864 0.31502 0.04335 0.56701 1.39753 0.25966 0.10453 0.62530 435717 0.28890 7.02369 7.59070
2019 0.00002 0.00002 1.40411 0.26491 0.10578 0.63145 442781 0.29333 7.12739 712744
2020 0.00002 0.00002 1.66586 0.10387 0.74724 44378 0.29782 7.25259 7.25261

Source. Willamson County Clark's Cffice
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Clty of Marion, lllinois
Assessad and Estimated Actual Yalue of Taxable Property in Areas Outslde of TIFs

Last Ten Years
{Unaudted)

Total Taxable Actual
Tax Commerciat Industrial Residential Rallroads Farm Assessed Percant Total Direct Taxable
Year Praperty Property Property Property Property Minarals Value Growth Tax Rale Value
2011 115,935,245 8,510,080 161,410,595 309,583 1,968,397 3,060 288,136,860 0.98% 0.,38428 864,410,680
2012 115,248,607 6,672,276 162,322,085 345,561 2,215,724 3,080 286,807,293 -0.46% 0.45567 860,421,879
2013 125,251,925 5,969,351 162,488,590 400,107 2,398,406 3,060 296,511,439 3.38% 0.48486 889,534,317
2014 124,526,776 5,957,078 162,984,849 424,262 2,623,226 3,080 296,499,051 0.00% 0.50786 889,497,153
2015 130,506,548 5,910,219 167,565,447 495,672 2,680,151 3,060 07,166,097 3.60% 0.50134 921,498,291
2016 134,600,739 7,105,007 171,244,570 506,656 2,722,727 3,060 316,182,759 2.94% 0.56858 948,548,277
2017 136,247,648 7,101,377 172,372,579 510,716 2,736,084 3,060 318,971,464 0.88% 0.57407 956,914,392
208 138,812,188 7,101,377 173,683,675 510,716 2,829,348 360 322,937,664 1.24% 0.58701 968,812,992
2019 141,778,900 7.088,104 190,382,668 510,716 3,035,252 2,080 342,807,730 6.15% 0.00000  1,028,423,190
2020 145,912,074 7,231,797 195,085,955 £608,484 3,624,752 2,090 353,465,162 3.11% 0.00000  1,060,395,486

Source: Willlamson County Clerk's Cifice
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City of Marion, lllinois
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property in TIF Areas

Last Ten Years
{Unaudited)

Total Taxable Actual
Tax Commercial Industrial Residential Railroads Farm Assessed Percent Taxable
Year Property Property Property Property Property Value Growth Value
2011 53,503,747 38,213 15,086,059 7.493 1,866,011 70,611,523 -4.10% 211,834,563
2012 52,897,324 35,231 15,832,288 7485 2,118,518 70,890,844 0.40% 212,672,532
2013 55,819,270 38.213 16,469,077 7,493 2,116,625 74,450,678 5.02% 223,352,034
2014 58,410,061 29,851 17,308,888 - 1,945,155 77,693,955 4.36% 233,081,865
215 61,306,782 91,383 17,853,786 77 2,015,283 81,267,311 4.60% 243,801,933
2016 64,623,089 123,293 18,243,284 144 2,167,018 85,156,828 4.79% 255,470,484
2017 66,731,120 123,203 18,539,393 144 2,195,341 87,569,291 2.86% 262,767,873
2018 67,791,177 123,293 18,393,218 144 2,179,252 88,487,084 1.03% 265,461,252
2019 68,175,555 123,166 4,526,676 144 2,168,398 74,992,939 -15.25% 224,978,817
2020 72,922,167 219,830 7,110,617 532 2,315,963 82,568,109 10.10% 247,707,327

Source: Williamson County Clerk's Office
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City of Marion, lllinois

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Areas outside of TIF Districts
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)
Percent of Percent of
Total Tax Current Current Delinquent Total Tax

Fiscal Tax Levy Tax Tax Tax Total Tax Collections

Year Year Extended Collections Collections Collections Collections to Tax Levy
2012 2010 1,066,561 0.00% - 0.00%
2013 2011 1,107,253 1,109,014 100.16% 1,109,014 100.16%
2014 2012 1,301,334 1,297,754 99.72% 1,589 1,299,343 99.85%
2015 2013 1,375,445 1,369,529 99.57% 1,253 1,370,782 89.66%
2016 2014 1,503,013 1,500,674 99.84% (3,564) 1,497,110 99.61%
2017 2015 1,541,322 1,639,683 99.89% 968 1,540,651 99.96%
2018 2016 1,793,612 1,785,685 99.56% (12,019) 1,773,666 98.89%
2019 2017 1,826,125 1,817,176 99.51% 2,989 1.820,165 99.67%
2020 2018 1,826,551 1,812,593 99.24% 2,281 1,814,874 99.36%
2021 2019 51 51 100.00% 51 100.00%

Source: Williamson County Treasurer's Office
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City of Marion, llincis
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Within TIF Districts
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Percent of Prior Year Percent of
Total Tax Current Current Tax Total Tax

Fiscal Tax Levy Tax Tax Collections Total Tax Collections

Year Year Extended Collections Collections (Refunds) Collections to Tax Levy
2012 2010 4,659,643 4,659,541 100.00% 0 4,659,541 100.00%
2013 2011 4,501,601 4,500,815 99.98% (5,438) 4,495,377 99.86%
2014 2012 4,776,013 4,775,376 99.99% 0 4,775,376 99.99%
2015 2013 5,113,521 5,113,321 100.00% (59.838) 5,053,483 98.83%
2016 2014 5,548,966 5,547,540 89.97% 0 5,547,540 99.97%
2017 2015 5,808,198 5,807,907 99.98% 0 5,807,907 99.99%
2018 2016 6,028,357 5,977,889 899.16% 0 5,977,889 99.16%
2019 2017 6,356,345 6,355,985 99.99% 0 6,355,985 99.99%
2020 2018 6,553,670 6,551,861 99.97% 49,488 6,601,349 100.73%
2021 2019 5,339,598 5,338,759 99.88% 1,092 5,339,851 100.00%

Source: Williamson County Treasurer's Office
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Govemmetnal Activitias

City of Marion, llilinols

Ratios of Quistanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{Unaudited}

Business-Type Actlvities

General Gengral IEPA Percentage

Fiscal Obligation Loans Capiial Obligation Loans Capital Loans Tolal of Personal Per

Yaar Bonds SSA BOND Payable | Bonds Payable Leases Payble Govemnmmenl Income Capita
2012 16,560,022 3,115,000 8,517,848 - 4,494,118 3,144 - 6,925,555 39,615,685 9.65% 2,316.57
2013 25,079,175 2,840,000 8,473,805 - 4,161,778 42,980 - 9,246,502 49,844,251 12.14% 2,898.26
2014 34,207,060 2,555,000 8,120,689 559,274 3,827,397 26,608 - 8,702,455 67,998,484 13.81% 3,356.01
2015 36,410,959 2,265,000 8,431,394 556,934 8,119,793 9,606 - 3,450,219 59,243,905 14.11% 3.414:{}4
2016 33,373,748 1,970,000 8,451,888 1,361,944 6,791,153 554,501 - 3,739,221 596,282,455 13.51% 3,200.05
2017 30,021,578 1,665,000 7.731,038 855,590 6,141,876 285,162 - 3,538,082 §0,243,326 12.03% 283812
2018 26,638,508 1,350,000 6,695,172 821,094 5,638,785 617,082 27,684 3,331,326 45,019,651 10.82% 2,532,489
2019 23,420,048 1,030,000 5,997,188 661,389 4,813,458 545,640 21,642 3,131,451 39,630,814 9.52% 2,245.88
2020 20,130,278 700,000 5,485,626 516,821 4,072,054 485,642 15470 2,998,495 34,404,422 8.30% 196372
2021 16,618,278 355,000 6,255,028 395,725 3,309,749 423,857 1,209,166 3,306,606 31,874,410 6.94% 1.891.10

Note: For comparative purposes 1he 2015 Refunding Chase foan has been included with the
bonded debt
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City of Marion, lllinois
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Paid with Sales Tax and Hotel Tax
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)
Gross Less Funds Net Net General Total

General Reserved General Total Obligation Hotel and

Fiscal Obligation for Debt Obligation Hotel and Debt Sales Tax

Year Bonds Service Debt Sales Tax Per Capita Per Capita
2012 15,340,022 644,675 14,695,347 13,252,301 847.24 764.04
2013 21,437,659 719,794 20,717,865 14,477,275 1,193.49 833.99
2014 26,843,620 1,020,747 25,822,873 14,169,930 1,454.24 797.99
2015 25,025,314 1,212,240 23,813,074 14,577,735 1,341.81 821.42
2016 22,706,390 1,235,555 21,470,835 15,072,278 1,219.03 855.75
2017 20,149,888 1,292,106 18,857,782 15,041,676 1,068.01 851.88
2018 17,579,131 1,173,362 16,405,769 16,286,369 932.78 925.99
2019 15,291,464 1,200,877 14,090,587 16,739,738 800.51 951.01
2020 12,775,051 1,228,648 11,546,403 16,854,086 659.04 961.99
2021 10,740,958 1,150,067 9,590,892 18,325,551 569.02 1,087.25

Note: For comparative purposes the 2015 Refunding Chase loan has been included with the

bonded debt
Note: Above Total Hotel and Sales Tax does not include sales tax transferred to Property Tax

Replacement Fund.
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City of Marion, Hinols
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding
Patd with Tax Increment Financing Districts Funds

Last Ten Years
{Unaudited)
Gross l.ess Funds Net Percent of
General Reserved General Tax Increment TIF Fund Balance Net Debt
Fiscal Obligation for Debt Okligation Financing Fund To Net General Per
Year Bonds Service Debt Balance Obligation Debt Capita
2011 1,275,000 130,400 1,144,600 3,155,678 275.70% 66.36
2012 1,220,000 131,456 1,088,544 3,430,420 315.14% 62.76
2013 3.641,516 120,215 3,521,301 3,973,120 112.83% 202.85
2014 7,363,440 294,542 7,068,898 4,558,204 64.48% 398.00
2015 11,385,645 421,751 10,963,884 5,747,259 52.42% 617.79
2016 10,667,358 372,838 10,294,519 7,933,730 77.07% 584.48
2017 9,871,680 368,177 9,503,513 5,614,346 58.08% 538.23
2018 9,059,377 379.893 8,679,484 4,475,282 51.56% 493.49
2019 8,138,592 389,713 7,748,889 2,881,768 37.19% 440.23
2020 7,355,225 391,103 6,964,122 707,772 10.16% 397.50
2021 5,877,319 328,307 5,548,012 1,255,411 22.62% 329.22
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City of Marion, lllinois
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Paid with Water and Sewer Service Charges and Fees
Last Ten Years

{Unaudited}
Gross Less Funds Net Percentage of
General Reserved General Water and Sewer Water and Sewer
Fiscal Obligation for Dabt Obligation Debt Service Debt Service Billings  Per Capita
Year Bonds Service Debt Billings To GO Debt GO Debt
2012 4,494,116 212,602 4,281,514 1,059,067 24 74% 246.84
2013 4,161 ,?;:‘9 221,082 3,540,697 1,115,821 28.32% 227.01
2014 3,827,397 226,737 3,600,660 1,141,178 31.69% 202,77
2015 8,119,793 311,651 7,808,142 1,121,742 14.37% 439.97
2016 6,791,153 219,910 6,571,243 1,137,504 17.31% 373.09
2017 6,141,876 224,362 5,917,514 1,141,443 19.29% 335.14
2018 5,538,785 105,423 5,433,362 1,144,106 21.06% 308.92
2019 4,813,458 109,802 4,703,656 1,145,625 24.36% 267.22
2020 4,072,094 108,858 3,963,236 1,135,260 28.64% 226.21
2021 3,309,749 110,554 3,199,195 1,168,859 36.54% 189.81
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City of Marion, lllincis
Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

April 30, 2021
(Unaudited)
Estimated
Percentage
Gross Debt Applicable
Bonded In the City of Citfy of Marion
Governmental Unit Debt (1) Marion (2} Share of Debt
City of Marion $12,765,051 100.00% $12,765,051
Willamson County 17,975,000 31.72% $5,701,670
Williamson Co. CUSD 2 21,405,000 56.96% $12,192,288
Wiltiamson CUSD 5 36,445,000 6.46% $2,354,347
Williamson County Airport 4,165,000 31.77% $1,323,221
John A. Logan College 31,450,000 17.31% $5,443,995
Marion Park District 770,000 99.48% $765,996
$124,975,051 $40,546,568

Per Capita Direct and Overlapping Debt

(1) Gross bonded debt does not include the debt being paid with Tax Increment Financing funds.
(2) Determined by ratio of assessed value of property subject to taxation in the City to assessed
value of property subject to taxation in the overlapping unit.

(3) Williamson County Clerk's Office and www.EMMA.MSRB.org {excludes principal due on

or before September 1, 2020.)
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Clty of Marion, illinols
Full Time Equivalent City Government
Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Flscal Years
{Unaudited)

202t 2020 2019 2018 a7 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Functicns/Programs
General Government
Mayor and Council 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
City Administrator - . 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 WA MA NA MA NA
Code Enforcement 394 3.00 3.00 312 338 300 NA NA NA NA NA
information Technology 2.64 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.00 NA NA NA NA NA
Treasurer's Office 4.87 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 NA NA NA NA NA
City Clerk’s Office 1.87 242 2.46 245 2.39 2.18 WA NA NA NA NA
Human Resources 1.00 1.00 - . - - - - -
Economi¢ Pevelopment 0.85 - . - - - . - - - -
Mayer's Chief of Staff 1.00 1.00 - . . - - -
City Attorney 1.00 1.00 - - - - - - B
Community Programs 0.95 - - - . - - - - - -
Senior Citizens Center 72.33 6.94 6.92 7.17 7.10 7.0 NA NA NA NA NA
Bayton St. Community Center 3.26 5.10 4.90 3.96 4.31 4.27 NA NA, NA N& NA
Public Health & Safety
Pollce Department 58.23 54.47 50.67 48.35 47.92 45.27 NA NA NA NA NA
Fire Department 27.09 26.00 26.00 26.00 25.39 2516 NA NA NA NA NA
Emergency Management 0.2% 0.15 0.25 .50 0.50 D.50 NA NA NA NA NA
Safety Department 1.00 100 100 1.00 1.00 1.00 NA NA NA NA NA
Animal Control 2.44 2.65 2.82 2.50 2.45 249 NA WA NA NA NA
Streets, Alleys and Cemeteries
Street Department 26.31 2282 23.18 22.05 22.29 20.54 NA NA Na NA NA
Cemetery Department 563 592 6.0 &.60 6.53 6.59 NA NA NA MA MN&
Cultural 2and Recreation
Cuitura! BCIvic Center 3.39 456 6.95 6.76 6.81 611 NA NA NA NA NA
Carnzgielibrary 10.80 13.50 14.08 14.23 1155 12.32 NA NA NA NA NA
The Pavilion 3.16 4.4% 4,37 4.24 4.24 413 NA NA NA NA NA
Hub Recreational Center 21.26 39.32 43.33 41.27 1810 35.62 NA NA NA NA NA
Public Uitillties
Water-Outslde and Plant 11.00 11.00 1083 10.00 10.00 1081 NA NA NA NA NA
Water Office 5.54 5.85 6.00 5.87 5.76 450 NA NA NA NA NA
Sewer - Qutside and Plany 11.13 11.74 12.21 12,57 12.72 1243 NA NA NA NA NA

22194 24200 33987 23264 22844 217.09

Note: Years ending 2011 thru 2015 were under a previous accounting systemn and information is Insufficient to calculate FTE's,
Note: Cuhtural and Recreation FTE's were down in 2020 due to Covig-19 Pandemic furloughs.
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Demographic and Economic Statistics

City of Marion, lllinois

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Medican Per Kthrul2
Fiscal Household Capita Median School Unemployment
Year Population Income income Age Enrolment Rate
2012 17,345 § 39,167 § 24,869 41.2 3,744 8.80%
2013 17,359 § 38,260 5 24,054 40.8 3,828 8.90%
2014 17,757 S 41,319 S 26,126 41.2 3,749 8.64%
2015 17,747 $ 42,489 $ 26,088 40.8 3,804 6.71%
2016 17,613 § 42,839 $ 25,205 429 3,886 6.70%
2017 17,657 § 43,146 $ 25,204 40,1 3,835 5.72%
2018 17,588 $ 43,407 $ 25,851 40.3 3,819 4.80%
2019 17,602 43,587 $ 26,395 39.2 3,820 5.00%
2020 17520 $§ 43502 S 27,252 39.3 3,794 4.80%
2021 16,855 N/A N/A N/A 3,723 5.07%

N/A - Not available
Data Sources

{1) U.S Census Bureau

{2) CityData.com

(3) Data,USA

{4) Marion Unit 2 School District
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